Public Document Pack
SOUTHEND-ON-SEA BOROUGH COUNCIL

Place Scrutiny Committee

Date: Monday, 6th July, 2020
Time: 6.30 pm
Place: Virtual Meeting via MS Teams

Contact: Tim Row - Principal Democratic Services Officer
Email: committeesection@southend.gov.uk

AGENDA
1 Apologies for Absence
2 Declarations of Interest
3 Questions from Members of the Public

4 Minutes of the Meeting held on Monday, 28th January 2020 (Pages 1 - 10)

**** ITEMS CALLED-IN/REFERRED DIRECT BY CABINET HELD ON
TUESDAY 16TH JUNE 2020

5 Parking Review (Pages 11 - 16)
Minute 67 (Cabinet Agenda Item No. 3)
Called-in by Councillors Cox and Davidson

6 Protection of Public Open Space (Pages 17 - 26)
Minute 68 (Cabinet Agenda Item No. 4 refers)
Called-in by Councillors Cox and Davidson

7 The Beecroft Trust (Pages 27 - 32)
Minute 69 (Cabinet Agenda Item No. 5 refers)
Called-in by Councillors Cox and Davidson

***  ITEMS REFERRED DIRECT FROM CABINET HELD ON
TUESDAY, 30TH JUNE 2020

8 Better Queensway Regeneration Project - Progress Update and
Consideration of the Final Proposals (the report will be considered in
conjunction with the minutes of the Shareholder Board, 25th June)
(Pages 33 - 134)

Minute XX (Cabinet Agenda Item No. 3 refers)
Referred direct by Cabinet

9 COVID-19 - Parking Recovery Proposals (Pages 135 - 140)
Minute XX (Cabinet Agenda Item No. 4 refers)
Referred direct by Cabinet



**** ITEMS CALLED IN FROM THE FORWARD PLAN

None

****  PRE-CABINET SCRUTINY ITEMS

None

****  OTHER SCRUTINY MATTERS

10 In-Depth Scrutiny Projects and Summary of Work 2019/20 (Pages 141 -
154)
Report of Executive Director (Legal & Democratic Services)

TO: The Chair and Members of Place Scrutiny Committee :

Councillor A Moring (Chair),

Councillors M Flewitt (Vice-Chair), B Ayling, J Beck, A Bright, K Buck, L Burton, A Chalk,
D Cowan, T Cox, M Dent, S George, D Jarvis, S Wakefield, C Walker, N Ward and

P Wexham



Public Document Pack
SOUTHEND-ON-SEA BOROUGH COUNCIL

Meeting of Place Scrutiny Committee

Date: Tuesday, 28th January, 2020
Place: Committee Room 1 - Civic Suite

Present: Councillor A Moring (Chair)

Councillors M Flewitt (Vice-Chair), B Ayling, J Beck, A Bright, K Buck,
L Burton, A Chalk, D Cowan, T Cox, M Dent, S George, D Jarvis,
S Wakefield, C Walker, N Ward and P Wexham

In Attendance: Councillors | Gilbert, C Mulroney, K Robinson, M Terry and

R Woodley (Cabinet Members)

Councillors S Aylen, K Evans and C Nevin

A Lewis, J Chesterton, L Reed, E Cooney, C Robinson, S Dolling,
P Geraghty, G Gilbert and T Row

Start/End Time: 6.30 pm - 8.00 pm

738

739

Apologies for Absence

There were no apologies for absence.

Declarations of Interest

The following interests were declared at the meeting:

(a) Councillors Gilbert, Mulroney, Robinson, Terry and Woodley (Cabinet
Members) — Disqualifying non-pecuniary interests in all the referred items;
attended pursuant to the dispensation agreed at Council on 19th July 2012,
under S.33 of the Localism Act 2011;

(b) Councillor Ayling — Agenda Item No. 8 (Unmet Demand Survey for Hackney
Carriage & Private Hire) (Minute 745) — Non-pecuniary interest: Previously
worked as a cab driver;

(c) Councillor Bright — Agenda ltem No. 7 (Update on Town Centre Strategy)
(Minute 744) Non-pecuniary interest: Lives in the town centre;

(d) Councillor Cox — Agenda Item No. 8 (Unmet Demand Survey for Hackney
Carriage & Private Hire) (Minute 745) — Non-pecuniary interest: Friends are taxi
drivers;

(e) Councillor Gilbert — Agenda Item No. 7 (Update on Town Centre Strategy)
(Minute 744) Non-pecuniary interest: Place of work is close to the town centre;
and

(f) Councillor Mulroney — Agenda Item No. 5 (Draft Prioritising Resources to
Deliver Better Outcomes — 2020/21 to 2024/25) (Minute 742) — Non-pecuniary
interest: Member of Leigh Town Council which is mentioned in the report.



740

741

742

Questions from Members of the Public

The Committee noted the responses to questions that had been submitted by Mr
Webb to the Cabinet Member for Environment and Planning Cabinet Member for
Transport, Capital Inward Investment. Copies will be forwarded to him as he was
not present at the meeting.

Minutes of the Meeting held on Monday, 25th November 2019
Resolved:-

That the Minutes of the Meeting held on Monday, 25" November 2019 be
received, confirmed as a correct record and signed.

Draft Prioritising Resources to Deliver Better Outcomes — 2020/21 to
2024/25

The Committee considered Minute 692 of Cabinet held on Thursday, 161" January
2020, which had been referred direct by Cabinet to all three Scrutiny Committees,
together with a report of the Executive Director (Finance and Resources). This
presented the draft General Fund Revenue Budget for 2020/21.

Resolved:-
“That the following decisions of Cabinet be noted:

1. That the draft Financial Sustainability Strategy (Appendix 1 to the submitted
report) be endorsed.

2. That the draft Medium Term Financial Strategy (Appendix 2 to the report) and
the resulting Medium Term Financial Forecast and Earmarked Reserves Balances
up to 2024/25 (Annexes 1 and 2 to Appendix 2 to the report), be endorsed.

3. That the Section 151 Officer's report on the robustness of the proposed
budget, the adequacy of the Council’s reserves and the Reserves Strategy
(Appendix 3 to the report), be noted.

4. That the appropriation of the sums to earmarked reserves totalling £3.37
million (Appendix 4 to the report), be endorsed.

5. That the appropriation of the sums from earmarked reserves totalling £8.972
million (Appendix 4 to the report), be endorsed;

6. That General Fund net revenue budget for 2020/21 of £130.428M (Appendix
5a to the report) and any required commencement of consultation, statutory or
otherwise, be endorsed.

7. That a Council Tax increase of 3.99% for the Southend-on-Sea element of the
Council Tax for 2020/21, being 1.99% for general use and 2% for Adult Social
care (Paragraph 10.10 of the report), be endorsed.




8. That it be noted that the 2020/21 revenue budget has been prepared on the
basis of using £2 million from the Collection Fund for the core budget to allow for a
smoothing of the budget gap across the next three financial years (Paragraph 10.9
of the report).

9. That it be noted that the position of the Council’s preceptors is to be
determined:

» Essex Police — no indication of Council Tax position;

» Essex Fire & Rescue Services — no indication of Council Tax position; and

» Leigh-on-Sea Town Council — proposed precept increase ranging from 4.72% to
8.30%.

10. That no Special Expenses be charged other than the Leigh-on-Sea Town
Council precept for 2020/21.

11. That the proposed General Fund on-going budget investment and
reprioritisation of £5.355M (Appendix 6 to the report), be endorsed.

12. That the one-off investment items, as set out in paragraph 10.8 of the report
and included within the appropriations (Appendix 7 to the report), be endorsed.

13. That the schools budget and its relevant distribution as recommended by the
Education Board (Appendix 8 to the report), be endorsed.

14. That the Capital Investment Strategy for 2020/21 to 2024/25 (Appendix 9 to
the submitted report) and the Capital Investment Policy (Annex 1 to Appendix 9 to
the report), be endorsed.

15. That the new schemes and additions to the Capital Investment Programme
for the period 2020/21 to 2024/25 totalling £28.4M for the General Fund and
£18.7M for the Housing Revenue Account (Appendix 10, to the report), be
endorsed.

16. That the schemes subject to viable business cases for the period 2020/21 to
2022/23 (Appendix 10 to the report), be endorsed.

17. That the proposed changes to the current Capital Investment Programme
(Appendix 11, to the report), be endorsed.

18. That the proposed Capital Investment Programme for 2020/21 to 2024/25
(Appendix 12 to the report) be approved and it be noted that the changes to the
approved programme will result in a proposed Capital Investment Programme of
£204.8M for 2020/21 to 2024/25 (Appendix 12 to the report) of which £51.3M is
supported by external funding.

19. That the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy for 2020/21 (Appendix 13
to the report) and the prudential indicators (Appendix 14 to the report), be
endorsed.

20. That the operational boundary and authorised limits for borrowing for 2020/21
are set at £375M and £385M respectively (Appendix 14 to the report).”




743

744

745

Note: This is an Executive Function save that approval of the final budget
following Cabinet on 11th February 2020 is a Council Function
Cabinet Member: Clir Gilbert

Update on Airport Business Park

The Committee considered Minute 694 of Cabinet held on Thursday, 16th January
2020, which had been referred direct by Cabinet to the Scrutiny Committee for
consideration, together with the report of the Deputy Chief Executive and
Executive Director (Growth &Housing). This provided an update on the
development of the Airport Business Park which is being progressed with the
Council’s development partner Henry Boot Developments Ltd.

Resolved:-
That the following decision of Cabinet be noted:
“That the progress of the Airport Business Park development, be noted.”

Note: This is an Executive Function
Cabinet Members: Clirs Robinson and Woodley

Update on Town Centre Strategy

The Committee considered Minute 695 of Cabinet held on Thursday, 16th January
2020, which had been referred direct by Cabinet to the Scrutiny Committee for
consideration, together with the report of the Deputy Chief Executive and
Executive Director (Growth & Housing). This provided an update on activity
supporting the evolution of the town centre.

In response to questions regarding the locations of the proposed addition of street
furniture and green infrastructure, the Cabinet Member for Environment &
Planning gave an undertaking to circulate an indicative plan to the Committee.

Resolved:-
That the following decision be noted:

“That the progress made towards delivery of the agreed actions of the joint
scrutiny project (2018/19) set out in Appendix 1 to the submitted report, be noted.”

Note: This is an Executive Function
Cabinet Member: Clir Robinson

Unmet Demand Survey for Hackney Carriage & Private Hire

The Committee considered Minute 696 of Cabinet held on Thursday, 16th January
2020, which had been referred direct by Cabinet to the Scrutiny Committee for
consideration, together with the report of the Executive Director (Neighbourhoods
and Environment). This outlined the conclusions of the Hackney Carriage Unmet
Demand Study 2019 undertaken by LVSA (Licenced Vehicles Surveys and
Assessments) on behalf of this Authority.



746

747

Resolved:-
That the following recommendation of Cabinet be noted:

“That the current entry control policy and a limit of 276 hackney carriage licenced
vehicles is maintained and approved.”

Note: This is a Council Function
Cabinet Member: Clir Woodley

Consideration of Hamlet Court Road for Conservation Area Designation

The Committee considered Minute 697 of Cabinet held on Thursday, 16th January
2020, which had been referred direct by Cabinet to the Scrutiny Committee for
consideration, together with the report of the Deputy Chief Executive and
Executive Director (Growth & Housing). This set out details of the initial work (and
subsequent recommendations) undertaken by independent heritage consultants,
Purcell, on behalf of the Council, to review the potential of Hamlet Court Road for
Conservation Area status. The report also sought approval on the proposed
approach to consulting on Purcell’s initial report, and boundary considerations, for
this area.

Resolved:-

That the following decision of Cabinet be noted:

“That the initial report and accompanying plan (Appendices A and B, to the
submitted report) from Purcell, which sets out a potential area to consider for
Conservation Area designation at Hamlet Court Road, be approved for an initial

stage of public consultation.”

Note: This is an Executive Function
Cabinet Member: Cllr Mulroney

Southend Local Plan Update

The Committee considered Minute 698 of Cabinet held on Thursday, 16th January
2020, which had been referred direct by Cabinet to the Scrutiny Committee for
consideration, together with the report of the Deputy Chief Executive and
Executive Director (Growth & Housing) proposing a new approach for preparing
the Southend new Local Plan (SNLP).

Resolved:-

That the following recommendations of Cabinet be noted:

“1. That, in order to take forward the Southend New Local Plan in a timely,
coordinated and efficient manner, the following be approved:

(i) the preparation of a common Joint Part 1 section with Rochford District Council
covering cross-boundary strategic issues;




748

(i) the preparation of a Part 2 section covering detailed planning policy matters
for Southend.

2. That, as part of the preparation of a common Joint Part 1 Local Plan, the
following be approved:

(i) the Memorandum of Understanding (Appendix 1 to the submitted report);

(i) the Rochford and Southend Statement of Common Ground (Appendix 2 to the
report);

(iii) the revised Local Development Scheme (Appendix 3 to the report).

3. That it be noted that the joint South Essex Plan (SEP) will continue to be
prepared in partnership with the Association of South Essex Local Authorities
(ASELA).

4. That delegated authority be given to the Deputy Chief Executive and Executive
Director Growth and Housing, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for
Environment and Planning, to liaise and agree with Rochford District Council on
the most efficient use of staff and related resources to prepare the Joint Part 1
Local Plan in an efficient and cost-effective manner.

5. That delegated authority be given to the Deputy Chief Executive and Executive
Director Growth and Housing, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for
Environment and Planning, in conjunction with the Environment and Planning
Working Party, to agree and consult on preparatory drafts of the New Local Plan,
including the common Joint Part 1 and associated documentation.

6. That delegated authority be given to the Deputy Chief Executive and Executive
Director Growth and Housing, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for
Environment and Planning, to agree updates to the Statement of Common Ground
(Appendix 2 to the report) and Local Development Scheme (Appendix 3 to the
report).”

Note: This is a Council Function
Cabinet Member: Clir Mulroney

Notice of Motion - Fireworks

The Committee considered Minute 699 of Cabinet held on Thursday, 16th January
2020, which had been referred direct by Cabinet to the Scrutiny Committee for
consideration, together with the report of the Executive Director (Neighbourhoods
and Environment). This was in response to the Notice of Motion, submitted to
Council on 17th December 2019, concerning the use of fireworks.

In response to questions regarding the introduction byelaws use of ‘silent’
fireworks, the Cabinet Member for Environment and Planning gave her
assurances that the feasibility of introducing byelaws and other potential actions
available to the Council such as the use of silent fireworks only at firework
displays, would be included in the letter to the Government.




749

750

Resolved:-
That the following decision of Cabinet be noted:

“1. That the Notice of Motion submitted to Council on 17th December 2019, be
noted.

2. That, where possible, that organisers of all public firework displays within the
Borough be encouraged to advertise them in advance of the event, allowing
residents to take precautions for their animals and vulnerable people.

3. That public awareness about the impact of fireworks on animal welfare and
vulnerable people — including the precautions that can be taken to mitigate risks,
be supported.

4. That officers be requested to write to the UK Government urging them to
introduce legislation to limit the maximum noise level of fireworks to 90 decibels
for those sold to the public for private displays.

5. That local suppliers of fireworks be encouraged to stock ‘quieter’ fireworks for
public display.”

Note: This is an Executive Function
Cabinet Member: Clir Mulroney

Notice of Motion - National Community Energy Campaign

The Committee considered Minute 700 of Cabinet held on Thursday, 16th January
2020, which had been referred direct by Cabinet to the Scrutiny Committee for
consideration, together with the report of the Executive Director (Neighbourhoods
and Environment). This had been prepared in response to the Notice of Motion,
presented to the last meeting of Council, concerning the Local Electricity Bill.
Resolved:-

That the following decisions of Cabinet be noted:

“1. That the Local Electricity Bill be supported.

2. That the local press be informed of the decision and that officers be requested
to write a letter to the local MPs and the organisers of the Bill as proposed.

3. That it be noted that maximising the financial and infrastructure benefits that
may arise from this initiative will require investment in local renewable generation
in future years.”

Note: This is an Executive Function
Cabinet Member: Clir Mulroney

Notice of Motion - Safer Passage Signage

The Committee considered Minute 701 of Cabinet held on Thursday, 16th January
2020, which had been referred direct by Cabinet to the Scrutiny Committee for



751

consideration, together with the report of the Executive Director (Neighbourhoods
and Environment) responding to the Notice of Motion, presented at the last
meeting of Council. This concerned the safety of cyclists on the roads within the
Borough.

Resolved:-
That the following decision of Cabinet be noted:

“1. That support for the SEAT project and any successor DfT funded project is
continued and to encourage and champion sustainable transport within all
appropriate engineering project designs, following the principles set out in the
Highway Code:

a. Rule 163 states, “give motorcyclists, cyclists and horse riders at least as much
room as you would when overtaking a car”.

b. Rules 59 and 60 place an onus on cyclists to wear appropriate light and
reflective clothing and to use lights at night. Both these messages are conveyed
by the Forward Motion and Road Safety teams as well as advising cyclists how to
position themselves on the road.

2. That the use of variable message signs to regularly remind all road users of the
Highway Code obligation to be aware of each other’s presence and share the road
responsibly, be approved.”

Note: This is an Executive Function
Cabinet Member: Clir Woodley

Notice of Motion - Tree Cover

The Committee considered Minute 703 of Cabinet held on Thursday, 16th January
2020, which had been referred direct by Cabinet to the Scrutiny Committee for
consideration, together with the report of the Executive Director (Neighbourhoods
and Environment) responding to the Notice of Motion, presented at the last
meeting of Council, concerning tree cover in the Borough.

The Committee took the opportunity to ask the Cabinet Member for Environment
and Planning a number of questions regarding the proposed policy. These
included:

» the type of trees to planted i.e. deciduous or evergreen and the use of shrubs
etc;

» where the trees would be planted within the Borough; and

+ the inclusion within the policy of an “aspiration” to double of trees in the
Borough.

The Cabinet Member for Environment and Planning confirmed that the new policy
would be based on best practice and a tree canopy assessment and gave her
assurances that nothing would be ruled out at this stage.



752

753

Resolved:-

That the following decisions of Cabinet be noted:

“1. That the motion to double tree cover of the Borough, be noted.

2. That the management of the towns tree cover as an urban forest, be approved.

3. That it be acknowledged that tree canopy cover and an approach to planting
will form part of the upcoming Tree and Woodland Policy.

4. That the benefit that a mosaic of habitats and variety of green infrastructure
can have on the environment and the health and wellbeing of residents and
visitors, be acknowledged.

5. That the future of tree planting and the canopy cover within the Borough will be
based on an approach to be outlined in the upcoming Tree and Woodland Policy.

6. That the ongoing work to help educate and inform residents about tree
management in the Borough, be acknowledged.”

Note: This is an Executive Function
Cabinet Member: Clir Mulroney

Transport Strategy

The Committee considered Minute 707 of Cabinet held on Thursday, 16th January
2020, which had been referred direct by Cabinet to the Scrutiny Committee for
consideration, together with the report of the Deputy Chief Executive and
Executive Director (Growth & Housing). This set out an approach and timeline to
develop a transport strategy using service design principles which, once
completed, will set the context for the review of the Local Transport Plan (LTP).
The Executive Councillor for Transport, Capital, Inward Investment gave his
assurances that any reference to “Taxis” would be amended to include “hackney
carriages’.

Resolved:-

That the following decisions of Cabinet be noted:

“1. That the progress with developing a transport strategy, be noted.

2. That the timetable for engaging stakeholders about a transport strategy for the
Borough, be endorsed.”

This is an Executive Function
Cabinet Member: Clir Woodley

Additional Outcome Success Measures Reporting

The Committee considered Minute 708 of Cabinet held on Thursday, 16th January
2020, which had been referred direct by Cabinet to the Scrutiny Committee for



754

755

consideration, together with the report of the Chief Executive. This presented the
Outcome Success Measures report that provides an update on the Council’s
progression on the 23 Southend 2050 outcomes.

Resolved:-

That the following decision of Cabinet be noted:

“That the Outcome Success Measures report, be noted.”

Note: This is an Executive Function
Cabinet Member: ClIr Gilbert

2019/20 Corporate Risk Register

The Committee considered Minute 710 of Cabinet held on Thursday, 16th January
2020, which had been referred direct by Cabinet to the Scrutiny Committee for
consideration, together with the report of the Chief Executive outlining the 2019/20
Corporate Risk Register mid-year update.

Resolved:-

That the following decision of Cabinet be noted:

“That the 2019/20 Corporate Risk Register and the mid-year updates outlined in
Appendix 2 to the submitted report, be noted.”

Note: This is an Executive Function
Cabinet Member: Clir Woodley

Council Procedure Rule 46

The Committee considered Minute 712 of Cabinet held on Thursday 16" January
2020 which had been referred direct by Cabinet to Scrutiny, concerning action
taken under Standing Order 46.

Resolved:

That the following decision of Cabinet be noted:

“That the submitted report be noted.”

Note: This is an Executive Function
Cabinet member: As appropriate to the item

Chair:

10



Southend-on-Sea Borough Council Agenda
Item No.

Report of Executive Director Neighbourhoods and

Environment
To
Cabinet

16 June 2020

Report prepared by: Sharon Harrington, Head of Traffic
Management & Highways Network

Parking Review 2020
Relevant Scrutiny Committee(s): Place Scrutiny Committee

Cabinet Member: Councillor Ron Woodley
Deputy Leader (Cabinet Member for Transport, Capital & Inward Investment)

Part 1 (Public Agenda Item)

1. Purpose of Report
1.1 This Report:

a) Provides an update on progress made against the Cabinet Report of
5 November 2019.

b) Explores the risks and opportunities from the COVID-19 emergency.

c) Seeks approval for a new Parking Review 2020 Project Plan.

d) Update on the introduction of the Key worker permit (temporary)

2. Recommendations
2.11tis recommended that Cabinet:
a) notes the updates and approves the revised Parking Review Project
Plan as described in this Report
b) supports efforts to expand the function of the Traffic and Parking
Working Party to act as a monitoring and advisory panel for the
Project Management Team.

3 Background

3.1 On 5 November 2019, Cabinet approved the recommendations in the report
(Place) titled ‘Parking Review — Scope’.

3.2  The Report proposed 6 policy projects to be taken forward.

a) Resident Permit Scheme (Southend Permit/Pass)

| Parking Review Report Number : 20/018

11



3.3

b) Approach to charging and zoning for parking in car parks

c) Policy on Pavement Parking

d) Policy on parking enforcement and to tackling persistent parking fine
evaders

e) Policy on Electric Vehicles (EV) car clubs and charging points

f) Introduce policy relating to how people pay for parking

To date, the team has been focussed on drawing together data and evidence to
inform each of the project areas.

Service Update

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

Since the report was approved in 5 November 2019, the Head of Service has
revised the Project Team and appointed a consultant to undertake a scoping
exercise and ‘gap analysis’ of the service.

A key recommendation of the report was that a policy driver was required to
give the service a clear direction. This should be taken forward as a ‘policy
statement’, which could be produced much sooner than a full Parking Strategy.

It was further recommended that the function of the Traffic & Parking Working
Party be reviewed, to draw together Officers and Elected Members, providing
oversight and guidance as the projects move forward.

The remaining recommendations are being reviewed by the Head of Service,
and a service plan is being developed to drive them forward.

There has also been an introduction of a key worker permit in May 2020. These
permits are being issued for a period of three months (expiry date 18/8/20); with
a view to review whether the permit is kept available for a longer timeframe but
with the list of key workers reduced. The introduction of this permit has been
considered in line with the messaging from Government indicating that key
workers should use a car where possible; therefore it could be assumed that
many don’t use their car normally.

COVID-19

3.9

3.10

The response to COVID-19 has been unprecedented, short term impacts are
primarily limited to revenue.

Longer term impacts are largely unknown; however, the following notes and
assumptions have helped focus the proposals in this Report.

COVID-19 Impacts on Parking

3.11

3.12

Government anticipates that, at least in the short term, capacity on Public
Transport will be significantly reduced. At the time of writing, advice is to avoid
public transport and either drive, walk or cycle.

A £2bn fund was announced in February 2020, to support local authorities to
implement social distancing measures and infrastructure improvements for
walking and cycling.

Parking Review

Report Number : 20/018

12



3.13

It is anticipated there will be a significant increase in demand for parking, and
that the infrastructure for wider footways and cycling infrastructure will reduce
available capacity into the longer term.

Revised Project Plan

3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

3.20

3.21

3.22

3.23

3.24

3.25

Parking Policy Statement

A Parking Policy Statement will provide direction for the service for the period
up to delivery of a Parking Strategy and provide for policy revisions to
understand and support the short-term initiatives to support the recovery from
COVID-19.

The Statement will be drafted, and stakeholder engagement undertaken in June
2020, with a report submitted to Cabinet for approval at the July 2020 meeting.

Southend Pass

Elected Members have previously indicated a desire to provide residents a
concession for parking within the borough, promoting use of services, leisure,
and retail offerings, and a ‘shop local’ message.

Officers are working to understand the financial impact of permits, in the short
and long term, with consideration being given to the introduction of permit for
residents to support businesses and the rejuvination of the town centre.

A set of options will be submitted to Cabinet for approval at the July 2020
meeting, for implementation in at the earliest opportunity, in 2020

Policy Review

If approved, the Parking Policy Statement will provide ‘holding’ policies, giving
the service the opportunity to review historic data against the ‘new normal’ as
COVID-19 restrictions are relaxed, and develop new policies for implementation
alongside the new Parking Strategy. The parking strategy will be developed in
line with Local Plans and the Transport Strategy.

Key policies will include:
e Car Clubs
Electric Vehicle Charging
Fees & Charges (including cashless parking options)
Pavement Parking
Persistent Evaders and Offenders
Traffic Regulation Orders — policy and review (including Controlled
Parking Zones)

A programme of work will be developed, which will provide for policies to be
considered in tandem with the Parking Strategy.

Parking Strateqgy

| Parking Review

Report Number : 20/018

13



3.26

A Specification for the new Parking Strategy is being developed, and will be
informed and updated throughout 2020, with a view to procuring resources to
deliver it in early 2021.

3.27 The Strategy will be supported by a series of sub-documents, including relevant
assessments, policies, and an Implementation Plan.

3.28 The Implementation Plan will set out a new series of projects to deliver on all
obligations and aspirations relevant to Parking, particularly focussed on the
Southend 2050 vision.

3.29 Informed by a series of stakeholder and public engagement, it is anticipated the
final Parking Strategy and associated sub-documents will be submitted to
Cabinet for approval in Spring/Summer 2021.

3.30 Contracts Review

3.31 Several key contracts held by the Highways and Transport division are due to
expire in 2020/21. This review will consider existing arrangements,
benchmarking against similar authorities and market testing, with a view to
developing recommendations for new procurement exercised.

3.32 It is anticipated that the longer-term impact of this review will be a reduction in
operating costs and improved customer service. Linked to the Policy Review,
opportunities will be highlighted to future proof contracts, procure jointly or
separate elements where considered appropriate.

3.33 The programme of work will be prioritised based on the date of expiry and the
value and complexity of the contract.

3.34 Indicative Programme
Project Milestone Delivery Date
Key Workers Cabinet May 2020
Permit
(temporary)

Parking Policy Drafting / Stakeholder June 2020

Statement Engagement
Cabinet July 2020

Southend Pass Scheme Drafting June 2020
Cabinet July 2020
Implementation TBD

Policy Review Review / Policy Drafts June 2020 — December 2020
Stakeholder Engagement / | As Parking Strategy
Public Consultation As Parking Strategy
Cabinet

Parking Strategy | Specification June 2020 --August 2020
Stakeholder Engagement | August 2020
Market Test August 2020
Procurement September 2020 — October 2020
Strategy Development December 2020 — March 2021
Stakeholder Engagement / | March 2021
Public Consultation March 2021
Cabinet April 2021

Parking Review

Report Number : 20/018

14



Contracts Review | TBD | As required

4,

4.1

5.1

5.2

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

Other Options

Cabinet could decide to revise the programme or scope, or abandon elements.
Reasons for Recommendations

Following the Service Updates in Part 3.4 — 3.6 of this report, the revised project
plan has been developed to ensure it is deliverable with the ongoing
uncertainties.

The revised project plan also ensures proposals and decisions are supported by
robust strategic direction linked to corporate objectives and aspirations, with
input from Elected Representatives, public and key worker consultations where
appropriate.

Corporate Implications

Contribution to the Southend 2050 Road Map

The Road Map for 2020 focuses on Town Centres and an integrated transport
provision. The projects proposed in this Report will set the theme, immediate
and longer-term direction for the Service.

Financial Implications

With the exception of the Parking Strategy delivery, it is anticipated all other
projects will be delivered within the existing budget, including that allocated to
consultant support. A budget for the Parking Strategy will need to be developed
alongside the Specification.

Legal Implications

The Transport Act 2000 requires the Council to produce a Local Transport Plan,
it is proposed the Parking Strategy will be a sub-document of the LTP, providing
a focussed programme of work for road infrastructure and use.

Contracts will be procured in line with Council policies and procedures.

People Implications

It is anticipated existing people resources will be utilised to support and inform
projects. The requirement for support in delivery of the Parking Strategy will be
developed alongside the Specification.

Property Implications

There are no immediate property implications, however, the output could
include proposals to dispose of, renovate, repurpose or procure parking assets.

Consultation

| Parking Review

Report Number : 20/018

15



6.13

6.14

6.15

6.16

6.17

6.18

6.19

6.20

6.21

6.22

6.23

7.1

Stakeholder engagement and public consultation will be undertaken to meet
Council policy and statutory requirements.

Equalities and Diversity Implications

An impact assessment will be undertaken for each individual project.

Risk Assessment

The project team will maintain a risk register, which will be reviewed, and
actions agreed at regular project governance meetings. Where appropriate,
risks will be escalated to the Corporate Risk Register.

Value for Money

All projects identified in this report have an aspiration to deliver best value for
the Council. It is anticipated there will be efficiencies found during the contracts
and policy reviews, with new revenue generating opportunities identified in the
strategic documents.

Community Safety Implications

Traffic regulations and enforcement are tools for the Council to respond to
safety concerns on the road network. Without the significant review proposed in
this report, the absence of a strategic approach could result in the Council not
identifying or responding to issues.

Environmental Impact

The Council has declared a Climate Emergency and made several
commitments to reduce emissions. Traffic regulations are an essential part of
this effort. The strategic documents will explore how the Council could better
use its regulation and enforcement powers to improve air quality.

Background Papers

Cabinet Report, 5 November 2019

Parking Review

Report Number : 20/018

16



Southend-on-Sea Borough Council Agenda

Executive Director Neighbourhoods & Environment

: 6
Cabinet 4

on
16 June 2020

Item No.

Report prepared by: Paul Jenkinson, Head of Parks and
Open Spaces

The Protection of Public Open Space

Relevant Scrutiny Committee(s): Place Scrutiny
Executive Councillor: Councillor Carole Mulroney
Part 1 (Public Agenda Item)

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 To highlight that the availability of parks and public open spaces within the
Borough of Southend-on-Sea are limited and the current provision falls below
recommendations by Natural England.

1.2  To highlight the importance of access to public open space, the beneficial
impact on the health and wellbeing of residents and those who enjoy the public
open spaces and to highlight the wider benefits of these spaces to the
environment.

1.3  To highlight the increasing pressure on existing public open spaces arising not
least from increasing population numbers.

1.4  To highlight the increasing number of requests being received from sports clubs
and other organisations to lease public open space and to limit, restrict or
reduce pubic availability.

1.5 To establish clear and consistent guidance which can be applied by officers in
dealing with requests for the disposal of Public Open Spaces.

2. Recommendations

21 That Cabinet agrees to continue the general presumption against the
disposal of public open space in Southend-on-Sea and the ongoing
protection of these areas.

The Leasing & Disposal of Public Open Space Page 1 0f 9 Report Number: 20/021

17



2.2

23

24

2.5

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

That Cabinet agrees that existing agreements relating to areas of public
open space or buildings within them continue during their term and on
renewal or re-letting/procurement can be agreed when applicable.

That Cabinet agrees that requests for the council to dispose (by any
means) of areas of Open Space to enable their enclosure (or any other
restrictions on public use) by sports clubs or other organisations and the
exclusion of the public from enjoying those spaces are not considered to
ensure that free public access to open space is maintained. Whilst
exceptions are not expected, should they arise, such exceptions will be a
matter for Cabinet to decide upon.

That Cabinet notes that from time to time, the granting of easements and
wayleaves for services or highway widening or realignment may be
required. In these situations, the preferred position is that public access is
maintained or replacement land is sought.

That Cabinet agrees that in a situation where an area of open space has
been identified as a location which could enable the delivery of a key
council outcome, and the council has determined that the area has no or
minimal recognised benefit to the public, or a replacement space of the
same or enhanced value can be provided, the disposal will be considered
to enable the council to deliver its Outcomes.

Background

Southend-on-Sea is a densely populated urban borough with a population of
182,500 as of 2018 with a population density of 39.4 persons per hectare
compared to the national average of 4.1 persons per hectare and the East of
England average of 3.1 persons per hectare.

Southend-on-Sea has a variety of green spaces and parks across the borough.
However, the distribution of these areas is not even with some wards having
minimal or no publicly accessible green space. Although the town has a mix of
green space, the availability and quantity are well below the national average.

The borough occupies an area of 4175.60 ha (up to high watermark (the level
reached by sea at high tide)) with green space, made up of approximately 600
hectares of parks, woods and green public open space, only accounting for up
14.36% of the area. For comparison, London’s percentage of green space is
38.9%.

Natural England adopted the following standards concerning access to open
space:

e That no person should live more than 300m from their nearest area of
natural green space of at least 2ha in size.

e Provision of at least 1ha of Local Nature Reserve per 1,000
population.

e That there should be at least one 20ha site within 2km from home.

e That there should be at least one 100ha site within 5km from home.

The Leasing & Disposal of Public Open Space Page 2 of 9 Report Number: 20/021

18



3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

e That there should be at least one 500ha site within 10km from home.

The high population density of the borough means that access to public open
space, especially green space, for leisure and recreational activities is of
considerable importance to the health and wellbeing of the town’s residents.
Due to the rising population and the corresponding need to provide housing
within the town, the number of flats and houses have increasingly been
constructed with limited or no outdoor space placing an increased demand on
parks and green spaces. Therefore the protection of existing green space and
maintaining free public access is essential to support our growing population.

The recent COVID-19 pandemic has highlighted the importance of outdoor
public spaces, especially parks and green, in supporting communities and the
ongoing need for these areas to support social interaction and wellbeing.

During 2019/20 the council has received several requests from sports clubs and
other organisations looking to lease existing sports pitches they play on in the
borough, looking to relocate into Southend and set up new facilities.

For clarity within this report, lease, refers to a legal agreement by which the
council conveys land or property to another. A lease is the grant of legal interest
in land which gives exclusive possession for a fixed period of time. This form of
agreement is deemed as disposal of open space. A licence is merely a
permission granting licence by the council for another to occupy or do
something on its property.

Within the Borough’s parks we provide and maintain facilities to create
opportunities for winter and summer outdoor sports. These facilities are
available for clubs and other users able to hire. During the pre-booked games
and matches, the user has exclusive use of the pitch. However, outside of these
times, the space is freely available for the public to access as part of the green
space.

The increase in clubs and organisations looking to take over areas of the town’s
parks and green spaces is likely to be for several reasons, which are as follows:

3.10.1 A number of funders have changed their requirements, now requiring applicants

to own or have a long-term lease on any ground or facility they wish to apply for
funding for. Historically we have been able to support clubs by offering a licence
for the use of an area of a park for a set number of games per season, which
has previously been accepted by funders but maintained the area as public
open space.

3.10.2 Clubs and organisations that currently use privately owned and run facilities

have been refused longer-term leasing arrangements.

3.10.3 Clubs and organisations are unwilling to look for sites on the open market as

they are unable to pay, or do not wish to pay market rates.

3.10.4 To date all clubs and organisations who have approached the council have

been advised that leasing of an area of one of the town’s parks or green spaces
would be a disposal of public open space and against current policy.

| The Leasing & Disposal of Public Open Space Page 3 0of 9 Report Number: 20/021

19



3.10.5If all approaches received during 2019/20 had been agreed our residents and

3.11

3.12

visitors would have lost free public access to up to four areas of green space
within the borough.

Access to a network of high-quality open spaces and opportunities for sport and
physical activity is vital for the health and wellbeing of communities, and this is
considered under planning policies.

Current planning policy states that existing open space, sports and recreational
buildings and land, including playing fields, should not be built on unless:

3.12.1An assessment has been undertaken, which has clearly shown the open space,

buildings or land to be surplus to requirements.

3.12.2 The loss resulting from the proposed development would be replaced by an
equivalent or better provision in terms of quantity and quality in a suitable location.

3.12.3 The development is for alternative sports and recreational provision, the

3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

benefits of which clearly outweigh the loss of the current or former use.

It is recognised that sports clubs and other organisations can provide sports and
leisure opportunities for our communities. The council continues to offer
facilities within its parks and green spaces that these groups can use and hire.
However, it is important to ensure that public access to green space is
maintained for all the borough’s residents.

It is also recognised that without long term leases or ownership of grounds,
clubs may not be able to access funding from some funders. The availability of
funding may have an impact on the nature and operation of some clubs and
facilities. However, all funders have different requirements which are specific to
particular sports or applicants. It is not feasible for the council to accommodate
all the different funders’ requirements or therefore to support clubs and their
applications. Were the council to do so, it would be at the expense of the
provision of public open space for all to enjoy.

Not leasing areas of public open space does not prevent clubs and other groups
accessing funding, as many funding opportunities are available. With flexibility
from clubs and funders, workable solutions are possible in most situations.

In some situations, public parks are not a viable home for sports clubs who wish
to progress beyond grass root levels. In some cases, governing bodies, such as
the Football Association have conditions on ground-grading and other
restrictions that are more suited to private grounds and cannot reasonably be
accommodated in a public park without detrimental impact for residents and
other park users.

In addition to clubs and organisations looking for land, other demands that are
not sports and recreation related also put pressure on the limited green space
within the borough such as housing and commercial development. Therefore it
is essential to recognise the importance green spaces have on the health and
wellbeing of the town’s residents and visitors and also the benefits for the

The Leasing & Disposal of Public Open Space Page 4 of 9 Report Number: 20/021

20



environment including the contribution they make to the council’s response to
climate change.

3.18 It should be noted that a blanket ‘no disposal of open space’ may impact on the
way the council delivers and meets outcomes, including housing targets. It is
important, therefore that while the council maintains a general presumption
against the disposal of open space, those circumstances where Government
targets and Council Outcomes require, appropriate consideration can be given.

3.19 For the avoidance of doubt the reference to open space in this report relates to
parkland, woodland, sports pitches, amenity open spaces and those green
spaces which are managed by the council and to which the public have access.
Private land, school playing fields and farmland are not included in the remit of
this report.

3.20 It should also be noted that the recommendations in this report do not prevent
the short term hire of parks and open spaces for outdoor events, sports
matches and activities associated with the normal use of open space.

4. Other Options

4.1  Alternative Option 1. The council could take a more open view on the disposal
of land forming part of its parks and open spaces

4.2  Alternative Option 1 has not been recommended for the following reasons:

4.2.1 It would result in a significant reduction of public open space in the borough to
the disadvantage of all residents.

4.2.2 ltis unlikely to comply with planning policy.

4.2.3 The Council is obliged to meet its best consideration requirements pursuant to
section 123 Local Government Act 1972 and this is likely to present financial
challenges for local clubs.

4.3  Alternative Option 2. Allow the closure of areas of Public Open Space under
licence.

4.4. Alternative Option 2 has not been recommended for the following reasons:

4.4.1 Itwould result in a loss of free access to areas of public open space on the
assumption public access is not likely to continue to be unrestricted.

4.4.2 Due to the restriction to public access, the granting of a licence would still be
seen as a loss of public open space.

4.4.3 A licence may still provide exclusive possession of the relevant area of land,
presenting Landlord and Tenant risks and the possibility of the creation of an
unintended permanent right or tenancy.

The Leasing & Disposal of Public Open Space Page 50f 9 Report Number: 20/021

21



4.5

Alternative Option 3. Purchase commercial sites on the open market and
make these available to lease by clubs and organisations directly from the
council.

4.6 Alternative Option 3 has not been recommended for the following reasons:

4.6.1 There is nothing stopping the council from acquiring any land so it could acquire
for any purpose if appropriate.

4.6.2 The purchase of land would place financial pressure on the council and would
need to be subject to a satisfactory business case

4.6.3 The break-even point to recover the purchase cost of land via a lease for a
sports pitch use would take a significant number of years to reach making the
business case to do so very challenging

4.6.4 Clubs and organisations could purchase or lease areas of available land directly
without the need for the council to be involved, and this is a preferable route.

4.7  Alternative Option 4. Community use agreements with public access
maintained.

4.8 Alternative Option 4 is not recommended for the following reasons:

4.8.1 Community use agreements would need to be considered individually on their
own merits, including but not limited to the location and the proposed use. This
type of agreement would not be suitable for all locations.

4.8.2 Nothing in this paper or the recommendations would prevent community use
agreements being negotiated, and such arrangements are in place with, for
example, some school facilities.

5. Reasons for Recommendations

5.1 Maintaining the current availability of publicly accessible green space has a long
term benefit to the health and wellbeing of residents.

5.2  The available green space within the borough is limited, and any loss is unlikely
to be replaceable.

5.3 Greenspace has benefits to the local environment and is a benefit to the
council’s commitment to reducing its impact on the environment and tackling the
local effects of climate change.

5.4  Clubs and organisations wishing to develop into more commercial operations
have the opportunity to find a private location keeping the borough’s green
spaces available for use by all.

6. Corporate Implications

6.1 Contribution to Council’s Vision & Corporate Periorities

| The Leasing & Disposal of Public Open Space Page 6 of 9 Report Number: 20/021

22



6.1.1 Pride and Joy. “Our Streets and Public Spaces are clean and inviting.”

6.1.2 Our parks and green spaces are well used the town’s residents and visitors.
Maintaining green spaces within the communities across the borough helps
support the provision of clean and inviting town.

6.1.3 Safe and Well. “Green City - We act as a green city with outstanding examples
of energy-efficient and carbon-neutral buildings, streets, transport and
recycling”.

6.1.4 Climate Change Declaration. It is widely recognised that green infrastructure is
an integral part of tackling climate change in the urban environment. The
volume of green space within an area has a direct impact on issues such as
heat, air quality and surface water runoff.

6.2 Financial Implications

6.2.1 Not leasing out areas of our parks and green spaces will not have an
identifiable impact on the council’s financial position.

6.2.2 Maintenance of sports pitches and green spaces and the associated fees and
charges income are accounted for in the council’s budget. However, the leasing
of pitches could reduce maintenance costs.

6.2.3 The leasing or other disposal of areas of our parks and green spaces is unlikely
to generate notable sufficiently high income to justify the loss to the wider
community.

6.3 Legal Implications

6.3.1 Disposals of pubic open space are covered by legislation in the Local
Government Act 1972.

6.3.2 The Council is certainly under no legal obligation to agree to any disposal of
open space to any local sports clubs or other bodies.

6.4  People Implications

6.4.1 No people implications have been identified at this time.

6.5 Property Implications

6.5.1 Clubs opting to find alternative private grounds may leave existing pavilions
vacant (subject to lease/surrender arrangements) and these may be difficult to
re-let.

6.5.2 The Council would have additional security considerations arising from vacant
buildings in parks.

| The Leasing & Disposal of Public Open Space Page 7 of 9 Report Number: 20/021

23



6.5.3

6.5.4

6.6

6.6.1

6.6.2

6.7

6.7.1

6.8

Vacant pavilions could be hired out as part of sports pitch booking or informally
(subject to Planning and contract) or released to another sports club, but as
noted above the liability for the security, fixed overheads etc. would be at the
council’s expense. Therefore income would need to offset this.

The Councils Corporate Property and Asset Management Section have
highlighted that not disposing of public open space may have an impact on the
delivery of Council outcomes not focused on the green infrastructure and the
environment. The main outcomes that may be affected are those related to the
building of new housing.

Consultation

No public consultation has been undertaken at this time. However, if a decision
was taken to dispose of public open space, it would need to go through due
process, including advertising the proposal locally.

Local residents have responded to a recent planning application that was
submitted to fence off an area of a park by setting up a petition against the
development. Therefore public interest is likely to be high in cases concerning
disposals of public open space and any consultation concerning this subject.

Equalities and Diversity Implications
The town’s public open spaces are accessible to all sectors of the community.

Any reduction in available space may have an impact. However, this would
need to be assessed on a site specific bases.

Risk Assessment

Risk Mitigation

Loss of access to public open General presumption against the
space. disposal of public open space.

Loss of reputation as a result of | General presumption against the
disposal of public open space. | disposal of public open space.

Sports Clubs unable to secure | Work with clubs and funders on ways
funding from some funders. to accommodate funding applications
without closing off access to public
open space.

The Leasing & Disposal of Public Open Space Page 8 of 9 Report Number: 20/021

24



Negative impact of the health Protect and retain public green space
and wellbeing of residents due | within the borough.

to limited availability of public
open green space.

Negative impact on the delivery | Consideration taken on a case by

of outcomes including housing | case basis. Any impact on open space
and infrastructure impacted on. | will be considered by council and
disposal considered based on relevant
information at the time.

Council unable to deliver on its | General presumption against the
commitments to minimising its | disposal of public open space.

impact on the environment and
the climate change emergency
if green space is disposed of.

6.9 Value for Money

6.9.1 No issues identified at this time

6.10 Community Safety Implications

6.10.1 No community safety implications have been identified at this time.

6.11 Environmental Impact

6.11.1 Maintaining the existing green public open spaces within the borough will have
a benefit on the local environment including, wildlife and biodiversity, local
climate, air quality and surface water flooding as well as the environmental
wellbeing of residents.

7. Background Papers

7.1 There are no background papers.

8. Appendices

8.1  There are no Appendices

The Leasing & Disposal of Public Open Space Page 9 of 9 Report Number: 20/021

25



This page is intentionally left blank



Southend-on-Sea Borough Council Agenda
Item
Report of Executive Director for Adults and Communities No.
to
Cabinet z
on
16 June 2020
Report prepared by: Scott Dolling
Director of Culture & Tourism

The Beecroft Trust

Place Scrutiny Committee
Cabinet Member: Councillor Kevin Robinson
A Part 1 (Public Agenda Item)

1.1

2

2.1

2.2

2.3

3

Purpose of Report

To propose improved governance arrangements and decision making for the
Beecroft Trust (“the Trust”).

Recommendations

That the Council’s General Purposes Committee act on behalf of the Trust and
make recommendations for Full Council to consider.

That independent advice is provided to the Beecroft Trustee (“Trustee”) through
the General Purposes Committee to fulfil its objectives in the best interest of the
Trust.

That specific independent advice is sought and provided on the Beecroft Art
Gallery site at Station Road, Westcliff (“the Former Gallery”).

Background

3.1 The Trust, consisting of the Former Gallery and art collection, was founded in April

1949 by the late Walter G. Beecroft of Leigh-on-Sea, for the charitable objectives
for the advancement of Art, Music and Literature in the Borough of Southend on
Sea. The Former Gallery was purchased in October 1951 with Trust funds. The
gallery first opened in October 1953. Over time the collection has grown through
donations from Friends of the Beecroft Art Gallery and when Sydney Thorpe Smith
bequeathed his collection of local topographic works.

3.3 The Trust's objectives are as follows: THE PROMOTION OF THE STUDY OF

ART, MUSIC AND LITERATURE AND IN PARTICULAR, BUT WITHOUT
PREJUDICE TO THE GENERALITY OF THE FOREGOING, THE PROVISION
AND MAINTENANCE OF THE BEECROFT ART GALLERY AT SOUTHEND-ON-
SEA IN THE COUNTY OF ESSEX AS A PUBLIC ART GALLERY AND LIBRARY
(“the Charitable Objects”).

3.4 The Trust’s assets consist of the art collection and the Former Gallery. Both these

assets are investment permanent endowment, the Trust has no liquid assets.

| Report Title Beecroft Trust — Scott Dolling v2 Page 10of § Report Number 20/003

27



3.5 Following a building survey in 2013, the Former Gallery was declared to be in a
state of disrepair, having suffered structural movement and had to be abandoned
and the gallery and art collection was moved to the Council’s former central library
in Victoria Avenue (“the Current Venue”). This move was regarded as temporary
with the original expectation that the museum and gallery would all ultimately move
to the developing Thames Estuary Experience (TEE) on the seafront. In summer
2018 the Council decided not to progress with the TEE.

3.6 The Trust’s art collection is extensive and of National significance with notable
works by Constable and Reynolds. In the Current Venue there is not enough
appropriate conditioned display or storage space.

3.7 The operational objectives of the Trust are delivered by Southend Council’s
museums service located at the Current Venue. Along with the Trust's art
collection, the Current Venue is also host to other temporary art exhibitions and
lectures, The Hive business centre (2" and 3" floor) and the Jazz Centre UK
(basement).

3.8 In 2015 following public consultation on the Station Road site, a concept to convert
the space into Artist Studios was developed with Focal Point Gallery taking a lead
role. A successful Arts Council external funding bid of £500,000 was achieved
along with two donations from arts foundations.

3.9 In 2019 further structural damage was identified at the Former Gallery which put
the project out of scope for conversion. The Former Gallery building is still
deteriorating both physically and in value and presents a risk should anyone be
injured on the premises. Despite it being secured with hoardings, it has been
raided and squatters have also been present on occasion.

3.10 The Council is the sole Trustee of the investment permanent endowment,
consisting of both the Former Gallery and the art Collection which are held in trust
for the Trust’'s Charitable Objects. The Charity Commission Scheme dated the 18t
February 1980 (“the Scheme”) forms the current terms under which the Trust is
governed and how the Trustee operates the Trust. The Council’'s Constitution
permits all the Council’s elected Members to make decisions on behalf of the
Council acting as sole Trustee for the Trust. The Council’s elected Members are
required to act in the best interests of the Trust and not the Council’s interests.
Where there is any potential of a conflict of interest between the Council’s interests
and the Trust’s interests, then independent legal or professional advice should be
sought and provided to the Council in its capacity as Trustee.

3.11 The Former Gallery is dormant, deteriorating and losing value, with the art
collection being temporarily housed at the Current Venue. The Trustee should
decide expediently on the best outcome for the Charity’s sustainable future in
delivering its Charitable Objectives with specialist Charity advice in respect of the
Trust’s investment permanent endowment.

4. Other Options

4.1 The Trustee can consider whether the Trust can be wound up. This is not
recommended as it is extremely unlikely to be in the Trust's best interests.

| Report Title Beecroft Trust — Scott Dolling v2 Page 2 of 5 Report Number 20/003

28



Independent advice would be required for the Trustee and any decision made by
the Trustee will also require the approval of the Charity Commission. The Trust is
unable to give the remaining assets to another charity if there is permanent
endowment. Any assets held by the Trust cannot pass to the Council as a charity
cannot generally transfer its property to a non-charitable body or for a non-
charitable purpose.

The Trustee could continue the status quo. This is not recommended as the
Former Gallery is subject to further deterioration and diminution and this is unlikely
to be in the Trust’s best interest.

Independent advice provided to the General Purposes Committee will ensure that
the Trustee will have the viable options presented to them

5. Reasons for Recommendations

5.1 Focusing specific agenda time on the General Purposes Committee will allow due
consideration from independent advice on financial matters. Wider input from
external advisors would also be recommended to support Members of this
committee in reaching an informed view. Other trusts advertise for specialist skills
and this could be developed over time and is in alignment to support the Council’s
2050 Active and Involved agenda.

6. Corporate Implications

6.1 Trustee to manage the Trust in accordance with the Scheme, its Trustee’s duties
and the Charitable Objectives of the Trust. The Trust achieving its cultural
objectives enhances the cultural and creative agenda for Southend and this
features significantly in the Council’s Southend 2050 outcomes.

6.2 Financial Implications

6.2.1 Financial liabilities at the Former Gallery, the current revenue cost
(approximately £75,000) for the associated costs of the Trust occupying the
Current Venue and the Trust’'s employee expenses (approximately £80,000) are
currently being subsidised by the Council as the Trust produces very limited
income. The Trustee needs to consider ways it can generate income and/or
utilise its assets to ensure its future financial sustainability.

6.2.2 The Trust pays no rent to the Council for its temporary occupation of the
Current Venue.

6.2.3 The Council's Museums and Gallery team currently programme the
Trust’s art Collection for the public in the Current Venue.

6.2.4 Specialist advice will cost approximately £15k which would be made
available from the 2020/21 contingency fund.

6.3  Legal Implications

6.3.1 Liabilities as above in finance section.

Report Title Beecroft Trust — Scott Dolling v2 Page 3 of 5 Report Number 20/003

29



6.3.2 The Trustee must act in the best interests of the Charity not the Council.
Any decision by Trustee may be subject to review and/or challenge by the
Charity Commission acting as regulator.

6.3.3 The Trust at present is not potentially maximising its financial returns by
considering its options for investment of its assets consistent with its Charitable
Objectives. The Trustee must consider the Trust’'s longer-term financial
sustainability and its management and governance arrangements, with

decisions always being made in the best interests of the Trust and achieving the
Trust’s Charitable Objectives.

6.4  People Implications
N/A
6.5 Property Implications
6.5.1 The Former Gallery is in very poor condition and is at risk from further
deterioration and diminution.
6.5.2 There is insufficient storage space for the current collection at the Current

Venue.

6.5.3 The Charity are not occupying the Current Venue with the benefit of any
leasehold interest.

6.6  Consultation

NA

6.7 Equalities and Diversity Implications
NA

6.8 Risk Assessment

NA

6.9 Value for Money

NA

6.10 Community Safety Implications
NA

6.11 Environmental Impact

NA

| Report Title Beecroft Trust — Scott Dolling v2 Page 4 of 5 Report Number 20/003

30



7. Background Papers
none

8. Appendices
none

Report Title Beecroft Trust — Scott Dolling v2 Page 5 of 5 Report Number 20/003

31



This page is intentionally left blank



Southend-on-Sea Borough Council Agenda

Item No.
Report of Director of Regeneration and Growth

To
Cabinet

On
30t June 2020

Report prepared by: Emma Cooney, Director of Regeneration
and Growth
Shareholder Representative
On behalf of the Better Queensway Partnership Board

Porters Place Southend-on-Sea LLP: Progress update and final proposals

A Part 1 Public Agenda item

Relevant Scrutiny Committee: Place Scrutiny
Cabinet Members: Councillors Gilbert and Woodley

1 Purpose of Report

The purpose of this report is to provide an update to Cabinet following the
consideration of a report to the Shareholder Board on the 25" June 2020 (“The
Shareholder Board Report”).

The Shareholder Board Report specifically considers the submission of the ffinal
proposals’ as appended to this report for Porters Place Southend-on-Sea LLP
alongside the progress being made in respect of additional affordable housing.

The Shareholder Board’s Report’s purpose is to provide the Shareholder Board with
clarity and assurance in regard to the progress update and final proposals to allow
Members to fulfil their responsibilities.

2 Recommendations

21 That the progress made in relation to the Better Queensway project by
Porters Place Southend-on-Sea LLP (the “JV”), as set out in section 4 of
the Shareholder Board Report, is noted;

2.2 That information provided by the JV, as set out in section 5 and
Appendices 1 - 3 of the Shareholder Board Report, is agreed as the ‘final
proposals’ (as provided in the Initial Business Plan agreed in November
2019 “the Business Plan”) prior to submission of the first planning
application for the Better Queensway project;

33



2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

31

3.2

3.3

That authority is delegated to the Director of Regeneration and Growth in
consultation with the Leader to agree any non-material changes to the
‘final proposals’ whereupon any such matters shall be noted for
information and reported to the following Shareholder Board;

That authority is delegated to the Director of Regeneration and Growth in
consultation with the Leader, to review and assess any further documents
that are submitted to the Council by the JV to consider as part of the final
proposals process, and to sign off any of these that do not have a material
impact on the final proposals appended to this report;

That it is agreed where information in the final proposals is updated from
that in the Business Plan, this updated information will supersede the
relevant information in the Business Plan and be adopted as a revision to
the Business Plan from the date of approval of this report;

That authority is delegated to the Executive Director (Finance & Resources)
to:

2.6.1 complete the Memorandum of Understanding to be made between
the Council, the JV and Swan Housing Association that will
document the JV’s commitment to offer the Council a minimum of
100 additional affordable homes for social rent;

2.6.2 finalise negotiations and settle the terms of a formal legally binding
agreement (the “Agreement”) to capture the principles as set out in
the Memorandum of Understanding; and

2.6.3 subject to approval of the Agreement by the Council, the JV and
Swan Housing Association, bring a report to the next available
Cabinet to approve the completion and entering into of the
Agreement.

Background

The Better Queensway regeneration project (“the Project”) is a Southend 2050
roadmap project which contributes across all of the themes and outcomes as
set out in the Shareholder Board Report.

On 12t February 2019, Cabinet agreed a report appointing Swan Housing
Association (“Swan”) as the Council’s joint venture partner to progress the
Project. This was the result of a compliant procurement process through which
Swan demonstrated how the Council’'s requirements and aspirations could be
met. As provided in that Cabinet report, Swan established a subsidiary
company, thereafter confirmed as Swan BQ Ltd, as the Swan Housing
Association JV partner, specifically for the purpose of delivering the Project.

The joint venture legal entity (“the JV”), named Porters Place Southend-on-Sea
LLP, was established in April 2019 as the vehicle to progress the delivery of the
Project. Its activities are guided by a business plan. The current version of the
business plan was agreed by the JV Board, and subsequently by the two

34



3.4

3.5

3.6

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

Shareholder Members (these being the Council and Swan) in November 2019
(Cabinet minute 526 refers) in accordance with the governance procedures.

The Shareholder Board Report provides an update on progress, details the final
proposals as provided therein and the assurance sought from the Council’s
external advisors. This set of final proposals are in relation to the forthcoming
planning application, as such they contain summary details of the entire
submission. This planning submission will be a hybrid application covering the
highway in detail and the residential development in outline.

Questions were raised at the Shareholder Board concerning, but not limited to,
the highway, highways modelling and the underpass, the procurement of Swan
as the JV partner, parking, the attenuation tanks and the phasing of the Project
that were answered by Council officers and representatives from the JV and
Swan.

The Shareholder Board Report is appended to this report for consideration by
Cabinet as are the minutes from the Shareholder Board.

Other Options

Not approving the final proposals would mean that the planning application
could not be submitted in July. This would have a negative impact on the
expedient delivery of the Project and will add to the whole cost of delivery of the
Project that could impact upon any final profit share by the Council and Swan at
the end of the Project that the Council would use to reinvest in social housing.

Not approving the final proposals could also jeopardise the £15m HIF funding
from Homes England which has a deadline for spend in 2023. Therefore delays
resulting from not approving the final proposals could result in non-expenditure
by the deadline and therefore a gap in project funding.

There is also a risk to the goodwill that has been established between the
parties if the final proposals having been approved by the JV Board and
recommended for approval were not approved by the Council. The final
proposals that are subject of this report are a second iteration following the
Council not being satisfied with the first set and as advised in this report the
current final proposals are a significant improvement. Further delay would
negatively impact on the relationship between the parties.

While a significant amount of design work and options have been developed in
relation to the highway, only the highways design which brings the road up to
being level with the surrounding land i.e. at grade (and the underpass filled in)
has been assessed as a financially viable option in the bid and ensuing design
work. Other options also do not generate the regeneration uplift through the
value of place making and therefore the overall Project would potentially not
reach the necessary values to make it viable. Nor is it considered that they
would achieve the place-making and other non-financial benefits such as
reduced severance and improved physical environment.

An alternative option could be to cease progression of the work towards the
agreement in principle regarding the additional affordable rented homes,

35



5.1

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

thereby retaining the figure at 512. This would have a positive impact for the
Council in relation to the Project as it would not have to meet the gap funding
however it would not meet the requirement of the Project to maximise affordable
homes nor would it remove the need for the Council to deliver more affordable
homes in the borough and further would not support the additional commitments
as agreed at Full Council (Minute 737).

Reasons for Recommendations

Review of the final proposals concludes that the information submitted presents
some significant variations to the bid and business plan positions, but in a
complex regeneration scheme this is to be expected and the explanations for
the changes are in the spirit of the objectives. The recommended delegations
are therefore included to provide for a review of all changes and if these are
non-material in nature for these to be approved prior to planning submission
and the completion of the MOU with regards the additional affordable housing
for social rent.

Corporate Implications

As detailed in the Shareholder Board Report

Financial Implications

As detailed in the Shareholder Board Report

Legal Implications

As detailed in the Shareholder Board Report (at the end of the Financial
Implications)

People Implications

As detailed in the Shareholder Board Report
Property Implications

As detailed in the Shareholder Board Report
Consultation

As detailed in the Shareholder Board Report
Equalities and Diversity Implications

As detailed in the Shareholder Board Report

36



6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

Risk Assessment

As detailed in the Shareholder Board Report

Value for Money

As detailed in the Shareholder Board Report

Community Safety Implications

As detailed in the Shareholder Board Report

Environmental Impact

As detailed in the Shareholder Board Report

Background Papers

Initial Business Plan
Appendices

Appendix 1 Minutes of the Shareholder Board held on the 25t June 2020
Appendix 2 The Shareholder Board Report and appendices referred to therein

37



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTHEND-ON-SEA BOROUGH COUNCIL
Meeting of The Shareholder Board

Date: Thursday, 25th June, 2020
Place: Virtual Meeting - MS Teams

Present: Councillor | Gilbert (Chair)
Councillors T Cox, M Davidson, C Mulroney, R Woodley,
K Robinson, S Wakefield and *K Buck

*Substitute in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 31.

In Attendance: J Chesterton, E Cooney, G Gilbert, A Grant, G Halksworth,
N Hoskins, A Richards, L White, N Laver and R Harris

Also in attendance: F Klepping, G Kauders and S O’Malley (SWAN).

Start/End Time: 5.00 - 6.45 pm

1 Apologies for absence

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Nelson (substitute: Clir
Buck).

2 Declarations of Interest

L White and A Richards declared a non-pecuniary interest as Council
representatives on the Porters Place Southend-on-Sea LLP.

3 Porters Place Southend-on-Sea LLP - Progress Update

The Board considered a report of the Director of Regeneration and Growth
providing an update on progress of the Better Queensway project. The report
specifically deals with the submission of the ‘final proposals’ for Porters Place
Southend-on-Sea LLP alongside the progress being made in respect of
additional affordable housing. The report also provides clarity and assurance
regarding the progress update and final proposals to allow Councillors to fulfil
their responsibilities.

The Board asked a number of questions which were responded to by the
representatives of SWAN and Council officers.

Resolved:

1. That Cabinet be recommended to note the progress made in relation to the
Better Queensway project by Porters Place Southend-on-Sea LLP (the “JV”), a
set out in section 4 of the submitted report to the Board.

2. That Cabinet be recommended to approve the final proposals on the

information provided by the JV, as set out in Section 5 and Appendices 1-3 of
the submitted report to the Board (as provided in the Initial Business Plan

39



agreed in November 2019 “the business plan”) prior to submission of the first
planning application for the Better Queensway project.

3. That Cabinet be recommended to delegate authority to the Director of
Regeneration and Growth, in consultation with the Leader, to agree any non-
material changes to the ‘final proposals’ whereupon any such matters shall be
noted for information and reported to the following Shareholder Board.

4. That Cabinet be recommended to delegate authority to the Director of
Regeneration and Growth, in consultation with the Leader, to review and assess
any further documents that are submitted to the Council by the JV to consider
as part of the final proposals process, and to sign off any of these that do not
have a material impact on the final proposals appended to the submitted report
to the Board.

5. That Cabinet be recommended that it is agreed where information in the final
proposals is updated from that in the Business Plan, this updated information
will supersede the relevant information in the Business Plan and be adopted as
a revision to the Business Plan from the date of approval of the submitted report
to the Board.

6. That Cabinet be recommended to delegate authority to the Executive Director
(Finance and Resources) to:

a) Complete the Memorandum of Understanding to be made between the
Council, the JV and Swan Housing Association that will document the JV’s
commitment to offer the Council a minimum of 100 additional affordable homes
for social rent;

b) Finalise negotiations and settle the terms of a formal legally binding
agreement (the “Agreement) to capture the principles as set out in the
Memorandum of Understanding; and

c) Subject to approval of the Agreement by the Council, the JV and Swan
Housing Association, bring a report to the next available Cabinet to approve the
completion and entering into of the Agreement.

Chair:

40



APPENDIX 2

Southend-on-Sea Borough Council Agenda
Item No.
Report of Director of Regeneration and Growth
To
Shareholder Board
On

25t June 2020

Report prepared by: Emma Cooney, Director of Regeneration
and Growth
Shareholder Representative
On behalf of the Better Queensway Partnership Board

Porters Place Southend-on-Sea LLP: Progress Update
A Part 1 Public Agenda item

1

Purpose of Report

This report provides an update on progress of the Better Queensway project. This
report specifically deals with the submission of the ‘final proposals’ as appended to this
report for Porters Place Southend-on-Sea LLP alongside the progress being made in
respect of additional affordable housing. The report’s purpose is to provide the
Shareholder Board with clarity and assurance in regard to the progress update and
final proposals to allow Members to fulfil their responsibilities.

21

2.2

2.3

Recommendations

That the progress made in relation to the Better Queensway project by
Porters Place Southend-on-Sea LLP (the “JV”), as set out in section 4 of
this report, is noted,;

That information provided by the JV, as set out in section 5 and
Appendices 1 - 3 of this report, is agreed as the ‘final proposals’ (as
provided in the Initial Business Plan agreed in November 2019 “the
Business Plan”) prior to submission of the first planning application for
the Better Queensway project;

That authority is delegated to the Director of Regeneration and Growth in
consultation with the Leader to agree any non-material changes to the
‘final proposals’ whereupon any such matters shall be noted for
information and reported to the following Shareholder Board;

41



24

2.5

That authority is delegated to the Director of Regeneration and Growth in
consultation with the Leader, to review and assess any further documents
that are submitted to the Council by the JV to consider as part of the final
proposals process, and to sign off any of these that do not have a material
impact on the final proposals appended to this report;

That it is agreed where information in the final proposals is updated from
that in the Business Plan, this updated information will supersede the
relevant information in the Business Plan and be adopted as a revision to
the Business Plan from the date of approval of this report;

2.6 That authority is delegated to the Executive Director (Finance & Resources)

31

3.2

3.3

to:

2.6.1 complete the Memorandum of Understanding to be made between
the Council, the JV and Swan Housing Association that will
document the JV’s commitment to offer the Council a minimum of
100 additional affordable homes for social rent;

2.6.2 finalise negotiations and settle the terms of a formal legally binding
agreement (the “Agreement”) to capture the principles as set out in
the Memorandum of Understanding; and

2.6.3 subject to approval of the Agreement by the Council, the JV and
Swan Housing Association, bring a report to the next available
Cabinet to approve the completion and entering into of the
Agreement.

Background

The Better Queensway regeneration project (“the Project”) is a Southend 2050
roadmap project which contributes across all of the themes and outcomes as
set out in section 11.

On 12t February 2019, Cabinet agreed a report appointing Swan Housing
Association (“Swan”) as the Council’s joint venture partner to progress the
Project. This was the result of a compliant procurement process through which
Swan demonstrated how the Council’'s requirements and aspirations could be
met. As provided in that Cabinet report, Swan established a subsidiary
company, thereafter confirmed as Swan BQ Ltd, as the Swan Housing
Association JV partner, specifically for the purpose of delivering the Project
(creating this subsidiary was required due to regulatory constraints imposed on
Swan as a registered provider of social housing). For ease of reference these
two Swan entities are referred to collectively as “Swan” in this report.

The joint venture legal entity (“the JV”), now named Porters Place Southend-on-
Sea LLP, was established in April 2019 as the vehicle to progress the delivery
of the Project. Its activities are guided by a business plan. The current version
of the business plan (“the Initial Business Plan”)! was agreed by the JV Board,
and subsequently by the two Shareholder Members (these being the Council

" Initial Business Plan: This is the version of the Porters Place Southend-on-Sea LLP Business Plan which
was agreed by the JV Board and its two shareholders in November 2019

42



3.4

3.5

3.6

and Swan) in November 2019 (Cabinet minute 526 refers) in accordance with
the governance procedures.

When the Council agreed Swan as its partner for the Project on 12t February
2019 additional recommendations were also agreed which sought to maximise
the level of affordable? homes to rent (minute 737 refers). This commitment has
already being considered by the JV as agreed in the draft Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) that a recommendation is sought to approve, above, to
deliver at least an additional 100 affordable rented homes at social rents over
and above the number of affordable homes delivered by the core scheme
(currently 512 in the Business Plan and this final proposals submission). This
would be effected through the conversion of private sale units with gap funding
provided by the Council i.e. a greater percentage of the total number of homes
would be affordable rented homes as a result of this agreement. The parties
are progressing a formal legal agreement to contractually secure the principles
as set out in the MOU as recommendation 2.6 provides.

Within the Business Plan there is a provision (section 1.2.1) which states
“Quatrterly updates against the Business Plan will be reported to the LLP Board
and its two Members being Southend Borough Council (SBC) and Swan BQ.
The LLP Board, and its 2 Members, will approve the final proposals prior to
planning submission.” This report seeks to provide comment and assurance on
the progress update and information presented in advance of a planning
submission expected in July 2020. This is a complex regeneration project
which will be delivered in phases, therefore the information presented in this
report does not seek to address all aspects of the Project as it will see changes
as it progresses, however no material changes from this final proposals
submission can be submitted to planning without further review by the JV Board
and its 2 Members.

This set of final proposals are in relation to the forthcoming planning application,
as such they contain summary details of the entire submission. This submission
will be a hybrid application covering the highway in detail and the residential
development in outline through parameter plans, an lllustrative Masterplan and
a detailed Design Code (a document submitted as part of the planning process
which combines text and diagrams which fixes and explains the precise

2 Affordable Housing: housing for sale or rent, for those whose needs are not met by the market
(including housing that provides a subsidised route to home ownership and/or is for essential local
workers):

a)

Affordable housing for rent: the rent is set in accordance with the Government’'s rent policy for
Social Rent or Affordable Rent, or is at least 20% below local market rents (including service
charges where applicable)

Starter homes

Discounted market sales housing: is that sold at a discount of at least 20% below local market
value.

Other affordable routes to home ownership: includes shared ownership, relevant equity loans,
other low cost homes for sale (at a price equivalent to at least 20% below local market value) and
rent to buy (which includes a period of intermediate rent)

Explanation based on the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2019 Annex 2

3 Reserved Matters Application: The application for approval of reserved matters form should be used after
an outline planning application has been approved. A reserved matters application deals with some or all of
the outstanding details of the outline application proposal, i.e. where outline permission has been granted, the
JV may, within three years of the outline approval, make an application for the outstanding reserved matters,
i.e. the information excluded from the initial outline planning application. This will typically include information
about the layout, access, scale and appearance of the development.

3
43



3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

requirements for the physical elements, streets, buildings contained within the
planning application) for all aspects of the scheme. The phase 1 A housing will
subsequently be submitted as a Reserved Matters Application: (RMA) later in
the year. Further sets of final proposals relating to future planning submissions,
whether they be phases or other requirements will be brought forward through
the same process for approval by the Council over the lifetime of the Project.

The November 2019 Cabinet Report contained a delegation to the Director of
Regeneration and Growth, in consultation with the Leader, to agree non-
material changes to the Business Plan. (minute 526 refers) This Cabinet Report
further recommended that the Council agree with the JV the principles and
process of establishing what constitutes the “final proposals” which are to be
submitted to the Council for approval and the subject of this report, prior to
submission of the planning application. The Council has agreed with the JV the
form of final proposals.

The final proposals presented in this report are not the final and exact design for
the whole Project, they are a summary of what will be applied for through the
planning process. Proposals as to detail and design of future phases not
captured within these final proposals nor in an approved business plan, at that
time, will be contained in a future report of final proposals’ for that element of
the Project as they are submitted to planning.

The role of the Shareholder Board in reviewing the final proposals is to
represent the Council’s interests as Shareholder which includes its interests as
both body corporate and landowner, and as such to ensure that what is being
submitted to planning is in line with the Council’s aspirations and objectives as
originally set out during procurement and thereafter developed as the Project
progresses and are fully considered in the work of the JV.

It is also important to remind Councillors that the role of the Council as
Shareholder is distinct and separate to the Council’s functions as the Local
Planning Authority (LPA) acting through its Development Control Committee
(DCC). The Council, as landowner, can submit a planning application to itself for
DCC to consider. In this case the JV, of which the Council is a 50% partner, will
submit the planning application, therefore the Council will have an interest in
this application. The Council’s constitution recognises this and there are rules
concerning predetermination and bias and the process will be kept under
review. The Councillors that sit on DCC will be advised about predetermination
and retaining an open mind with regard to the final officer report that sets out
the relevant policies and material considerations in relation to the planning
application which DCC should consider. Therefore it follows that whilst it may be
the case that the final proposals are approved by the Council as landowner, the
planning application may or may not be recommended for approval by officers,
albeit the JV will work with the Council in its role as LPA, to try and resolve any
issues so arising or, alternatively, Councillors who sit on DCC may not agree
with the planning officer’'s recommendation.

The Business Plan forms the baseline for project progression and future

versions of the Business Plan will perform the same function. Therefore, where
the information agreed in this set of final proposals updates that in the Business

44



3.12

3.13

3.14

41

4.2

4.3

Plan, this will supersede it and be adopted as a revision to the Business Plan
from this date.

The set of documents constituting final proposals in relation to the forthcoming
planning application has been submitted to the Council by the JV for review
following approval by the Porters Place Southend-on-Sea LLP board on 27"
May 2020. Whilst the final proposals will, to a significant degree be replicated in
the planning application, they are presented as the attached JV report to
confirm in narrative form how the procurement objectives have been met and as
a snapshot of the Project at present. These documents have been reviewed by
the Council’s relevant Council officers and its procured specialist advisors.
Commentary and assurance and the highlighting of the main Project risks and
mitigation of these resulting from that review are captured in this report so as to
assist Members in their decision making in relation to final proposals.
Appended to this paper is the report of the JV’s Project Director (Appendix 1)
and key drawings (Appendix 2), as well as a table demonstrating how the
objectives have been met (Appendix 3) and the structure of this report will follow
that of the Project Director for ease with an introductory section summarising
progress to date.

As set out in paragraph 3.9 of this report the purpose of the ‘shareholder’ review
of the final proposals is to ensure that the JV and the Council’s objectives are
being met through the scheme being set out, and that the Council is content as
a Member of the JV with the scheme being submitted to planning. Therefore,
the report will focus on the development of the scheme since it was last
presented and analysis of the final proposals in relation to the objectives.
Agreeing the final proposals as presented in this report will allow the JV to
submit its planning application to the LPA in July and progress with delivering
the Project.

The planning application that the JV is submitting will be a hybrid application
seeking outline consent for the whole site through parameter plans with detail
for the highway, and an lllustrative Masterplan as well as a detailed Design
Code for all aspects of the scheme. This will be followed later in the year by a
RMA for the first phase of housing. This is a variation to the approach set out in
the Business Plan which has been agreed by the JV Board and is to maintain
the pace of the Project and therefore stay on course to meet the deadline for the
Housing Infrastructure Funding (HIF) of £15 Million secured from Homes
England for the Project with a condition that these funds have to be spent by
March 2023.

Progress Update

Updates on the progress of the Project have been provided to the Council and
are summarised below.

The JV and Swan have introduced themselves locally to residents and
stakeholders in the context of the Project and the JV has embedded a
Community Liaison Officer at the heart of the community engagement work.

The Project Director has confirmed that the project team has been
supplemented with two Development Managers from Swan assisting with the

5
45



4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

detailed work in relation to residential and non-residential uses within the
masterplan. A full time Senior Development Manager is in the process of being
recruited and is expected to be in post by summer 2020. The full design team,
including all sub-consultant disciplines, has now been appointed.

A Housing Needs Survey to understand the needs of those who currently live on
the Queensway estate, has been completed. The results of this, in parallel with
the analysis of site and delivery constraints, are informing the configuration of
the first phase of housing to ensure that suitable homes can be provided for the
first residents to move in line with the phasing strategy for the Project. These
surveys are to be undertaken every 6 months and a new survey is now due to
be undertaken to give up to date information to the JV to aid and assist the
development of the RMA for the first phase of housing (phase 1A).

Two periods of public engagement and consultation were held over the autumn-
winter period of 2019/2020 meeting the Council’s objective of “keeping all
relevant stakeholders engaged and informed in an open, honest, timely and
appropriate way”. These were widely advertised, undertaken through a range of
media and attracted good levels of interest. There have also been sessions
specifically for Councillors, residents, businesses and the Youth Council. The
second consultation period was extended to accommodate the level of interest
and number of groups to be engaged. The consultations were to gauge
opportunities in relation to the Project, ensure the wider community in Southend,
but particularly residents of the estate, feel that they are part of the Project and
able to shape and influence it, and to understand views on high-level principles,
building on the consultation which the Council undertook in 2017 and the
requirements set out in the procurement with a view to informing the final
proposals. These sessions were very well attended (see Appendix 2 drawing 1).
They also form part of the planning process and a summary will be included
within the Statement of Community Involvement® which will be submitted as part
of the planning application.

The consultations have captured quantitative and qualitative feedback,
particularly hearing the ‘resident voice’ of their lived experience of life on
Queensway currently and hopes for the new development.

The feedback from the consultations has largely been in support of the
regeneration with particular support for measures to improve safety and
security, greening and environmental sustainability, locally affordable homes
and safe pedestrian crossings. Concerns and alternatives / options were also
raised in regards to the highway in particular. These are addressed in section 6
of this report. All the feedback will be captured in a report within the Statement
of Community Involvement as part of the planning application which will bring
together both rounds of public consultation and all feedback received with a
more detailed breakdown of responses.

Additional design work and generation of options has been undertaken in
response to the feedback, particularly in relation to the highways design. While
this has led to a slight delay in the timetable for submission of a planning
application, it is illustrative of authentic consultation where feedback has
genuinely been used to explore options and ideas. A preferred highways design

3 Statement of Community Involvement is the explanation of public participation in the preparation
of development documents.

6
46



4.9

410

4.1

412

5.1

has been selected by the JV design team and this is the one included within
these final proposals. This scheme has been through vigorous testing and
iterations and the submitted scheme is the only scheme that proves to meet the
Council and JV’s objectives and viable and importantly, deliverable by the JV. If
any amendments are required in advance of the planning submission, as a
result of the ongoing transport modelling these will be presented to the Council
for review. . If these changes are non-material they can be signed off through
the delegation detailed at paragraph 2.3 above. If the changes are material this
will trigger a new final proposals process.

The Highway scheme has not changed significantly from that approved when
selecting our partner in February 2019 and remains at grade throughout as
already agreed by the Council.

Subject to final proposals being agreed by both the Council and Swan, the JV is
intending to submit a hybrid planning application in July which will be outline* for
the whole site and detailed for the highway. This is with a view to starting on
site in 2021. This is important both for expedient delivery of the Project which
was sought by the Council during procurement and has been fed back by
residents, as well as to meet the Housing Infrastructure Fund (HIF) milestones
and deadlines requiring to be spent by the 31st March 2023.

The Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) scoping report was submitted by
the JV to the Council as LPA on 30t April 2020 as part of the usual planning
application process. This publicly available document includes information about
the possible total scope of development for comment and is not a commitment
to delivery of the exact numbers and mix contained therein. Consultation
responses have not yet been received from all agencies due to their adjusted
working practices under the Covid19 lockdown. The result of this may be that
the process identifies issues which need to be addressed prior to submitting a
planning application. The extent of these possible changes will determine
whether the final proposals need to be adjusted, and whether these
amendments can be dealt with through the delegated authority detailed above
or whether a second final proposals submission is needed. However, early
engagement with consultees did not highlight any issues.

Separately, but alongside the work of the JV, the HIF grant agreement was
signed by the Council and Homes England in December 2019 which is an
important milestone in securing the funding and the terms under which it must
be used and monitored.

Final Proposals

The report of the JV’s Project Director summarises the scheme being submitted
for final proposals and sets out how it has developed in line with the JV and
Council objectives and Business Plan. The rest of this report, will seek to follow
the structure of the JV Project Director Report (Appendix 1) for ease,
highlighting changes which have come about through the development of the
final proposals and providing commentary/assurance relevant to these different

4 Outline planning permission: This is not a permission to start work on site. The permission notice will
state which matters have been reserved for later approval. When all of the reserved matters have been
approved, work may begin on the site.

7
47



5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

sections. Appendix 3 maps the final proposals against the procurement
objectives for completeness.

The Council’s specialist advisers have reviewed the report. That review
identified a number of areas that required clarification and points that needed to
be resolved. The material points are addressed in this report, the non material
points are capable of resolution subsequent to this report and will be addressed
separately with the JV.

Councillors are reminded that the JV’s Project Director’s report has not been
prepared by the Council and is a report of the JV that the Council needs to
consider. Therefore, the Council, the JV and Swan may have differing views of
some points of the process or documentation. The intention is for Officers to
collate a table of such matters and return this to the JV for consideration. All
points will need to be addressed prior to the JV planning submission, as such, if
any issues arise in settling these points these would be brought back to the
Council for review prior to this submission.

Section 1 of Appendix 1provides an Executive Summary of the Project and work
undertaken in developing it. It is important to note that a number of elements of
procedure are incorrect, however, the general briefing of the scheme is
accurate. These elements have been corrected within this cover report. One
example to highlight is paragraphs 1.3 and 1.12 of the appended report referring
to ‘material/non-material’ changes. The Council reviews all changes from the
original scheme and can comment and accept or decline any of these.

Assessing whether changes to the scheme impact on the objectives is a
complex assessment as one change could have a direct or indirect impact
which may be considered significant. For example, an increase in housing
numbers may be considered positive and in line with the objectives but if the
consequence of this is reduced green space this may contradict another
objective. Members should be reassured that Officers and project specialist
advisors are reviewing all changes in view of this complexity and not looking at
matters in isolation.

Sections 2-7 of the report provides background to the JV and final proposals
which sets the scene and historical context.

Section 8 “Design and Planning” sets out a summary of the scheme being
presented for final proposals. One significant omission from the report is a
summary of the approach to planning that is being taken, and in particular the
actual planning submission. As explained elsewhere in this report the planning
submission includes the following elements:

2.6.1 Detailed Highways design application;

2.6.2 Outline application for the remainder of the scheme, including:
i. Parameter plans — showing the development parameters that could
be brought forward on the scheme such as housing numbers
(between 1,669 and 1,760 homes), parking ratios (0.5 to 1 per home)
and height limits and where they sit on the site (up to 18 storeys);
ii. lllustrative Masterplan for the lower of these parameters; and

48



2.6.3

26.4

2.6.5

2.6.6

2.6.7

2.6.8

2.6.9

iii. A detailed Design Code setting a number of elements of the look and
feel of the housing and other development and design principles that
will underpin the future reserved matters applications

Following the significant omission as referred at 5.7 above being raised
with the JV an explanation was received relating to the JV planning
approach and the parameters being applied for. This is summarised
below at 5.7.6 to 5.7.22.

The final proposals process is in place for the JV Board to review and
approve each submission to planning and for this then to be presented to
the two Members/Shareholders of the JV for them to review, comment on
and if appropriate, approve. The final proposals process must be
completed in advance of any planning submission and must be approved
by the JV Board and two Members. The final proposals presented must
be an accurate representation of the specific planning submission to be
made but can be presented in summary form, for ease of understanding.

Any changes in the information to be submitted to planning following
approval of the final proposals must be approved by the JV Board and
two Members before the planning submission. If these changes are not
material these can be reviewed, and if appropriate, approved by the
Council through the delegation at 2.3. If material changes occur this will
trigger a new final proposals process to the JV Board and two Members.

The hybrid application is for the highways solution in detail (comprising
scale, appearance, landscaping) and the development plots in outline. It
is important to stress that for the outline elements, only the principle of
the development would be approved within the building envelopes
applied for through the parameter plans. The future details of exact
height, use and amount of development within buildings, as well as
external appearance of buildings, access and landscaping would all still
need Council approval — in the form of RMAs, although many elements
of this will be set by the Design Code that is submitted with this final
proposals process.

The outline element of the application is formed of the Parameter Plans
and this Design Code.

The Access, Land Use and Building Heights Parameter Plans establish a
three-dimensional volume of development, defining maximum heights,
and footprints of buildings and location of access routes that would break
up the built form. The Design Code then adds a further layer of principles
to lead subsequent RMAs. The illustrative masterplan is one possible
example of how a scheme could respond to or be in accordance with the
parameter plans and the principles of the design code. It is an illustrative
form of buildings into which different mixes of accommodation, in line
with the parameter plans and design code, could be placed.

The individual phase detail will be dealt with through a RMA brought
forward on a phase by phase basis based on the principles approved in

49



the Design Code as you would typically expect for a scheme of this
timescale and complexity.

2.6.10 The individual phase reserved matters applications will each have to
demonstrate compliance with the parameter plans i.e. they will need to fit
within the envelope established and will also need to demonstrate how
they comply and respond to the Design Code. For each individual
reserved matters application, appropriate assessments to ensure this all
works and complies with the wider scheme will have to be provided for
example townscape/visual impact assessments, daylight sunlight
analysis and wind and microclimate analysis. It will not be possible to
depart from the parameter plans or the Design Code without the
Council’s approval through the final proposals process or the LPA
through the planning process. The RMAs will each reference these
documents through the final proposals and planning process, and
officers and members will have the opportunity as highlighted above to
determine the details of each future phase.

2.6.11 The illustrative masterplan as presented is just one example of how this
project could eventually be delivered and is a way of setting out how the
project could be brought forward at this point in time.

2.6.12 The JV have approved the outputs from the illustrative masterplan which
demonstrates capacity for 1,669 homes based on an assumed
accommodation mix of 40% 1 bed homes, 50% 2 bed homes and 10% 3
bed homes. The form of the illustrative masterplan fits within the
parameter plans and is compliant with the proposed design code for the
scheme.

2.6.13 The exact number of each dwelling type in an individual RMA will be
aligned with the unit mix parameter which allows between 40 — 50% 1
bed homes, 40 — 50% 2 bed homes and a minimum of 10% 3 bed homes
to be delivered across the scheme and in each phase.

2.6.14 The JV is seeking this flexibility in order to allow for evolving decant
requirements phase to phase as the housing needs of existing secure
tenants and the proportion of secure tenants wishing to return to new
homes on the new estate, along with market needs, will vary over the
course of the delivery of this long-term project.

2.6.15 The exact unit mix for an individual phase will be fixed at the point each
RMA is brought forward and the JV and the two Members, will approve
each of those through the final proposals process.

2.6.16 As a result of the application of the range of accommodation across the
whole of the illustrative masterplan, it is also possible to accommodate
up to 1,760 homes within the same illustrative masterplan i.e. within the
same footprint of the plots.

2.6.17 The hybrid planning application will therefore reference a maximum of
1,760 homes and any affordable housing viability assessment required
by the LPA will also likely be run on the 1,760 home number.

10
50



2.6.18 For Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) purposes, the EIA
assessments have been run based on a higher level of homes of up to
1,800 homes where the number of dwellings informs the outcome in line
with the screening opinion submitted for up to 1,800 homes or the
relevant maximum parameter, however the planning application is limited
to 1,760 homes.

2.6.19 As an illustration of how this same illustrative masterplan with the same
floor area assumption could accommodate a number of different mixes
within it; we have prepared the following examples:

Total Homes 1b/2p 2b/3p 2b/4p 3b/5p 3b/6p
1669 40% 0 50% 9.7% 0.3%
1729 40% 25% 25% 9.7% 0.3%
1760 50% 20% 20% 9% 1%

2.6.20 The lllustrative masterplan at 1,669 represents the minimum proposed
number of dwellings and there is also a proposed cap on the commercial
floorspace across the masterplan of 10,000 sgm.

2.6.21 As the above analysis has shown the Design Code is a critical document
as once approved through the planning process all RMA’s will need to
comply with it. It therefore sets many key principles for the development
of housing, commercial and other uses. The previous scheme complied
with the Design Policy and Principles document developed for the
procurement process, and there is a need for the JV to continue to
comply with this Design Policy and Principles document through this new
Design Code.

2.6.22The Design Code is still being developed, however, there is a
commitment from the JV that the new Design Code will comply in full with
the previous Design Policy and Principles document. As such the
delegation at 2.4 will be used to review the Design Code, before it is
submitted to planning, to ensure it does comply with this document. If
there are any non material variances from this Design Policy and
Principles document these can be approved through this delegation,
however, if there are any material amendments this will trigger a second
final proposals process.

5.8 Appendix 3 (summary table against objectives) captures how the final proposals
meet the original objectives as were agreed by the Council on 13t February
2018 (minute 743 refers) prior to procurement. There was also a set of
minimum criteria which were:
5.8.1 Demolition of the four tower blocks
5.8.2 An increase on the 441 affordable homes currently on site

5.8.3 Delivery of a highways scheme with four lanes

5.8.4 Equivalent tenancy terms and conditions under an assured tenancy for
existing Queensway tenants who return to the site

11
51



5.9

The overview provided in Section 8 confirms minimum criteria b) and c) with
supporting documentation confirming criteria a) and d).

The Project must also be financially viable. The bid submission and business
plan set out a financially viable scheme that Swan considers will meet the
required hurdle of 15% profit on Sales Gross Development Value (GDV),
subject to certain amendments to the legal suite as a result of inconsistencies in
Swan’s model at contract close. This is explained in more detail in the
assurance section and financial implications section below.

Sections 9-14 provide a position of the final proposals and section 15 outlines
the changes made in reaching this set of final proposals.

12
52



€§

5.10 The table below captures against a series of themes a summary of the scheme being presented through final proposals and officer
and advisor commentary upon these. This is then mapped against the procurement objectives in Appendix 3*.

Theme

Scheme Development & Summary of Final
Proposals

Officer Commentary

a) Housing - See Appendix 1
Section 11 & Appendix 2
drawings 2, 6, 7, 14-18.

The previous scheme, included within the Initial
Business Plan, contained 1,658 units. The
planning application to be submitted by the JV
has increased housing numbers as a result of
significant work carried out in the intervening
period. The outline planning application is being
submitted with a set of parameters for
development. In housing numbers this is for a
development that will deliver between 1,669 and
1,760 homes (an increase of between 11 and 102
homes). These plans are shown in Appendix 2
along with the lllustrative Masterplan. This
Masterplan shows how the lower of these
parameters (1,669) could be developed on the
site.

As the scheme design progresses there may be
an opportunity to increase this number. A
reduction in the total number of homes from these
parameters (1,668 minimum) would have to go to
the JV Board and the two shareholders for
agreement.

The number of affordable homes in the illustrative
masterplan remains at 512 and the mix of
bedroom sizes is in line with the previous

The Council’s housing team welcomes the overall
affordable housing numbers increasing from 441
to 512 which represents 30.61% of the overall
housing delivery on site. This will contribute to
developing a sustainable community on the new
site moving forwards. This is also in line with the
housing numbers contained within the previous
scheme shown in the Business Plan.

The wider phasing plan and associated affordable
housing therein will need to meet decant needs of
current tenants of the Queensway estate which
will be monitored and agreed via the Housing and
Decant Work stream meetings. There have been
a number of changes to the phasing plan from the
previous scheme, these are highlighted below in
this report.

In terms of wider housing considerations,
improved levels of natural surveillance are
welcomed and will be beneficial for housing
management. Improved areas of amenity space in
regards to the public open spaces and play
spaces will assist with the health and wellbeing of
residents.

13




4]

Theme

Scheme Development & Summary of Final
Proposals

Officer Commentary

scheme. Further detail of the housing submission
is included within Section 11 of the JV report
(Appendix 1) and the drawings and diagrams in
Appendix 2.

b) Massing - See Appendix 1
Section 15.2 & Appendix 2
drawing 5.

There have been a number of changes in
massing from the scheme included within the
Initial Business Plan. These have been as a
result of requirements that have arisen over the
intervening period. The key reasons for changes
are as follows:

e Concerns from the LPA in terms of the
massing on the site in some locations
(for example along Sutton Road)

e A change in parking strategy that has
removed basement parking and
increased height to accommodate
parking being located in podiums at the
ground floor

e A change in energy strategy that has
required additional plant and equipment
to be located on roofs, increasing height

e A need for additional housing to
increase viability as a result of costs
identified within the scheme.

This has resulted in additional height in strategic
locations, changes in layout that have changed
green space provision and changes in massing to

While important work still remains to be done on
establishing a suitable massing approach for the
scheme there has been a very positive direction
of travel on this matter since the initial bid stage.
Massing is captured in this submission through 2
main elements:

e Parameter Plans — These show the
potential massing on the site and applies
for outline permission to develop a scheme
of this massing on the site. Detailed
design would however be subject to RMAs.
This parameter plan is in line with the
Indicative masterplan included at Appendix
2 and shows height in the same locations
as well as the extent of parking etc. This is
included at Appendix 2.

e |lllustrative Masterplan — This is a more
detailed representation of the potential
scheme at the lower end of the parameters
(1,669 homes) shown in Appendix 2. This
shows the potential massing for this
scheme.

14




qS

Theme

Scheme Development & Summary of Final
Proposals

Officer Commentary

accommodate LPA comments.

These have both been reviewed by the Council
and whilst there is still work to be done they show
good progress.

c) Basement extent & parking
strategy - See Appendix 1
Section 15.3 & Appendix 2
drawing 8.

There is a reduction to the extent of the proposed
basement area which contained parking as
illustrated in the bid scheme due to site
constraints identified post-bid. The proposed
solution is to allocate the majority of car parking in
podium® and multi-storey car park structures with
some temporary solutions to support individual
phases.

This approach does not present any particular
challenges from a planning aspect. There will
however be significant impacts on the look and
feel of the site due to parking uses being based at
street level and a significant new multi storey car
park being introduced. The detail of how these
challenges will be addressed will be through the
RMA process.

The introduction of 20% of spaces having EV
charging and pre-wiring for the rest is welcome.

5 Podium parking is parking provided under a building at street level i.e. it is sheltered under a building that is elevated.

15




99

Theme

Scheme Development & Summary of Final
Proposals

Officer Commentary

d) Building heights - See
Appendix 1 Section 15.4 &
Appendix 2 drawings 4-6.

Some of the buildings proposed in the final
proposals scheme are taller than was set out in
the bid submission. However they will be lower
(due to the Queensway site sitting lower due to
the lay of the land) than the tallest building at the
bottom of Victoria Avenue (Alexander House).To
be clear this means that whilst 2 of the proposed
building are slightly higher in actuality (if stood
side by side to Alexander House) if a horizontal
line was draw across the top from Alexander
House (including the mast) the proposed buildings
would be very slightly shorter. This in line with

guidance received from London Southend
Airport. The tallest building in the scheme
(including plant) is proposed to be 62.1m

measured to the flue. This is 16.67m higher than
the tallest building on Queensway currently.

This is partly driven by changes to environmental
regulations and the need to accommodate
renewable technology in the overall building
design and height. Also due to the introduction of
communal areas on the ground floor.

If the heights now proposed are not objected to by
the airport, which the Council is advised is the
case, then the principle of buildings this tall is
unlikely to raise issues on other design grounds.
This matter would be the subject of further
consideration on specific parts of the site through
the landscape \visual impact assessment,
parameter plans, design code and the individual
reserved matters applications. Collectively this
should offer sufficient control to ensure a suitable
design response.

The Council's and JV objectives require the
development of a scheme that limits height. The
aspiration of the Council was to limit height to 12
storeys whilst also balancing the need to deliver
higher amounts of parking and increases in
affordable housing.

The new scheme presented through final
proposals does not provide any more affordable
housing or parking and significant new height.
This additional new height has been required for
the following reasons:

The basement car parking has been removed
from the previous scheme as upon more detailed
analysis it was proving a significant drag on
viability due to the costs of excavation and was an
impediment to the phasing strategy that has been
developed.

16




LS

Theme

Scheme Development & Summary of Final
Proposals

Officer Commentary

17




8§

Theme

Scheme Development & Summary of Final
Proposals

Officer Commentary

18




65

Theme

Scheme Development & Summary of Final
Proposals

Officer Commentary

Car parking has therefore largely been moved up
a level, to the ground floor in a podium approach
necessitating an additional floor to be added to a
number of the blocks.

Due to the predominantly parking use at the
ground floor it was necessary to try and activate
the frontages in order to improve the quality of the
environment and improve security. Therefore
alongside these parking uses more commercial
and community concierge space has been added
at ground floor level. This helps mitigate the issue
of inactive space through car parking fronting the
street level.

Due to changes in the energy strategy there has
been a need to locate additional plant and
equipment on the roofs of the blocks. This has
increased height by a storey.

A number of these changes have caused
significant challenges to the viability of the
scheme. These costs are largely being recovered
through increasing the number of the units on the
site, by between 11 and 102 units (as per the
parameter plan). In addition, due to the additional
height this provides more high value units with
sea views enabling a premium to be charged for
these homes.

19




09

Theme

Scheme Development & Summary of Final
Proposals

Officer Commentary

The JV has sought to balance the needs of the
scheme in terms of viability and delivery with the
need to try and limit height whilst maintaining car
parking and affordable housing numbers. Of
these three factors it was felt that height should
be increased rather than the other two factors
reduced, the additional height has been limited as
much as possible and therefore additional height
shown is warranted.

e) Highways alignment - See
Appendix 1 Section 10 and
section 15.5 & Appendix 2
drawings 1,5,6,7,11.

Due to the significance of the highway being the
only part of the planning application below this a
detailed submission this is referenced more fully
in section 6 below.

Please see section 6 below.

f) Phase 1A & Porters Park
See Appendix 1 Section 15.8
& Appendix 2 drawings
1,5,10,12.

Within the scheme shown in the Initial Business
Plan a larger Porters Park space is included than
the one included within the final proposals
submission. The principle reasons for the
reduction in scale of this space are as follows:

e Changes in massing across the site that
has necessitated a new building to be
added to the East of the park to
accommodate homes and parking. The
reason this block was located here was
that it was felt that the reduction in green
space in this location would not
fundamentally reduce the activities that

The new approach leads to a smaller main park
area than was reviewed in the Initial Business
Plan, but this space is not lost, it is redistributed
across the site.

The success of this approach will be dependent
upon the quality and usability of the spaces
created. Although the revised approach makes
this more challenging it assists the project in other
regards and it remains possible to create good
quality usable open spaces across the site. This is
a matter which can be addressed through the
planning application stage of the process.

20




T9

Theme

Scheme Development & Summary of Final
Proposals

Officer Commentary

could take place in the park. This has also
led to the redistribution of this green space
to other locations across the site. This has
resulted in an additional benefit of
improved accessibility of the area and
providing a green link from the park
towards the town centre. Overall the area
of green space is in line with the previous
scheme and the area will benefit from
significantly more green space than is
found there currently.

e The Park has also been brought forward in
the programme. This is to facilitate a better
living environment being achieved earlier in
the scheme and to activate the earliest
occupiable spaces and provide support for
them through the community concierge
service.

g) Cycling - See Appendix 1
Section 15.9 & Appendix 2
drawings 1,2,3,9.

The overall cycling routes have not significantly
changed from the bid submission. Various options
around Short Street and the South section of the
Queensway have been reviewed to enhance the
current network of Cycle Lanes.

Secure cycle stores will be contained within the
curtilage of each residential building for residents.
Extra external public cycle storage units are
planned strategically across the site to encourage

The proposal links with the existing town centre
cycle ring route to provide improved north/south
connections. The addition of cycle crossing points
assists with east west movements, which is a
significant improvement of the existing situation.

21




29

Theme

Scheme Development & Summary of Final
Proposals

Officer Commentary

visitors to cycle and remain and use the park and
plaza.

h) Street planting - See

Appendix 1 Section 15.10 &
Appendix 2 drawings
9,10,12.

Additional green space which did not feature in
the bid proposal has been added across the rest
of the development, including a green link® from
the park towards the town centre. The green
space at the heart of the development is slightly
smaller than in the bid proposal, but would not
fundamentally reduce the activities which could
take place there. Overall the area of green space
is in line with the previous scheme and the area
will benefit from significantly more green space
than is found there currently.

It would be helpful to have a clear written
commitment to at least 2 for 1 replacement
planting. This has been agreed verbally however.
This is a matter which can be addressed through
the planning application stage of the process.

Phasing strategy - See
Appendix 1 Section 9 & 15.1
& Appendix 2 drawing 8.

At all times, the JV will seek to ensure that the
construction programme is as short as reasonably
practicable, will not exceed peak funding
capabilities and will provide a regular income from
exchanges and completions.

The Business Plan shows this first phase of
housing to be constituted of 267 homes. The mix
of these homes has been adjusted in response to
the Housing Needs Survey to enable the first
residents to move from their current homes to be
accommodated.

It is important to note that an implication of the
altered phasing is that some residents will enjoy
new homes sooner than the tower blocks are
demolished.

The changes in phasing have been as a result of
research, contractor engagement and market
review. The overall scheme is still completed at
the same pace, however, the delay in some
phases and longer phase completion dates reflect
this research.

6 Green link - is a wide street that has a pocket park within it

22



€9

Theme

Scheme Development & Summary of Final
Proposals

Officer Commentary

There have been some significant changes to the
phasing of the scheme based on a more
developed constraints plan and early contractor]
involvement. This has led to many of the phases
taking longer than previously anticipated and the
need to reorder some elements, however, the
overall scheme is still due to be completed in line
with the original programme.

i) Energy Strategy - See
Appendix 1 Section 15.12

The energy strategy for the site has changed as
referenced elsewhere in this report. The principle
reasons for the change have been government
regulation that has defined the previous solution
as not meeting its environmental requirements.
The new strategy is a phase by phase decision
process whereby one of a set of four strategies
will be selected on an incremental basis in order
to best reflect government regulation and the
appropriate solution of the site.

The programme presented in the Business Plan is
slightly delayed due to the additional consultation
and design work as set out in paragraph 4.7 of
this report.

Whilst early discussions have indicated this will be
the case, any deficiencies will be picked up at the
planning stage.

In terms of environmental sustainability it is
envisaged that this will be an exemplar scheme.

k) Commercial and non-resi
uses - See Appendix 1
Section 15.13 & Appendix 2

Significant work has been undertaken since the
adoption of the scheme in the Initial Business
Plan. This has led to a refinement in the potential

commercial solution for the site and changes in

The non-residential element of the proposal is
important in achieving some of the wider
objectives of the Project and this aspect of the
scheme should offer a positive contribution to the

23




9

Theme Scheme Development & Summary of Final | Officer Commentary
Proposals
drawing 7. some of the locations. Overall the quantum of area.

commercial and non-residential space remains
consistent with the previous scheme. Further
detail will be developed through the RMA process.

[) Queensway South & Porters
House interface - See
Appendix 1 Section 15.14

As a result of the change of the Highway
realignment from the bid submission, the
proposals look to capitalise on the reduction in
corridor width of the proposed Queensway south
of Southchurch Road.

Work is ongoing on developing this aspect of the
scheme, but it should offer the scope to improve
the setting of Porters House.

24




6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

Highways

The highway design will be presented in detail in the hybrid planning
application. The highway design and associated environmental measures, such
as drainage and Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems (SUDS)’, have
undergone an extensive options analysis and design process. This has refined
the indicative design to arrive at a preferred solution that will be tested via
Southend’s multi-modal traffic model when the planning application is made.

The multi-modal traffic model has formed the basis of the A127 schemes
(including the bidding process) along with assisting in the evaluation of major
developments for the last ten years. This model has been updated with the
2019 traffic count data. This data has included the August bank holiday (which
was a dry, warm and sunny day) to provide a robust traffic model.

The model is now based on 2019 traffic data and has been further developed to
take into account a growth factor (set by Government) and known
developments in the town. The model now runs to a predicted 2023 traffic level
for both the morning and afternoon peak flows. The Project’s traffic movements
are being applied to the model by the JV’'s highways consultants to fully
demonstrate the impact. A series of eight indicative journeys has been modelled
to ascertain the effect of the scheme, including a prediction of how drivers’
behaviour will be modified to have wider network effects. This process provides
an indication of the effect the scheme has on the indicative journeys along with
suggesting areas of the wider network where mitigation may be required.

Initial feedback shows that whilst there may be a small increase in journey times
which the JV’s highways consultants believe could be mitigated by changes at
Victoria Gateway, where a minimal intervention could realise benefits that bring
the scheme back to a status quo position. The completed modelling information
and its impact will be presented as part of the planning application.

However, the traffic modelling, both Saturn (network) and VISSM (scheme
level) have yet to be finalised. So, further commentary is not yet possible as
amendments to the highway alignment may be required. This carries a risk to
the final proposals process. The JV have included the preferred option for the
highways design that will be submitted to planning, however, due to the need
for this work to be finalised there is the potential for the highways scheme to
change before planning submission.

Through the consultation and design process a range of comments and
concerns were raised in regards to the highway design. Some highlighting that
the focus should be on the quality of place rather than on highways and others
identifying concerns and ideas as to how they might be addressed. This design
is being tested and is undergoing detailed traffic modelling to ensure that this
option works and subsequently submitted as part of the hybrid planning
application in July. As explained above this will be reviewed by the Council and
if it leads to no, or non material changes this will be approved through the
delegation at 2.3 of this report. If material changes arise from this work this will
trigger a second final proposals process.

7 Sustainable drainage systems (SuDS) are a type of drainage designed to manage surface water
runoff, in a more sustainable, natural way than by conventional drainage such as via gulleys and pipes.

25
65



6.7

6.8

6.9

Walking and cycling connectivity and permeability were also key aspects of the
Council’s aspirations for the Project. The information presented at bid stage, in
the Business Plan and through drawings shared more recently confirms that
there will be improved walking and cycling links across and connecting the site.
See Appendix 2 drawings.

In addition to the traffic modelling the JV’s highways consultants have been
working on drainage and wider environmental proposals that could have a
significant advantage for the town. The town centre area currently forms the
catchment for the sea front area. Therefore any reduction of upstream pressure
on this system would bring benefits to a wider area of Southend. This is being
achieved via a mixture of SUDS and the addition of an attenuation tank where
the underpass is currently located. This will provide a significant reduction in
discharge rates into the Anglian Water drainage system.

Following on from the first round of consultation, various options were explored
by the JV Design and Highways consultants. A summary of these has been
supplied below and are also illustrated in Appendix 2 drawings 18 & 19.

“Queensway alignment studies

e The existing Queensway road corridor is approximately 32 metres wide.
Whilst the proposal still maintains Queensway as a high vehicular
capacity road of four lanes at-grade, it released nearly half of the original
road surface area back to other uses within the masterplan. To find the
ideal alignment within the existing road corridor, three alternative
alignments were studied with the wider design team as a part of the
masterplanning process. A major constraint was the location of an
existing 1.3 metre diameter surface water trunk sewer that pass under
the Queensway. Three alignments were tested; a northern, central and
southern alignment. Collectively, it was concluded that Queensway
should follow the northern alignment as this provided the best geometry
for the highway in balance with the other wider masterplan objectives.
The central and southern alignment in particular resulted in a poor
geometry at the roundabout, which was inefficient. The resulting
alignment has added space for walking, cycling, tree planting, and
Sustainable Urban Drainage that support the wider masterplan
objectives.

e Design Speed 20 or 30mph

Studies were undertaken on the effects on the road and roundabout
geometry of a 20 or 30mph spend limit. The 20mph speed limit results in
a ‘tighter’ geometry as forward visibility and stopping sight distances are
reduced. A lower speed limit would also lessen the formality of the
pedestrian crossing points from controlled to uncontrolled. The 30mph
geometry was chosen in consideration of the importance given to the
movement of traffic on Queensway. The road has been designed with
reqular ‘features’ and the additional kerb side activity the development
will create will promote a lower and consistent speed unlike the current
Queensway.

e Coleman Street

26
66



71

7.2

7.3

7.4

A study was undertaken of potentially opening Coleman Street to
Queensway to allow another route to Sutton Road. The junction with
Queensway would have to be a left-turn-in-left-turn-out owing to its
proximity to the Short Street/Chichester Road junction. Concerns were
raised, including at the public consultation, on the potential of rat-running
on an existing low trafficked residential road. Restrictions were
considered allowing only access to ‘residents’ however this was fraught
with difficulties. The impact to the proposed park of a new junction and
the footways and cycle lanes were seen to outweigh the benefits.

e Roundabout Left Turn Flare

A left turn flare from Queensway to A13 Southchurch Road eastbound
was considered. The length of the flare lane was constrained by building
plots within the masterplan. The flare length that could be realistically
provided could not provide the free-flow that was assumed when it was
proposed. The flare would also increase the distance pedestrians would
have to cross from 4 lanes to 5 lanes. This would result in traffic waiting
longer negating some benefit of providing the flare. Also, the speed of left
turn traffic would be higher and there was concern on the safety
implications for the pedestrian crossing on Southchurch Road arm.”

Commitment for Additional Affordable Homes

The JV, the Council and Swan have reached agreement on a Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) whereby the Council will be given an option to gap fund
or acquire at least 100 additional affordable social rented homes. It is then
entirely at the Council’s discretion whether to exercise this option, and if so, how
many of the homes it wishes to take up. Authorisation to sign this MOU is being
sought via this report to Shareholder Board, and subsequently to Cabinet.

The MOU will be formalised into a contract, as detailed earlier in this report, that
will enable the Council to fund and draw down these homes. To note, as a legal
document which includes commercially sensitive and confidential information,
the MOU is not contained within this report, however, it was negotiated and
finalised with assistance from the Council’s legal and financial advisers. They
have reviewed the agreed version and confirmed their recommendation that it is
signed by the Council.

Whilst the option will be for a minimum of 100 additional homes at social rents,
the Council is not prevented from drawing more homes down through this
agreement or making a request to gap fund or acquire more homes through a
separate arrangement at any time in the future.

When appointing Swan as the JV partner the Council also agreed additional
recommendations which sought to maximise the level of affordable housing for
rent and whilst this MOU supports this and the legal agreement will contribute
towards this recommendation the Council also agreed that any surplus funds
the Council receives should be reinvested in social housing therefore there is

27
67



8.1

8.2

8.3

the possibility at a later stage of the Project to utilise any surplus in these
additional acquisitions.

. Assurance

There are a number of levels of assurance which are not specific to this report
but which are built in to the Project in its totality and are therefore worth noting:

8.1.1 The Council is a 50% partner in the JV and therefore makes up half of
the JV board.

8.1.2 The Council has multiple roles in regards to the Project: as Shareholder
(as is being exercised for this report), as landowner (which comes with a
set of requirements in relation to the Project), as funder through its Junior
Loan into the JV, and as the Local Planning Authority (LPA) (although it
is crucial to note that this is not a protection provided via the JV itself).

8.1.3 The partnership documents and legal suite, including the business plan,
set out the legal arrangements between the parties and offer a number of
protections.

8.1.4 The agreed Business Plan also provides a remit for current activity and a
baseline for the Project.

8.1.5 As the Project progresses further final proposals and business plans will
need to be approved by the Council as Shareholder therefore it has a
rolling oversight as to the next stages as the Project advances.

Specifically in relation to this report the information has been reviewed and
analysed in the context of the Council’s procurement objectives, the position as
at bid submission and the agreed Initial Business Plan by Council officers and
its specialist procured advisors.

The following comments have been provided by the Council’s lead advisors
31ten Consulting (31ten) who have supported the Project through its
development and procurement process and continue to do so. They have
reviewed the final proposals submission to provide assurance on the
completeness and reasonableness of the document. The results of this exercise
are detailed below:

8.3.1 31ten has reviewed the final proposals made by the JV to the Council.
The key themes emerging from this review are as follows:

8.3.2 The JV has undertaken significant consultation and work on the Bid
scheme to develop an updated proposal that reflects the practical
challenges of delivering the site whilst also being as closely aligned as
possible to the JV objectives. This has resulted in a number of changes
to the scheme, programme and approach to the delivery of Better
Queensway.

28
68



8.3.3

8.3.4

8.3.5

8.3.6

The documents submitted contain the majority of these changes and
high level explanations for their inclusion. A number of these changes
have a positive impact in light of the objectives such as the additional
cycling routes, additional water attenuation provisions and changes in
massing to the north of the site. Other changes present a negative
impact on the objectives, but are argued to be necessary for the delivery
of the scheme, such as the increase in height of a number of the blocks,
the change in parking strategy that would have significant impact on look
and feel of the scheme and change in the size of the park (offset by
additional green space elsewhere).

These types of changes are common for a project of this type as the
scheme submitted through procurement is by necessity a scheme based
on limited evidence. The additional work undertaken typically results in
changes that are both positive and negative. The challenge is to ensure
the balance still appears appropriate.

31ten’s review has shown that this balance has clearly been a strong
driver of the work undertaken to date and the proposals that have been
submitted stay close to the spirit of the scheme submitted through the
procurement. There are however key changes that depart from the
Council’'s objectives that need to be reviewed and for the Council to
ensure it is content with these departures.

It should be noted that there are a series of risks still outstanding that are
referenced throughout this report and that Members must be aware of
when agreeing the recommendations. In particular we would raise the
following:

i. Financial viabilty — In submitting the new scheme for final
proposals review an inconsistency was highlighted in the way
financial viability was being assessed by the JV compared to the
provisions in the legal documentation. This has been discussed in
detail with the JV and an agreement reached in principle for an
amendment in approach that would provide consistency going
forward. Provided this is formalised in revisions to the legal
documents this will demonstrate that the lllustrative Masterplan
scheme is financially viable and that the scheme hurdles the
financial viability threshold of 15% based on the clarified definition.

ii. Parameter Plan Financial viability — The JV is applying for scheme
parameters on the site that range between 2 scenarios. These
include variations in unit numbers, parking ratios and many other
assumptions. The viability assessment submitted to date is for the
lower parameters. A higher parameter viability has yet to be
submitted. This will likely be required for the planning submission
and therefore should be reviewed before this is submitted. The
risk is low that this would show a lower viability than the appraisal
submitted but this should still be reviewed.

iii. Design changes — The scheme submitted at this stage is still
being worked on by the JV with potential changes that could arise
prior to planning submission in the form of highways design.

29
69



9.1

9.2

9.3

Should there be changes to the scheme that are significant then a
second final proposals process would be required. The JV has
however submitted the preferred approach in detail at this stage,
therefore if this further work supports this no changes will be
required.

iv. Height — The new scheme includes significant new height with 3
sections of the parameter plans, and Indicative Masterplan now
reaching up to 18 storeys. The explanations provided by the JV
are limited to the planning arguments that support this height.
However, the Council’s objectives aspire to the limitation of height
to 12 storeys and for this to be balanced with the level of parking
and affordable housing. The new scheme delivers the same
number of affordable homes, the same level of parking and
significantly more height. There are a series of arguments as to
the need for the height to be added, including the change in car
parking strategy, change in ground floor uses, the need for
additional plant and equipment and improving security. Despite
these arguments the new scheme does not address this objective
as well as the previous scheme. It is for the Council to decide
whether it feels the scheme addresses this objective well enough.

v. Delegation — The approval of the final proposals contained in this
report should be subject to further review of the final scheme to
ensure there are no significant changes that the Council would
need to review. These should be undertaken utilising the
delegations to the Executive Director (Finance and Resources)
and the Director of Regeneration and Growth in consultation with
the Leader.

vi.  Additional Affordable Homes agreement — The MOU which will be
signed if this report is approved and the parties should seek to
enter the Agreement as soon as reasonably possible.

Other Options

Not approving the final proposals would mean that the planning application
could not be submitted in July. This would have a negative impact on the
expedient delivery of the Project and will add to the whole cost of delivery of the
Project that could impact upon any final profit share by the Council and Swan at
the end of the Project that the Council would use to reinvest in social housing.

Not approving the final proposals could also jeopardise the £15m HIF funding
from Homes England which has a deadline for spend in 2023. Therefore delays
resulting from not approving the final proposals could result in non-expenditure
by the deadline and therefore a gap in project funding.

There is also a risk to the goodwill that has been established between the
parties if the final proposals having been approved by the JV Board and
recommended for approval were not approved by the Council. The final
proposals that are subject of this report are a second iteration following the
Council not being satisfied with the first set and as advised in this report the

30
70



9.4

9.5

10

10.1

11

11.1

current final proposals are a significant improvement. Further delay would
negatively impact on the relationship between the parties.

While a significant amount of design work and options have been developed in
relation to the highway, only the highways design which brings the road up to
being level with the surrounding land i.e. at grade (and the underpass filled in)
has been assessed as a financially viable option in the bid and ensuing design
work. Other options also do not generate the regeneration uplift through the
value of place making and therefore the overall Project would potentially not
reach the necessary values to make it viable. Nor is it considered that they
would achieve the place-making and other non-financial benefits such as
reduced severance and improved physical environment.

An alternative option could be to cease progression of the work towards the
agreement in principle regarding the additional affordable rented homes,
thereby retaining the figure at 512. This would have a positive impact for the
Council in relation to the Project as it would not have to meet the gap funding
however it would not meet the requirement of the Project to maximise affordable
homes nor would it remove the need for the Council to deliver more affordable
homes in the borough and further would not support the additional commitments
as agreed at Full Council (Minute 737).

Reasons for Recommendations

Review of the final proposals concludes that the information submitted presents
some significant variations to the bid and business plan positions, but in a
complex regeneration scheme this is to be expected and the explanations for
the changes are in the spirit of the objectives. The recommended delegations
are therefore included to provide for a review of all changes and if these are
non-material in nature for these to be approved prior to planning submission
and the completion of the MOU with regards the additional affordable housing
for social rent.

Corporate Implications
Contribution to the Southend 2050 roadmap and outcomes

The delivery of Better Queensway is a specific outcome identified in the
Opportunity and Prosperity theme and is reflected in a number of milestones on
the roadmap. The first of these has already been met in the signing of the legal
agreements. The Project contributes towards a number of the Southend 2050
outcomes:

e By 2050 Southenders are fiercely proud of, and go out of their way,
to champion what our city has to offer. A regenerated Better
Queensway at the heart of the City with a high quality new development
with large new parks and clean and inviting streets will achieve this.

e By 2050 We are well on our way to ensuring that everyone has a
home that meets their needs. Queensway is centred on delivering
more and better quality homes. The agreement in principle to deliver a

31
71



greater percentage of affordable rented homes within the overall scheme
while being financially viable further contributes towards this outcome.

e By 2050 Southend on Sea is a successful City and we share our
prosperity amongst all of our people. Better Queensway will have
been delivered and it is an integral part of a thriving town centre providing
a mix of affordable and private sale homes, jobs and aspirational places
to live and play for all sections of Southend’s community.

e By 2050 people can easily get in, out and around our borough and
we have a world class digital infrastructure. Better Queensway will
have improved connectivity with a new Queensway boulevard that
reconnects the town centre to the rest of the town, new cycle and
pedestrian routes and a variety of digital improvements.

e By 2050 people in Southend feel safe in all aspects of their lives and
are well enough to live fulfilling lives. Better Queensway will have a
new green neighbourhood with a variety of homes which have been
designed with safety at its heart. It has overlooked streets and active new
parks as well as improved connectivity between the town centre and
North Eastern Southend.

e By 2050 we will have a thriving, active and involved community that
feel invested in our city. The new neighbourhood will have residents at
its heart. Swan will be running a new community concierge service
overseeing and managing active parks and open spaces with a range of
activities funded by the Better Queensway community fund.

11.2 Financial Implications

The final proposals submitted are in the form of detailed highways designs,
parameter plans for the remainder of the scheme, a Design Code and
lllustrative Masterplan to support the lower end parameters. This submission
has been supported with a financial viability appraisal that tests the viability of
the lower parameters of the scheme, at 1,669 units.

As highlighted by our financial advisor review an inconsistency in approach was
found between the parties, however, this has now been addressed and this
scheme is shown as financially viable hurdling the 15% viability test based on
the clarified definition. Were this scheme to be built out to exactly these
assumptions, this would result in a profit of c£64m at the end of the scheme, of
which the Council would receive half, £32m. There is a risk that a scheme
developed on the upper level parameters could be non-viable but this risk is a
small one.

As highlighted in the report above, there remains the potential for the Council to
act as senior lender for all, or part of the scheme. Discussions continue on this
potential, however, no decision is yet required on this role. Positive discussions
are continuing and Cabinet will be updated on the position in the next Better
Queensway report.

32
72



Section 7 has detailed the Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) that has been
agreed in principle between the Council, Swan and the JV to convert at least
100 homes from private sale to affordable homes at a social rent. There are
two potential approaches through which this conversion can be executed, both
of which are covered by this agreement.

Approach 1 — In line with other affordable units on site Swan own the units but
the Council have nomination rights to them across the life of the lease. Current
estimates of the costs of this to the Council could be in the region of £75k per
unit to secure these nomination rights. Based on this estimated figure If all 100
were converted using this approach this would result in a total cost of c.£7.5m.
Although it should be noted that the costs could rise or fall from this figure
based on the costs and values at the time the units are developed.

Approach 2 - The Council purchase the units and own and operate them itself
as social rented from the HRA. Current estimates of the initial purchase costs
of this approach to the Council would be in the region of £235k per unit based
on current valuations. If all 100 units were purchased through this approach this
would result in a cost in the region of £23.5m. The value of each unit to
purchase may well go up or down as we proceed through the development.

The above figures give an indication of the additional initial cost to the council of
securing these at least 100 affordable units.

The agreement is planned to enable the Council to select, in consultation with
the JV and Swan, which approach is used on a phase by phase basis and a
combination of approaches is anticipated. It is entirely at the Council's
discretion whether to exercise its option for these homes, and if so, how many
of the homes it wishes to take up.

The full detail of how this approach will operate will be developed as part of the
full legal agreement. This will be developed if the above MOU is agreed.

The following comments have been provided by the Council’s specialist legal
advisors who have supported the Project through its development and
procurement process.

If there are material amendments to the scheme following the approvals given
in this report, this will trigger a second final proposals process.

If there are non material changes these could be reviewed by the Council, and if
they are minded to approve them, these could be approved through the
delegation detailed at 2.3 of this report.

The Council must therefore satisfy itself that it is content with every change in
the final proposals, insofar as such change is a departure from the original
scheme and the Initial Business Plan. This is particularly important in respect of
the revised heights and the points raised in paragraph 5.10(d) above.

11.4 People Implications

33
73



11.5

11.6

11.7

11.8

11.9

11.10

In accordance with the Cabinet report of February 2019 three senior officers
have been appointed to the JV board by the Council’s Chief Executive in
consultation with the Leader.

While the JV is responsible for delivery of the Project, the Project continues to
be supported by a number of Council officers as technical experts in fulfilling
Council responsibilities and in supporting the work of the JV, and on the
Partnership Board which oversees the Council’s work in regards to the Project.
It may be necessary to consider backfill or additional resource in some teams so
as to ensure that other Council priorities are also met and outcomes delivered.

The Council continues to retain and utilise its procured specialist advisors
alongside officers.

Property Implications

The property implications are in line with those set out in the February 2019
Cabinet Report.

Consultation

Two rounds of public consultation and engagement have been undertaken by
the JV to inform the final proposals. This has included a specific session for
Councillors, residents and businesses as well as opportunities for wider public
response.

Equalities and Diversity Implications

The Council has undertaken an Equalities Analysis in regards to the Project and
this will be kept under review in regards to the evolution of the Project.

Risk Assessment

Section 7 “Assurance” sets out assurances, risks and mitigations where
appropriate.

Value for Money

The bid scheme agreed within the Business Plan was assessed as representing
Value for Money for the Council and approved through the November 2019
Cabinet report. As per Appendix 1 and 2 there are a number of changes to this
scheme but the financial viability appraisal demonstrates that this scheme is
viable, subject to the comments at xxx This appraisal continues to demonstrate
Value for Money for the Council.

Community Safety Implications

The creation of a safe community was one of the procurement requirements
and has been a common theme in the consultations. While the design freeze is
intended to be high-level and not look at the detail of the scheme it does reflect
this theme through ensuring passive surveillance of public spaces is built into

34
74



11.11

12

13

the designs in the form of residential lobbies, active frontages or residential
doors onto streets at ground level.

Environmental Impact

Due to very recent changes to building regulations and energy requirements by
Government, the previous energy strategy is being revisited and is not
presented at this stage but remains a key component of the scheme and was
highlighted during the consultations.

Additional green space which did not feature in the bid proposal has been
added across the rest of the development, including a green link from the park
towards the town centre. The green space at the heart of the development is
slightly smaller than in the bid proposal, but would not fundamentally reduce the
activities which could take place there. Overall, the area will benefit from
significantly more green space than is found there currently. There will also be a
net increase in the number of trees.

The JV and the Council are working to ensure that the most up to date waste
strategy and collection methods are employed to deliver a clean and efficient
environment for people live in and visit.

Background Papers
Initial Business Plan

Appendices
Appendix 1 — LLP Project Director Report

Appendix 2 — Final proposals, drawings and images
Appendix 3 — Objectives summary table

35
75



This page is intentionally left blank



wuthend
nsea

sWan NU =@

living

Appendix 1

Meeting: Agenda item:

tbhc
Porters Place Southend LLP Board (Better

Queensway)

Date:
27 May 2020

Author: Job title:
Graham Kauders Project Director — Better Queensway

TITLE OF REPORT: ACTION:

DECISION
Final Proposals Report

Private & Confidential

1.0 Executive Summary

1.1 The purpose of the Final Proposals is for each member of Porters Place Southend-on-Sea LLP
to have the opportunity to assess the scheme being developed by the LLP for consistency
with the Minimum Requirements as set out in the original procurement process, the scheme
Objectives and the Initial Business Plan for the project.

1.2 Where there are changes to the scheme contained within the “Final Proposals”, the LLP will
set out how they differ from the Initial Business Plan and what the implications (where
applicable) are for the wider project in particular in the context of the Objectives where
relevant.

1.3 Each member will approve “material” changes where relevant although “non-material”
changes are delegated to officers for approval.

1.4 Where changes have been made between the formulation and approval of the Initial
Business Plan in 2019, and the scheme set out here, those changes are noted for clarity
along with implications where relevant. A detailed explanation for each material change is
set out in the report.

1.5 Changes contained within the “Final Proposals”, where approved, will be considered an
update to the Initial Business Plan and will supersede those areas within the Initial Business
Plan on approval.

1.6 Scheme Summary
1.7 The scheme proposes the following key features:

e 1669 Homes within the illustrative masterplan

77




SWan NU e @

1.8

1.9

1.10

1.11

1.12

southend
Sea

GH COU

living

e 512 Affordable Homes (31% affordable)

e A range of building heights and types ranging from 3 to 18 storeys of residential
accommodation to cater to a wide range of residents

e 3 new key public spaces with additional green spaces distributed throughout the
masterplan, including a new plaza by Victoria Station and All Saints Church with new
park and green spaces throughout the scheme.

e The Queensway re-laid and brought up to grade along a tree lined highway retaining
4 lanes of traffic

e A new gateway experience for visitors to Southend-on-Sea

e New high-quality homes for returning residents

e The retention of E-W, N-S connectivity through Southend by the provision of an at-
grade roundabout connecting Southchurch Road and the Queensway

e New dedicated off-street cycle lanes and pedestrian walkways on each side of the
Queensway

e Every new dwelling to have at least one area of private outside space in the form of
either a garden, a terrace or a balcony depending on location

e Parking for new residents of the new dwellings at 0.7 spaces per dwelling across the
masterplan (an increase from the current 0.25 spaces per dwelling on Queensway)

e A complementary commercial offer for the scheme with a mix of flexible retail,
commercial and cultural space to complement the Town Centre and support the
future residents of the new scheme and anchor the new public spaces

e Environmentally friendly and sustainable solutions for surface water drainage and
energy usage across the scheme, including provision of sustainable urban drainage
systems within the new Queensway and the provision of electric vehicle charging
points within the project

The scheme remains viable and meets the target financial returns within the Initial Business
Plan.

The scheme can continue to deliver, subject to the planning approval and progression of the
scheme in line with the programme set out below, the HIF funded infrastructure within the
2023 cut-off date under the funding agreement between Homes England and Southend
Borough Council.

The proposed scheme meets the Minimum Requirements, accords with the Objectives to
the same extent that the Initial Business Plan envisaged and continues to support the
implementation of the broader objectives of the Better Queensway Project in pursuit of
delivering the successful regeneration of the Queensway Estate.

Where changes have been made, as set out below, the implications have been recorded
along with the rationale for those. It is anticipated that through the formal planning process
and engagement with the LPA during the formal consultation and determination period that
some further changes to the scheme may be required.

Where those changes are “non-material” and to the extent that they do not affect or impact
on the achievement of the Minimum Requirements, Objectives and Business Plan as
described here those may be determined by officer delegation to enable the project to
proceed and programme progress to be maintained.

78



SWan NU e {@])

1.13

1.14

1.15

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

3.0

3.1

southend
Sea

WGH COU

living

In the event that changes are considered “material” then those would need to return to the
member for a further approval prior to Porters Place Southend-on-Sea LLP being able to
progress to delivery of the proposed project.

Should there be any further changes between the approval of “final proposals” between
now and the submission of the planning application, then the Project Director will set those
changes out to the LLP Board and in consultation with shareholder representatives from the
Council and Swan a decision will be made as to whether they are considered “material” or

IM

“non-material”.

A set of documents is provided in the appendix, these documents represent the “final
proposals” as defined in the Initial Business Plan but remain subject to change as set out
above.

Background

Southend on Sea Borough Council (SBC) selected Swan BQ as partner, along with supporting
arrangements with Swan Housing Association (a co-signatory to the Partnership Agreement)
(Swan) in February 2019 through an OJEU compliant competitive dialogue process to be its
funding, development and operational partner for the regeneration of the Queensway Area
of Southend-on-Sea. The contracts were signed, and the LLP established in April 2019.

The Better Queensway (BQ) project will regenerate a c. 6Ha site in the Queensway area of
Southend-on-Sea, adjacent to Southend Victoria railway station. The site currently includes
four 1960s council tower blocks, maisonettes on Sutton Road and properties along
Southchurch Road as defined by the red line plan within the appendix and is dissected by the
Queensway dual carriage way, which runs in an underpass across the site, resulting in poor
pedestrian connectivity across the site and into the town centre and a poor quality, road-
dominated environment for residents.

The development is to be undertaken in phases to create ¢1,650 new homes, a realigned
Queensway Road and highway improvements, improved public realm (including a park) and
complementary commercial uses.

An Initial Business Plan was approved by the LLP board and by the members in 2019.

The Initial Business Plan sets out the Business Plan principles (including budget) to enable
planning submission and obtaining planning consent.

Minimum Requirements

Through the Partnership Agreement, Minimum Requirements have been defined for the LLP
These are for the LLP to deliver:

e Anincrease on the 441 Affordable Housing Units on the Site as at the Effective Date

e The demolition of the four tower blocks on the Site as at the Effective Date

o Delivery of the Required Highways Works (as defined in the Land Agreement
entered by the Council and the LLP on 24th April 2019) including the 4-lane highway

e Objective 6 in the Council’s Objectives (defined in Appendix 2).

79



sWan NU =@

3.2

4.0

4.1

4.2

5.0

5.1

5.2

6.0

6.1

6.1.1

6.1.2

6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

7.0

wuthend
nsea

The Effective Date was 24 April 2019, which was when the LLP Agreement was signed.

living

Objectives

As part of the procurement process, SBC set out a set of Scheme and Approach Objectives
and these are included in the legal agreements that underpin the LLP.

The objectives are provided as a separate document with a “RAG” rating setting out how the
“Final Proposals” address them for reference only.

Porters Place Southend LLP Structure and governance

Porters Place Southend Limited Liability Partnership (LLP) is a joint venture between Swan
BQ (Swan) (50%) and SBC (50%).

The LLP is based on equal representation and participation for both parties. The LLP will be
governed internally by the LLP Board, with a Project Board managing the day to day delivery
of the development. The Project Board is the “Project Control Group” which meets monthly
and is chaired by the Project Director. The workstream leads attend the “Project Control
Group”.

The members of the Board are:

Swan Southend Borough Council
Geoff Pearce (Chair) Andrew Lewis

James King Alan Richards

Andy Gatrell Lee White

Initial Funding

Description

Both member organisations will have a combination of equity and junior loan funds available
to fund the activities of the Initial Business Plan.

All costs will be funded 50/50 by the LLP Members.
Commentary

The budget for this Business Plan period remains as per the Initial Business Plan, until such
time as a new Business Plan is approved.

A new Business Plan will be prepared and submitted for approval to the LLP Board in
Autumn 2020 to align with the updated programme and associated spend requirements to

progress the scheme to construction.

Appointments

80



sWan NU =@

7.1

7.11

7.2

7.2.1

7.2.2

8.0

8.1

8.1.1

8.1.2

8.2

8.2.1

wuthend
nsea

living

Description

Swan and its subsidiaries are appointed through Service Agreements to carry out the
following activities for the LLP:

e Project Management

e Residential sales and Marketing

e Construction Management

e [Estate Management

e Accounting and company secretariat

e Communication and community engagement

Commentary

Consultants and other professional services have been and will be appointed as required to
deliver the planning application and progress the scheme generally in line with the Initial
Business Plan.

The Project Director has delegated authority to appoint the consultant team as required
within the budget approved in the Initial Business Plan. Spend is reviewed by the LLP Board
at the quarterly board meeting.

Design and Planning
Description

As set out in the Objectives of the LLP (section 1.3), the regeneration of the Better
Queensway site is an opportunity to transform this important town centre, gateway site and
improve the quality of life of residents of the estate. In the Initial Business Plan period, the
LLP sought to obtain an outline planning consent for the Better Queensway Masterplan (red
line) alongside a detailed planning application for phase 1a, (Hybrid planning application).

The business plan set out that an application will seek planning consent for a project which
intends to:

e Deliver a mixed-use, residential led scheme

e Demolish the existing estate and deliver c1,650 new homes across several building types
and range of building heights

e Deliver a number of commercial uses

e Remodel the Queensway road to a 4-lane road, by the infilling of the existing underpass,
to increase permeability and simplify the existing roundabout; and

e Improve the public realm, including a new park.

Commentary

The scheme that has been prepared for submission for planning delivers all of these.

e 1669 Homes within the illustrative masterplan

81



SWan NU e {@])

8.2.2

8.2.3

9.0

9.1

9.11

9.2

9.21

9.2.2

9.2.3

southend
Sea

RIGH CORJ

living

e 512 Affordable Homes (31% affordable)

e A range of building heights and types ranging from 3 to 18 storeys of residential
accommodation to cater to a wide range of residents

e 3 new key public spaces with additional green spaces distributed throughout the
masterplan, including a new plaza by Victoria Station and All Saints Church with new
park and green spaces throughout the scheme.

e The Queensway re-laid and brought up to grade along a tree lined highway retaining 4
lanes of traffic

e A new gateway experience for visitors to Southend-on-Sea

e New high-quality homes for returning residents

e The retention of E-W, N-S connectivity through Southend by the provision of an at-grade
roundabout connecting Southchurch Road and the Queensway

e New dedicated off-street cycle lanes and pedestrian walkways on each side of the
Queensway

e Every new dwelling to have at least one area of private outside space in the form of
either a garden, a terrace or a balcony depending on location

e Parking for new residents of the new dwellings at 0.7 spaces per dwelling across the
masterplan (an increase from the current 0.25 spaces per dwelling on Queensway)

e A complementary commercial offer for the scheme with a mix of flexible retail,
commercial and cultural space to complement the Town Centre and support the future
residents of the new scheme and anchor the new public spaces

e Environmentally friendly and sustainable solutions for surface water drainage and
energy usage across the scheme, including provision of sustainable urban drainage
systems within the new Queensway and the provision of electric vehicle charging points
within the project

Further details regarding design alterations to the scheme between business plan approval
and Final Proposals are set out in comprehensive detail below

Further details regarding the planning strategy are set out below
Phasing
Description

The LLP will seek to ensure that the construction programme is as short as reasonably
practicable, will not exceed peak funding capabilities and will provide a regular income from
exchanges and completions.

Commentary

The programme continues to envisage 8 phases with a balance of tenures to accommodate
decants and to deliver a viable scheme (as defined by the Land Agreement).

The programme and phasing has been revisited by the design and project team since more
detailed information is now available as work has progressed.

A full constraints plan was prepared by the consultant team which set out key constraints for

the site including utilities corridors, road alignment and construction and logistics
considerations.

82



SWan NU e {@])

9.24

9.2.5

9.2.6

9.2.7

9.2.8

9.2.9

southend
Sea

RIGH CORJ

living

Further advice has been sought from “Early Contractor Involvement” by engaging with
Highways and demolition specialists.

As a result, several changes to the original bid stage masterplan were implemented to
address these issues.

In summary these changes to plots within Phase 1 A are as follows:

e Plot E was reduced and moved West to avoid clashing with a main sewer under the
existing Queensway. It was not possible to agree to a build over with Anglian Water for
this sewer, and a diversion would be unviable due to the size and depth of the current
alignment.

e Plot G was introduced in order to compensate for the loss of developable area in Plot E
and to better anchor the scheme and to de-link the sequence of delivery of sub phase
plots with the Queensway construction programme as far as possible to reduce
construction risk and provide for decanting requirements.

e Plots C and D north (Phase 1 A) were moved off the existing Essex Street boundary to sit
fully within the current land ownership. This is because it would not be possible to
obtain a stopping up order for Essex Street in line with the phasing requirements since
access is still required to the rear of the existing properties on Southchurch Road in the
meantime.

e These changes enable Plot D north and Plot G to be delivered with the fewest delivery
constraints, which unlocks a deliverable decant option for the existing residents in
Quantock House and therefore allows the overall project sequence to proceed.

e The sub-phasing setting out and sequencing has further been informed by more detailed
demolition advice and safe working distances around the existing Quantock tower which
will determine sub-phase sequencing. Plot C will need to be delivered in parallel with the
demolition of Quantock House and can therefore only commence once decanting of
Quantock House is completed into Plots D and G.

The wider sub phasing has been amended to better reflect the construction site boundaries
associated with the delivery of the plots and the need for demolition zones around the
existing tower blocks.

An updated phasing boundary plan is provided in the appendix although the alterations are
non-material.

The sequence of phasing has been amended to take on board construction and demolition
advice and this is now taking the following sequence:

e PhaselA
e PhaselB
e Phase3A
e Phase3B
e Phase2A
e Phase2B

83



SWan NU .« Q)

9.2.10

9.2.11

9.2.12

10.0

10.1

10.1.1

10.1.2

10.2

10.2.1

10.2.2

southend

sea
Iiving BOROUGH COUNC)
e Phase2C
e Phase4

The change is that Phase 3 is to be completed in whole before Phase 2 is begun.
The rationale is as follows:

e It will be challenging to demolish the individual tower blocks (Chiltern, Pennine and
Malvern) separately in Phase 2. Further structural surveys will be required to determine
the extent to which this is possible.

e It is likely that Pennine and Malvern will need to be demolished together, and so the
phase order has been amended to reflect this.

e This will be kept under review as further surveys and structural analysis is completed to
inform the project in due course.

e |tis not viable to split the Phase 3 plot through the centre as previously envisaged due to
the central podium car park and podium garden proposed there

e Since the whole central podium area for both Phase 3 A and Phase 3 B has to be
delivered in parallel with Phase 3 A, it is more efficient to complete the Phase 3B blocks
to wrap the Eastern side of the podium in sequence rather than stop work on that site
and return at a later date.

Taking the above into consideration, the amended sequence and timings consider the
requirements of the Initial Business Plan.

Highways
Description

The LLP will deliver a new Queensway Road, which will be subject to further highways
modelling, and will address severance the current Queensway causes.

The LLP aspires to ensure the sequencing of the highway works are designed so they will be
delivered as soon as is reasonably practicable alongside the residential construction and to
ensure minimal disruption to local residents and ensure traffic is enabled to flow throughout
the development period.

Commentary
The road layout is as per the original bid and as per the initial business plan. The highway will

be raised to grade, and 4 lanes of traffic maintained in the proposed layout, along with off-
street cycle lanes and at grade pedestrian crossings.

Additional tree planting will be introduced along the extent of the Queensway within the red
line boundary to provide a tree-lined landscape through the site.

84



SWan NU e {@])

10.2.3

10.2.4

10.2.5

10.2.6

10.2.7

10.2.8

10.2.9

southend
Sea

WGH COU

living

The existing slip roads to the grade separate roundabout will be closed and removed and a
new at grade roundabout built to maintain E-W and N-S connectivity through the town
between Southchurch Road and the Queensway.

Detailed traffic modelling work is being undertaken in co-ordination with the highways
authority, and the local planning authority, and will be submitted in support of the planning
application.

In December 2019, the LLP was asked to revisit the original bid scheme by the Council to
review the alternative options prior to progressing to public consultation. A piece of work
was undertaken by the design team to revisit the previous options in the context of the
scheme to test whether any alternative option would be viable.

This work confirmed that only the bid scheme was viable to progress with. Other options
were too costly, would not deliver a quality environment and support the place-making
objective, or could not be delivered without extensive closures to the Queensway
altogether.

Early modelling work was requested by the council to confirm that the principle of what was
being proposed would work with the highway network. The modelling confirmed that in
principle, subject to the detailed design, it could work, and so a decision was made to
progress to public consultation in February 2020. As a result of this the planning programme
was extended by 3 months to account for this additional review.

Resident feedback at all consultation events to proposals to shut the pedestrian underpass
was well received. Pedestrians are observed risking their lives crossing the current highway
in order to avoid the use of the underpass as it is unsafe.

The HIF funding secured by Southend Borough Council will require the LLP to be able to
demonstrate that the highways works can be delivered by 2023. In order to achieve this,
works will need to start on site by Spring 2021.

10.2.10 Subject to receipt of the planning consent for the hybrid application in December 2020, this

is achievable.

10.2.11 Taking the above into consideration, the proposed highways scheme accords with both the

11.0

111

11.1.1

11.1.2

bid scheme and the scheme contained within the Initial Business Plan.

Housing
Description

The LLP will provide a mix of housing tenures including private sale and with an increase on
the 441 affordable units on the site.

This accommodation schedule was developed by balancing:

e The Minimum Requirements as set out by the procurement process
e The Council’s scheme objectives and aspirations

85



SWan NU e {@])

11.1.3

11.2

11.2.1

11.2.2

11.2.3

11.2.4

11.2.5

12.0

12.1

12,11

12.2

12.2.1

12.2.2

12.2.3

10

southend
Sea

WGH COU

living

e Deliverability of the scheme in terms of the highway requirements and site constraints
(including the need to decant residents)

e Viability of the development, market advice and cost advice

e Planning policy on tenure, mix, height, uses, highways, public realm and the details from
the pre-application meeting Swan attended; and

e Reviewing the information through pre-application meetings with Southend on Sea
Borough Council

An aspiration of the LLP is to optimise affordable housing delivered on site. Exact numbers of
affordable housing will be subject to design development (as due diligence is carried out)
and viability, however the Minimum Requirements will be met.

Commentary

The current scheme continues to allow for 512 affordable homes in line with the bid and
Initial Business Plan. This is broken down into 300 social rented homes, 200 shared
ownership homes and 12 shared equity homes with no changes.

Discussions with the LPA regarding the exact number of affordable homes that will fall into
the S106 allocation are ongoing.

The scheme assumes that 300 social rent homes will be secured via the S106 obligations in
the planning consent, and the remainder will be provided by the LLP business plan by
working with Swan Housing in line with the contract and bid.

In addition, a separate MOU is being prepared that sets out a process by which at least 100
additional social rent homes will be provided throughout the delivery of the project by the
conversion of 100 homes previously allocated for market sale.

This will happen outside of the planning process and will be governed by a side agreement
between the LLP, Southend Borough Council and Swan.

Programme

Description

The phasing is covered in 9.0 and programme is covered within this section. The original
programme has been reviewed in line with comments and feedback noted in section 9.0.

Commentary

The updated phasing plan and updated illustrative phase capacity is set out below and
updated to reflect the illustrative masterplan and drawings are provided in the appendix.

It provides an indication of the anticipated outputs over the development period of the
project based on current proposals.

Whilst some phases have been switched in sequence accounting for changes, the amount of
properties contained within certain phases has significantly changed as a result of the

86



SWan Nu

living

e —

BETTER

southend

ESEEEJ

BORTUGH COUNCIL

sequence changes identified in section 9.0. This has affected relative durations. In addition,
the timescales to demolish the towers are longer than originally anticipated as a result of
detailed feedback from Early Contractor Involvement.

12.2.4 The overall (total) scheme programme has moved out by 3 months.

Indicative Proposed Public Realm | Estimated start Estimated
Number of Commercial works on site completion
Homes Uses
Highways Works Apr 2021 Apr 2023
and Enabling (+4)
Infrastructure
1la 299 Artist Porters Park | Aug 2021 Aug 2023 (Blocks D, G
(+32) Complex, South (+4) and E)
Retail Active & | (partial (+12)
Fitness, delivery) Jan 2026 (Block C)
Central (+40)
Concierge &
Cafe
1b 203 Convenience Porters Park | Sep 23 Nov 26
(+64) Retail South (+9) (+26)
(completion)
3a 316 Make Create, | Station Plaza | Jan 25 Jan 28
(+113) Workspace, (+18) (+28)
Restaurant/Ca
fé
3b 117 Sep 25 Sep 27
(-152) (-36) (-36)
2a 135 Pre School All Saints | Aug 28 Aug 31
(-25) Square (+50) (+66)
2b 197 Aug 28 Jan 32
(+45) (+38) (+54)
2c 153 Nursery / | Porters Park | Aug 28 Oct 31
(-19) childcare North (+27) (+41)
4 249 Standard Feb 30 Jan 33
(+34) Shops (Retail) (+3) (+3)
13.0 Planning Approach and Programme to Planning Submission
13.1  Description
13.1.1 The initial business plan set out a timescale and an approach to planning. This included
submitting a hybrid application with the road and Phase 1A housing blocks in detail.
13.2 Commentary
11

87




SWan Nu

living

SR ()

wuthend
nsed

13.2.1 The LLP has met regularly with the Local Planning Authority, Statutory Highways Authority
and Lead Local Flood Authority at SBC in developing the scheme. The scheme that is put
forward reflects where possible comments that have been made in that process. This is in
order to arrive at a scheme that is acceptable to SBC’s planning team and seek to secure an

implementable planning permission, through

Development Control Committee.

13.2.2

recommendation for approval to the

The LPA provided feedback to the LLP that there was risk to the LLP programme to be able to

determine the original full extent of the hybrid application within the programmed 6-month
determination period. In addition, the results of the housing needs survey and the need to
make changes to the plots for Phase 1 A through the masterplan work identified above
determined that the Phase 1 A detailed design workstream had to be paused for 3 months
to avoid the risk of abortive work.

13.2.3

The masterplan and detailed highways design was able to progress as planned during this

time, along with key stakeholder engagement and multiple public consultation events for
residents and businesses in Southend.

13.2.4

Our consultant team advised the LLP to alter the planning strategy to make a hybrid

application covering the highway proposals in detail and the residential development in
outline, with the retention and provision of a fully detailed design code as originally
envisaged along with parameter plans. The Phase 1 A housing has continued to be
developed as originally planned and will be submitted as a reserved matters application.

13.2.5

risk and cost implications associated with this.

13.2.6
milestones:

The planning programme has therefore been updated and

The LLP board endorsed the revised approach having considered carefully the programme,

is based upon the following key

Milestone

Workstream

Target date

EIA Scoping Request

Design and planning

May 2020 (submitted)

Pre-application

Design and planning

September 2019 (ongoing)

Initial Public Consultation

Communications and social and
economic regeneration

September 2019

Design Review

Design and planning

October 2019 — March 2020

Public Consultation Update

Communications and social and
economic regeneration

February 2020

Hybrid submitted

Design and Planning

June 2020 (subject to approval
of Final Proposals)

Phase 1 A Resident Engagement

Communications and social and
economic regeneration

June — September 2020

RMA Phase 1 A submitted Design and Planning September 2020
Hybrid Determined Design and Planning December 2020
Sign Section 106 Agreement Design and planning December 2020
Discharge Pre-Commencement | Design and planning March 2021

12

88




southend

’ BETTER 4
SWan NU s @' nsea
Iiving BOROUGH COUNCIL
Conditions for Highways Construction
Phase 1 A Determined Design and planning March 2021
Highways start on site Design and planning April 2021

Construction

HIF Milestone Spend Date April 2023

13.2.7 In summary the hybrid application will be submitted and will be followed by a reserved

14.0

14.1

14.11

14.2

14.2.1

13

matters application for the detail of the housing in Phase 1 A. This will be in accordance with
the design code submitted with the hybrid application. There will be a minimum of 267
homes in Phase 1 A in line with the Initial Business Plan, and the indicative number of homes
is currently 299 for Phase 1 A.

e The outline masterplan for future phases will be supported by a detailed design code.
The benefit of this approach is that it allows each phase of development to fit into and
inform the latter phases that will be controlled by development parameters and
supported by a Design Code. As Phase 1 A is being developed in parallel with the Design
Code and by the same team, the proposed Phase 1 A development will clearly reflect the
principles of the Design Code.

e Consultation will continue throughout the development period to inform future phases;
and

e All subsequent planning reserved matters applications will be supported by a Design
Statement and Planning Statement to demonstrate compliance with the principles of the
approved design code and established parameters approved at outline stage.

e The outline parameters will be the ones tested for the EIA and the EIA will test and
consider the worst-case scenario applicable under the outline parameters. Each
Reserved Matters Application will therefore sit within the constraints identified by those
parameters.

Communications and Consultation

Description

A communications and stakeholder engagement strategy has been developed by joint
working between the Southend Borough Council communications team, the Swan
communications team and external consultants appointed by the LLP (GL Hearn).

Commentary

A very intensive public engagement process was carried out around the masterplan and
highways proposals in February 2020. This saw a number of resident and stakeholder events
with good attendance from a range of people. The LLP received generally positive feedback
from local residents who are keen to see progress made and for the regeneration project to
get on site and start delivering the new homes.

89




SWan NU e {@])

14.2.2

14.2.3

14.2.4

14.2.5

14.2.6

15.0

15.1

15.2

15.2.1

15.2.2

15.2.3

15.2.4

14

southend
Sea

WGH COU

living

The LLP also held a dedicated business stakeholder engagement session in The Forum with
two slots and invited businesses from across the town and other major employers and
representatives to hear about the plans and how they would complement the offer of
Southend Town Centre and the seafront. The events were well attended, and useful
feedback was received. Generally positive feedback was given. Unusually, out of 400
recorded individual attendees across a range of events, only one piece of written negative
feedback was recorded by the project team.

Press engagement also took place with BBC radio, the echo and other local news channels.
The BBC were due to film a piece on the regen proposals in March 2020 but due to the
coronavirus pandemic this has been postponed until a new date when filming can take
place. There is a considerable amount of positive interest in the proposals.

A resident steering group has been formed to help residents of the estate engage with the
project and provide input into the emerging designs. Residents from the Queensway Estate
were invited to join this group.

A series of resident steering group workshops is planned over summer 2020 with the design
team for Phase 1 A and the park area to help input into the designs. These workshops will be
around key design themes such as entrances and lobbies, public space and amenity space
and flat layouts and design. The workshops may initially be held virtually depending on the
situation, but we have been piloting the use of technology to demonstrate proposals online
and have surveyed members of the group individually for their capability and we will be able
to progress either way.

Further press releases focusing on key positive aspects of the proposals are planned over
Summer 2020 and further engagement with stakeholders will continue throughout the
project.

Key changes to the scheme contained within “Final Proposals”

Each change identified on the change log within the appendix is set out below and further
details explaining the rationale for the change are provided below:

Building Massing

Description:

Revision of building massing along the Queensway and Sutton Road in response to SBC
comments post-bid.

Commentary:
At the commencement of Work Stage 2, the Design Team received comments from
Southend Council on the ISFS Bid Stage proposals. Amongst these massing specifically to

buildings facing Sutton Road and along the length of the Queensway. These are illustrated
in the below.

90



southend
onsea

BOROUGH COUNCIL

SWaNn NU s @)

living

\l Massing concerns I NS =

1 Concerns about surrounding suburban
context

2 Concerns about this * wall of development
3 Station area ‘could take more height’

Extract of LLP DTM presentation to Design Team
at the Work Stage 2 kick-off meeting. 2
September 2019

Revised illustrative massing presented 23.09.19
highlighting areas revised.

Revised massing proposal presented 20.04.20
highlighting key areas revised in response to DSO
and microclimate feedback

15.2.5 During the bid process, the Team requested a formal pre-application from Southend-on-Sea
Borough Council (SBC), which took place in November 2018. The Team made a presentation,
which detailed the provisional massing of the scheme. The building height focussed the
massing on locations to maximise opportunities of sea views, limit overlooking to existing
neighbourhood properties and reduce overshadowing of neighbouring properties and the
public realm. The proposed massing during the bid process can be shown in the ‘Masterplan

15
91



SWan NU e @

15.2.6

15.2.7

15.2.8

15.2.9

15.3

15.3.1

15.3.2

15.3.3

15.3.4

15.3.5

15.3.6

16

southend
Sea

IGH COM

living

Vision Pre-App Meeting Document’ that was submitted to the Local Authority prior to the
bid pre-application meeting in November 2018.

The focus of the massing would be on Plots A (the Range site), B, E and K (along Queensway)
and G (adjacent to Porters park), with it reducing along the Coleman Street, Southchurch
Road and adjacent to the Church, to minimise the impact on the existing residential amenity
and the designated and non-designated heritage assets.

During pre-application meetings prior to completion of JV, the Planning Officers questioned
the massing of the proposals along Coleman Street (Plots G, H and J) and Sutton Road (Plots
J and K). In their Pre-Application Letter (dated 26 November 2018) the Planning Officers
recommended that the massing on these blocks be reduced to no more than three storeys in
height to align with paragraph 168 of the Southend Central Area Action Plan, which states
that proposals should complement the existing dwellings in the street scene.

The Planning Officers also advised that the reduction of the massing along Coleman Street
could be accommodated on other parts of the Site, including Block A (adjacent to Victoria
Station).

The principal changes since the bid comprise increasing the massing in Plot A (the Range
site) as well as reducing the massing along Coleman Street to three storeys, in line with the
advice from the bid pre-application. The updated massing is shown within the illustrative
masterplan, contained in the appendix. In addition to the feedback from the Planning
Officers, subsequent assessments from daylight, sunlight and overshadowing and wind
consultants have altered the change in massing since the bid stages. This is shown on
dRMM'’s updated massing drawing. Mitigation measures include the introduction of a gap to
the massing of Plot A to the western aspect (to reduce the impact from Daylight, Sunlight
and Overshadowing for the existing dwellings along Short Street) and setbacks on the south-
east corner of Block A (to reduce the adverse impact from wind channelling).

Basement Extent and Parking Strategy

Description

Revision (reduction) to the extent of basement as illustrated in the Bid Scheme. Proposed
solution to allocate majority of car parking in podium and multi-storey car park structures.
Proposed overall target parking ratio for the masterplan at 0.7 spaces per property as per
bid stage (note existing estate is 0.25 spaces per property).

Commentary

Through the course of RIBA Work Stage 2, the deliverability of the basement solution under
Phases 1 and 4 was identified as unfeasible.

The basement has been omitted to concentrate parking within a multi-storey car park on
Plot A (Range site) and podium car park provision across other plots, including Phase 1 B, on
the masterplan.

During delivery, the level of parking will fluctuate phase to phase and so a parameter of 0.5
— 1 space per dwelling is being sought in the outline application. There will be capacity for
0.7 parking spaces on an interim basis at occupation of Phase 1 A. Some parking areas may
need to move in line with scheme delivery and phasing.

92



BETTER
e

southend
onsea

SWan Nu

living

@

15.3.7 20% of permanent parking spaces will be installed with Electric Vehicle (EV) charging points
and passive provision for the remaining 80% will be provided.

PODIUM PARKING

[ vk sevet pooum
PARKING

BOSOUGH COUNCIL

<t Rosdent: vaticuar acces fdiction
o bavel and mosterpian vehicle foutes
= Principis padsatian crosings

[ Locotonol ground level secize
resdenty car par (pedium car parky

S Resdents stuet parking woces

== Viiton sheet porking spaces

=, brep ot 20nes

Bid stage parking strategy Proposed parking strategy as per the Final
Proposals illustrative masterplan scheme

15.3.8 It is worth noting that the parameter plans submitted under the masterplan Outline

Planning Application (OPA) allows for flexibility in the basement provision, and as such a
basement is shown to the Porter’s Park Character Area, including the extend of the existing
basement structure, in addition to a basement on the east side of the site, north of All
Saint’s Church. This additional extend is intended to provide additional capacity to reach a
parking capacity for 1,800 home and allow flexibility in the provision across phases. It is not
intended to build out the full extent of the parameter plan basement area.

The outline of the maximum basement provision sought under the OPA is as illustrated below.

17

93



sWan NU =@

living

uthend
onsea

BOSOUGH COUNCIL

/o

Draft basement parameter plan.

15.4

154.1

15.4.2

15.4.2

15.4.3

15.4.4

18

Building Heights

Description

Revision of maximum building heights in isolated locations to allow for up to 18 storeys of
residential with ground floor commercial/lobby space and allow for roof plant and lift over-
run. Confirm no buildings to be taller than the corresponding tallest building on Victoria
Avenue.

Commentary

During the course of RIBA Work Stage 2 and consolation with Southend Airport, the Project
Team were able to understand the height constraints on the site as imposed by Southend
Airport operations. The designs for the site have emerged to ‘shadow’ the maximum height
of Alexander House, located at the junction of the Queensway and Victoria Avenue.

The strategy discussed and agreed in principle with Southend Airport allows the Better
Queensway buildings to be built up to a maximum height of the registered maximum AOD of
Alexander House, utilising the ‘shadowing’ principle set out by the Civil Aviation Authority
(CAA). The few proposed buildings that are taller than the existing Queensway Estate
towers will be justified to the CAA based on being no taller than the tallest nearby obstacle
registered by Southend Airport to date.

94



southend
. ONSea

™y
BOROUGH COUNCIL

SWan NU sz @)

living

:v_ 43 AOL 89.43 AOD 89.22 AOD
Top of existing  § T - e

:
zreon JITTTTIIITIIRTTIO]] Eipy oo
h 4
gy 7712400 o 2575 A0D SR

Alexander House Proposed Tall Building

{Plot A) Pennine & Quesnsway

Buildings

Comparative elevation study of max height of
Alexander House (based on planning records and
Southend Airport’s Records) and proposed Better
Queensway buildings

15.4.5 At the presentation that was discussed as part of the bid process, the maximum height
across the scheme was 16 storeys, which was situated at the Range Site (Block A), adjacent
to Victoria Station. Other tall buildings across the Site included 15 storeys opposite Victoria
Shopping Centre (Block B) and 14 storeys adjacent to Queensway (Block E). Initial
discussions with London Southend Airport during the bid process confirmed that in principle,
the height of the proposed buildings should not be taller than the existing buildings (see
email correspondence with the Airport, dated 30 August 2018).

15.4.6 At the pre-application meeting, the principle of 16 storeys at this location was considered
acceptable by the Planning Officers as it corresponded with Policy DM4 of Southend’s
Development Management Document, which states that tall buildings are acceptable in
sustainable locations, provided that it was satisfactory to the Airport.

15.4.7 After the bid, the Team was asked to explore whether the maximum height of the scheme
could be increased to around 20 storeys, to make best use of sea views and maximise future
flexibility. This would mean that the maximum AOD height of the buildings would be over
90m.

15.4.8 The Team held subsequent discussions with London Southend Airport on 3 February 2020
and the 20-storey proposal was presented. The Airport confirmed that the Site is situated
within the Airport’s Inner Zone and therefore, no proposed buildings that were taller than
other buildings in the area would be permitted (see notes from dRMM, dated 4 February).
Further discussions with the Airport determined that the tallest existing building was
situated along Victoria Avenue (Alexander House) and was 89.43m AOD in height. The
Airport acknowledged the ‘shadowing’ principle, where the development could match the
existing height of the tallest building in the area, could be utilised for this scheme.

15.4.9 As a consequence, the Team has applied the shadowing principle to the proposals and is
seeking a maximum height of 89.43m AOD. This is equivalent to approximately 18 storeys
and considers plant space etc. The focus of the height is still on the Range Site (Plot A) and
adjacent to Queensway (Plot E).

19
95



SWan NU e {@])

southend
Sea

WGH COU

living

15.4.10 In addition, during the bid process, the proposal comprised one block of 12 storeys on the

corner of Chichester and Southchurch Road. The Team subsequently had a pre-application
meeting with Historic England in November 2018. In their formal advice (see letter dated 27
November 2018), the Historic Officer raised concerns about the height of that block
adversely impacting the Warrior Square Conservation Area to the south.

15.4.11 Therefore, the height of that block on the corner has reduced from 12 to 7 storeys to reflect

15.5

15.6

15.7

15.8

15.8.1

15.8.2

15.8.3

15.8.4

15.8.5

20

the comments from Historic England (see the Illustrative Masterplan).
Highway Alignment

This was a study to review the alignment of Queensway between Short Street and
Southchurch Road. The bid stage aligned Queensway to the north to provide a more
satisfactory road geometry. It also extended outside of the current publicly maintainable
highway land.

The study centred around three alignments within the current publicly maintainable
highway boundary. The current road corridor is circa 30 metres wide and the proposed
around 15 metres which gave scope propose three alignments: southern, central and
northern. The study considered several constraints including the proximity of a trunk water
sewer and considered a number of outcomes (developable land, impact to utilities, highway
geometry etc) in a qualitative assessment. The northern alignment was selected as the
preferred alignment and this happened to be the closest to bid stage alighment.

Phase 1 A Plots and Porters Park

Description

Arrangement of Phase 1A blocks around Porters Park revised to avoid physical constraints in
Phase 1A. Includes a fourth free-standing building to the west of Warrior Square East Road.
Noted redistribution of public realm from the bid stage masterplan.

Commentary

Following a Design Team review of the site constraints and a client instruction to review the
distribution of public realm space across the masterplan to maintain the same quantum of
public space across the scheme, the Project Team revised the extent of Phase 1A buildings to
avoid some of the most challenging constraints while meeting the LLP business plan
requirements for Phase 1A.

One of the key changes has been the introduction of a free-standing building to the west

side of Warrior Square East. This building (Plot G) was introduced in place of the block of
accommodation along the Queensway of Plot E.

96



southend
onsea

BOROUGH COUNCIL

SWan NU e @

Iiving S

Bid stage illustrative masterplan, showing the Proposed Final Proposals illustrative masterplan,

original provision of Porter’s Park and Phase 1A showing the revised provision of Porter’s Park

buildings highlighted and subsequent public realm improvements with
Phase 1A buildings highlighted

Extract of LDA Constraints Report, which
informed the siting and extent of Phase 1A
Buildings, particularly utility retention
/diversions, highways assets and works, Essex
Street access, existing mature tree retention
and extensions of existing street network.

15.9 Cycling

15.9.1 Queensway forms one of Southend-on-Sea’s existing bike routes down to the sea front, but
it is disconnected from other cycle routes in proximity (e.g. Queensway at Victoria Gateway
junction and Victoria Avenue). Building on the proposal for dedicated cycle lanes along
Queensway, the design team performed various sketch studies exploring potential options
to enhance cycle connectivity. This was primarily carried out at the Short Street Junction
and the section of Queensway to the south of the planning application boundary.

15.9.2 For the Short Street junction, it was determined that a cycle path on either side of
Queensway was the most deliverable and safe option given the existing constraints of the
Victoria Shopping Centre and existing bus traffic to the west of the junction.

21
97



southend
Sea

RIGH CORJ

SWan NU e {@])

living

15.9.3 For the section of Queensway to the south of the planning application boundary, a variety of
options were also studied. Each of these options depended on extensive works outside the
planning application boundary and it was determined that the most deliverable solution for
the project was to tie into the existing shared pedestrian / cycle path on the western edge of
Queensway.

15.10 Queensway Street Planting
15.10.1 Street Trees & Verge Planting

15.10.2 Based on a typical cross section of Queensway, the team consulted with several
stakeholders with regard to the maintenance of planting along Queensway. The following
concerns were identified:

e Maintenance & establishment concerns related to health &safety requirements for
maintaining planting within the median,

e The potential for vehicle overrun within areas adjacent to the carriageway,

e adesire for tree species with an appropriate clear stem height, and

e the potential conflicts between street lighting and street tree canopies.

15.10.3 To address these concerns LDA developed a planting strategy based on the stakeholder
feedback. This included the following points:

o the planting of shrubs within the median to limit maintenance and establishment
requirements,

e awider than standard highways kerb of 300mm along the planted areas in the verge and
median,

e aselection of tree species that could achieve an appropriate clear stem height, and

e an initial sense check on street tree spacing in relationship to potential street lighting
requirements.

15.11 Phasing Strategy

15.11.1 The design team developed an initial indicative phasing plan based on the bid stage phasing
strategy, illustrative masterplan, and discussions within the client team. To support the
development of the indicative phasing plan a series of overlay drawings were produced
along with a detailed assessment of the sequence of Phase 1A. These overlays informed
various discussions within the client and design teams and led to a revised indicative phasing
plan.

15.12 Energy Strategy
15.12.1 The bid stage energy strategy proposed:

e Reducing the energy demand though energy efficiency measures,

e Supplying heat on site though the provision of an onsite energy centre with a CHP
system (+ gas boilers and thermal storage),

e Providing on site renewable energy by maximising the provision of PV systems on roofs.

15.12.2 The first and last step in the strategy have not changed in approach since the bid stage.
However, since the bid stage there have been a number of changes in the energy landscape
in the UK, which had led to us needing to revise the overall approach for the energy supply

22
98



southend
Sea

GH COU

SWan NU e @

living

(step 2). We also had a meeting with the energy representative from the council and they
have acknowledged the need for the revision.

15.12.3 The main national changes that led to the BQ strategy review are:

e The government has (May 2019) put into law that the UK will be carbon neutral by 2050.

e The electric grid is rapidly decarbonising, currently proving lower carbon energy than the
gas grid (this is being reviewed in the energy Part L building regulations that are
currently under consultation).

15.12.4 These two points have led to the fact that a CHP system is currently not a low-carbon
system, as was the case when we started the bid. It has also led to the fact that a site wide
strategy that relies on a gas driven system (such as the CHP in the energy centre) does not
provide as much resilience as before, because we do not know what will happen with the
gas grid as the UK moves towards carbon neutrality.

15.12.5 Following the recent national changes, we reviewed the bid energy strategy and are
currently looking at resilient and flexible solutions that would enable the masterplan to
respond to on-going national changes (we can anticipate more changes in the next 10 year
but have no direction from government as to what these will be) and benefit from current
national decarbonisation strategies, such as the cleaner electricity provided by the national
electric grid. As such, the current preferred masterplan strategy puts forward a plot by plot
energy strategy and gives a short list of potential solutions that can be considered for each
plot at the time of detailed planning application:

e Full load Air Source Heat Pumps (ASHP)

e Hybrid: circa 50% (load) ASHP + Peak Load Boilers per phase

e Hybrid: circa 50% (load) ASHP + Peak Load Boilers in a central gas heat source

e Hybrid: circa 50 % (load) ASHP + circa 50% (load) Open-loop Ground Source Heat Pumps
(GSHP)

15.12.6 The preferred strategy for Phase 1A is option 2 above. This is still to be confirmed in
discussion with the LPA.

15.12.7 The sustainability statement that will be submitted with the planning application will
summarise in more detail the reasons for the change and the longlist of options we
considered, along with the shortlist of preferred strategies.

15.13 Commercial and non-Residential uses

15.13.1 The main changes to the non-Residential uses have been made in order to better carry out
the requirements of the bid for these uses. There has been a focus on utilising strategically
placed commercial and community use units in order to provide passive surveillance and
enliven the proposed public space. This should aid the effectiveness of reducing antisocial
behaviour and keep active ground floors in areas with heavier foot flow.

15.13.2 Space has been allocated to house uses such as artist’s studios, an event space, community
kitchens and maker spaces available to residents have been allocated, working on feedback
from community engagement, resident requirements and suggestions and public
presentations to local businesses.

15.13.3 Other changes have included:

23
99



SWan NU e @

southend
Sea

GH COU

living

No cinema or hotel use have been included since there are other proposals or existing
provision within the Town Centre and this project is intended to support and
complement the existing Town Centre rather than seek to compete.

Provision of workshop /light industrial use has been limited only to the west extent of
Plot A /Range Site. This is in order to not detract from residential use above and create a
more concentrated and active provision in this area. This is envisaged to be “maker”
space in line with the “make/create” originally envisaged within the bid scheme.

15.13.4 The proposed retail provision on Southchurch has been reduced from the current amount
with the retail contained in what is designated as ‘Block E’ (the block closest to the
roundabout at the junction of Queensway and Southchurch Road) being converted to a
residential frontage. The reasoning for this is:

To reduce the amount of retail provision in accordance with the current and forecast
market for physical retail.

This reduction will help to ensure that there are fewer vacant units and that retail units
are concentrated in the areas closer to the high street, concentrating retail foot flow and
making it more effective. This strategy is in keeping with the sitewide aim of ensuring
active Ground Floors

There has been an emphasis on providing affordable retail units in this location, keeping
unit sizes to circa 800 sq. ft and preserving the Victorian era frontage sizes of 3-4m This
aims to encourage sustainable, local and independent businesses and preserve the
‘local’ feel of the area.

15.13.5 In general, the uses have either been maintained or enhanced with minor changes.

15.14 Queensway South and Porters House interface

15.14.1 This study looked to capitalise on the reduction in corridor width of the proposed
Queensway south of Southchurch Road to the railway overbridge. The existing publicly
maintainable highway width is circa 30 metres but the required width for the proposed is
around 15 metres. This allow three options to be explored:

Pushing the alignment hard to the east to the Porters Civic House boundary,
Aligning it centrally
Pushing it hard to the western boundary.

15.14.2 The study considered constraints and number of outcomes including the amount of
additional developable land could be provided if the block to the south west of the
roundabout was included as a potential future development site by dRMM. The preferred
alignment was selected as the central corridor. This has led to further studies as this central
alignment provides a sizable area adjacent to the Civic Porters House boundary which could

be utilised for enhanced landscaping or transferred to Civic Porters House to reduce the area
of publicly maintainable highway land.

15.14.3 There is also an option to include extra parking spaces on the Eastern side of South
Queensway, utilising the space that a central alignment would provide.

16.0
16.1

24

Scheme Viability
Description

100



SWan NU e {@])

l6.1.1

16.2

16.2.1

16.2.2

16.2.3

16.2.4

16.2.5

16.2.6

16.2.7

16.2.8

16.2.9

southend
Sea

RIGH CORJ

living

The scheme at “final proposals” promoted by the LLP currently achieves the proposed LLP
target return of 15% profit on sales GDV. The development return is calculated as follows:

(Overall profit after finance costs + partner equity and loan interest) divided by residential
sales GDV)

The Initial Business Plan sets out in further detail the viability calculations that underpin this,
these remain consistent with the Initial Business Plan.

Commentary
The financial appraisal includes inflation in accordance with the procurement process.
The key inflation assumptions remain as per the Initial Business Plan.

Market Values will be supported by an independent market valuation. Residential market
values were refreshed by CBRE as an update to the report prepared in support of the original
bid and business plan. The values have broadly remained as per the previous commentary
provided at bid stage and the Initial Business Plan. An uplift in capital value of £7,500 per
plot for sea views is included in line with the Initial Business Plan.

In the Initial Business Plan, in line with advice from CBRE, a “regeneration uplift” of c.10%
from Phase 3a / October 2024 onwards was assumed as a result of works completed to the
Highway and public realm.

In the Final Proposals, the appraisal has been updated with an amended construction
programme and sequence and the delivery of Porters Park South is now included within
Phase 1. As a result of the enhanced place-making, the “regeneration uplift” is now applied
from Phase 1 B onwards to reflect this additional value.

In the Initial Business Plan, a value of £10,000 was applied to the private car parking spaces,
assumed to be 833 out of a total of 1,147 allocated to residential.

In the Final Proposals, the value of each space is assumed to be as per the Initial Business
Plan, however the number of spaces has been amended in line with the revisions to the
scheme; it is now assumed to be 880 spaces out of a total of 1,171 spaces allocated to
residential.

The construction cost estimates have been reviewed by G&T (cost consultants) and NU
living’s Commercial team and average as follows:

e Residential build (base build only) - £261.25m

e Commercial build - £8.03m

e Plot specific infrastructure - £56.01m (includes demolition, podiums, plot externals, plot
abnormals)

e Major external works and abnormals - £58.4m (includes sitewide highways, public realm,
attenuation tank, energy upgrade and utilities diversions).

Base build costs are broadly aligned to the Initial Business Plan.

16.2.10 As a result of further design work, analysis of site constraints and feedback from soft market

25

testing of contractors for demolition and highways packages, there have been some

101



sWan NU 2@

uthend
onsead

BOSOUGH COUNCIL

/o

living

increases to the cost allowances for key major external works and certain plot abnormals
(plot specific infrastructure).

16.2.11 However, there have also been some savings within the plot abnormals (plot specific
infrastructure), for example the removal of the basement car parks assumed at Bid stage
and within the Initial Business Plan.

16.2.12 The costs include the following allowances in line with the Initial Business Plan:

Prelims — 10% on base costs

Overheads — 3% on base and prelims

Design Fees — 7% on base costs

Contingency — 5% on base costs and above allowances

16.2.13 In terms of land assembly, figures have been included based on Property Cost Estimates
provided by SBC and is estimated to total £19.8m in line with the Initial Business Plan.

16.2.14 Figures exclude inflation and inflation is applied within the financial model using the same
assumptions as those contained within the Initial Business Plan as noted in item 16.2.1.

26

102



€01

Index of Slides

e e

Engagement Figures

[llustrative Masterplan

Master Plan Key Moves 1

Masterplan Key Moves 2

[llustrative Masterplan Massing

Parameter Plan Composite Overlay

Potential Sea Views

Parking Scenario 0.7 Ratio

Accommodation and Areas - Phasing

Landscape and Public Realm Strategy

New Tree Planting

General Alignment Location Plan

Porters Park and Coleman Gardens

The Queensway — Looking East from Victoria Station
The Queensway - Mid point Crossing looking South
Porters Park looking North

Porters Park looking South towards Southchurch Road
CGIO5 - Church Public Space

Design Evolution 1

Design Evolution 2

O 00 N o u B W N

o L e e Y e ey SO Gy o)
© 0 N O U A W N B, O




Appendix 2 — Engagement

v0T

PORTER'S PLACE
SOUTHEND-ON-

SEA LLP

Engagement Flgures

Residents & -

public:
600+ Eﬂ

7. Councillors:
A 100+

Stakeholders:

100+ @

Feedback: 78

-«



Appendix 2 — drawing 1

lllustrative Masterplan

SOT

MM Archiac
Setter Quoarsmery | Masterplan Summury




Appendix 2 — drawing 2

Masterplan Key Moves

90T

1. A Transformed Queensway

Unguestionably, our vision to transform the Queensway is the greatest
-and most ambitious - move on our masterplan. We are confident that
raising the road to grade and reinstating a street character will be very
successful and solve theissue of severance. This strategy removes the
phyiscal and pyschological barriersthat the queenway road presents
and delivers an inlcusive place for everybody to enjoy.

2. Re-stitching the Urban Fabric

Inspired by the historic street pattern of the site, our vision is lagely
centred around restitching the severed urban fabric to create a more
permeable environment, particularly for pedestrian movements. A
partof this is strategy isto re-orderthe hierarchy of transport modes
to ensure thatactive transport routes are not only prioritised but
celebrated.

3. Enhancing Connections hetween
the High Street and its surrounding
neighbourhoods

Surrounding neighbourhoods have been severed from the high street
since the implementation of the Queensway Highway more than 60
years ago. Our vision and strategy enables us these neighbourhoods
and provide better, safer, access to the city centre and beyond to the
seafront. These enhanced connections provide opportunities for social
interaction and potentially increase active footfall to the highstreet.



Appendix 2 — drawing 3

Masterplan Key Moves 2

4. A Network of Public Open Spaces

The central green space representsthe heart of thesite, acting asa
bridge between the two sidesof Queensway road The park itself will
provide opportunities for social interaction and physical activity for
residents & visitars of all ages. Residents old and new are encouraged
toembrace the space as a cherished community asset, aplace to come
togetherand enjoy.

5. Groundfloor activation and natural
surveillance

Queensway has the potential to create anewdynamic and animated
mixed-use neighbourhood, for existing and new communities to
enjoy as aplace to live, work and visit. With activation at groundfloor,
and spaces designed with purpose and function in mind, we areable

to create safe, well-used spaces that mitigate antisocial behaviour.
Thescale of the open spaces are an important factorand natural
surveillance has been optimised acmss the scheme to ensure
everybody feels safe walking through the neighbourhood.

MM At amacts
Battur Crassranary | Meserpdan Surmemary

6. Scale that respects the context

The arrmngement of the taller landmark buildingsare generally

arranged in a cluster amund the public realm improvements of

Porters Park and also at strategic locations as visual accents adjacent to
Southend Victoria Station and onthe Queensway approach axis.



Py T
Bertor Ouorsmamery | Masderpha Surmrmery

lllustrative Masterplan Massing

Appendix 2 — drawing 4

.
d

%




Appendix 2 - Drawing 5

Parameter Plan Composite Overlay

Terlary Vehicke Roule with inkerance of 15 metres.
wariance of Fe fldune locaion of the sineet.

T - —— Servicing Roule wih iolerance of 15 mefres
warianos of the fulune localion of the route.

e Underground Enfance imo Desning 1o be retained
Up o +42 03m ADD - Up I +£7.38m ADD

A T SR, THE P A AT HRA WA T T LA B L 0 50 E L (A
T—r—1 W R i,
| | g O e e - o .

[Appo. 3 Eloreys) {Approo. 10 SHormys)
Upmo+astsmaco ([ UP D +TiE8AOD
[Appro. 4 Sloreys) (Approx. 12 Sioreys)
Up o +51_E3m A0D Up b +75 B3m ADD
8 el il At
Up i +54.T8m ACD U o +7S.95m ACD
© L [Aporo. & Stoneyz) - [Approw. 44 Storeys]
I eeSlEmACD g b +EE.28m ADD
[Mporon. B Storeys) ApproE 15 Etoneyz)
El woeSiDmACD g URWHES43mA00
(Mg, S Storeys) Appros 18 Etoreys)
V. DRSCRIPFTION AFF. DATE
PRt TS
Bafier Quesnsway

CRAMING TITLE

Parameter Plan Compasite Ovenay

FESUED BY  London T 020 7457 1470

DATE 100,200 DRAWN ME
SCALEwA%Y  1-2500 CHECKED HE
STATUS Draft APPROVED L)

L DWG MO BEQ-LDA-ZZ-XX-XX-DR-N-ST-00010

- 3 € LA Do Contealbing L. Chaliry Astared w05 T 50 B0 3O0ES
o 1
(=] = e . - Songrces Crrmncs Saresy
el ; : e - A L i - .-
This drweng ray sontan: {rdrancs ..-mi'q-mdm.mmm,mhhnfum-mdrhupmnsuumm_oc“wmuu rights rmsarved. Referencs nurbar G105,
CE Cypan data /6 Namral England | € DEFRA  © DECL | © Englah Hertsge. Aaral Fantography - BSRI, gtk ke, GOy, i-ooed, UE0A FEa LSGEL AEX, Cetrmappng, Asmgrd, IGH KGF, rarasope, the GIS Lser Communsy




M A
Butor Choasarawary | Mistorplan Surrrrary

Appendix 2 — drawing 6

Potential Sea Views




MM Aschibacin

Appendix 2 — drawing 7 -
Parking Scenario 0.7 Ratio

Notes:
* 1171 Spaces = 0.702

» Phasing - 1a, 1b, 3a, 3b, 2a, 2b, 2c, 4
* 4 level MSCP to Plot A
» Double stacked podium to Plots B

and E
s 589 parking spaces on street within

public realm, 17 on Queensway, 48 in

adjacent streats [
Commentary:
s  Maintains a minimum of 0.7 through

o

all phases aside from Phasa 1b at

0.522

+=  Multi level above grade parking is

restricted to Plots A, B and E only

\
EEEEEE )l

parking minimums =

=
[N
[E=Y

——

n PODIUM PARKING

MULTI LEVEL PODIUM
PARKING



Appendix 2 — drawing 8

Accommodation and Areas - Phasing

A

4%

..‘.,t\‘ \\Wr:" o

-
.
.

-
.
st

MM Archeac
Sestir Qumaranwery | Mesdorpian Sumemary



Appendix 2 —drawing 9

BETTER QUEENSWAY /LDA DESICN & dRMM

Landscape & Public Realm Strategy

Our plan leads with landscape and public realm
as a key driver, since it isthe landscape which describes
bow people and place belong together, and how each

Coleman Gardens

has shaped the other Und d this way, landscape is e § s g pip icdondy a

who we are and what we are - not some remcte vistaora Victoria S -

backdrop to ourlives. Square =

At Better O b b Coleman Street
t Better Q ,this approach has evolved P e s b

into 2 highly purp efal social end ur, ing Landscape Passage

much more than good public realm. [t hasbeen about ‘. i

changing the order of our thinking, and putting life

first. Southend %

The strategy prioritises aclear und dingof 3
what people need and want from the public realm. F *
The open space strategy includes 2 network of 6 A~ _

unique public open spaces that not only support the
hemes integration into the surrounding context
|-snd strengthen connections to the town centre BUT
Oxrucially, it creates 2 variety of opportunities for
and exchangy gst people of all ages. The

spatial arganisation of this network of spaces provides t'"'nnwl"
the chance for encounter through the way a pathis
designed, or the positioning of 2 low seating wall, and
multi-functional spaces suppart active curation that
the community both old and new can become involved
in. This leads to comvivial and inclusive places with
strangly characterised spaces.

At the heart of the public realm strategy is improved
connectivity, and the transformation of Queensway.
Queensway is brought to grade and isdesigned to work
together with the network of public open spaces to
improve the pedestrian experience, cycle connectivity,
and user safety within

the neighbourbood. Collectively the netwark of public
open spaces and new streetscape strengthen links to key
transport nodes within the town centre, the high street,
and the surrounding residential streets.

DRAFT WIP
9



Appendix 2 —drawing 10

New Tree Planting

Southend-onSea guidance recommends a 2-for-1
replacement for existing trees that are removed.

Based on the loss of existing trees the illustrative
masterplan provides 188 new trees as 2 part of the
scheme.

Y11

Legend
77 Davelcpment Enveicpe

. Existing Trees 1o be Retoined

. Propoand Trae

BETTER QUEENSWAY /LDA DESICN & dEMM

DRAFT WIP

10



STT

Appendix 2 —drawing 11

Bevesam

TR g e v e et o
e bt e g v e
-

3 o g s v e it
b i 4 o by o et

-
N i s b g o A

=

‘:J' ez
4 5% s
i ,rrﬂ :
.,‘.u---...;-awz'-—""f, %

[ [
] o e i
. : L
6 SUTTON RO S v
| B e
| = —
[ s
[

N [ [
3;.-;\ 9 ———
y SR ———
AR\ ——
My

N

TR { | ssonoupygiisgor — —




Appendix 2 — drawing 12

BETTER QUEENSWAY / LDA DESICN & dUMM

Porter’s Park and Coleman Gardens N

Parter’s Park and Coleman Cardens together form Porter’s
Flace. These two spaces form the central focal point of
the development. Porter’s Park and Coleman Cardens

are designed to share 3 common identity. This common
identity is established through 2 shared design language,
material palette, and site furnishings palette.

In terms of character, Porter's Park is designed asa local
park space for the neighbourhood. The park includesa
variety of types of seating, lawn spaces, planting, andan
equipped play area

Coleman Gardens is also designed as 2 local park space
for the neighbourhood. The spaceis predominately
dedicated to play and inciudes 3 LEAP play facility. The
play faclity has 3 green character and is supported

by pockets of seating that ensure this 3 safe place for
children to play, and for family gatherings to take place
that build community spirit. Additionally, the park
includes 2 number of retained trees, areas of planting,
and padestrian links to Coleman Street.

-
[E=Y
]

DRAFT WIP

1



LTT

Appendix 2 — drawing 13

The Queensway - Looking east from Victoria Station




8TT

Appendix 2 — drawing 14
The Queensway - Mid point Crossing looking South

R o
1) bl 5
- 7N
= E =
- - 9.
= el n =~
riil et —
— sl I
: .'f1 | R, b, ot
o E x ] wii
B i
3l
i
B {
1 | =3 r-':;_ I

13



Appendix 2 — drawing 15

Porters Park looking North

119

14



0cT

Appendix 2 —drawing 16
Porters Park looking South towards Southchurch Road

R

15



TZ1

Appendix 2 — drawing 17
CGIO05 — All Saints Church Public Space

16



Appendix 2 — Drawing 18
Design Evolution 1

« follows northern boundary where possible

o o
North Align me nt « retains sewer within the roadway corridor Central Align ment

* larger southern development potential

« follows central alignment of existing road
where possible
* retains sewer within the roadway corridor

32Design Evolution

The principal of the changes to Queensway centred
around unlocking the site for redevelopment and
creating a connective spine linking together the
masterplan. This built on Swan’s bid stage proposal.

5 N—

The existing Queensway road corridor is approximately 32
metres wide - being as wide as an eight lane motorway.
Whilst maintaining Queensway as a high vehicular
capacity road of four lanes at-grade, this released nearly
half of the road surface area back to other uses within
the masterplan. To find the ideal alignment within the
existing road corridor, three alternative alignments

were studied with the wider design team as a part of

the masterplanning process. A major constraint was the
location of an existing 1.3 metre diameter surface water
trunk sewer that pass under the Queensway. A summary
of the findings are provided in the image captions to the
right.

=F

Collectively, it was concluded that Queensway should =
fqﬂqw the northern alignment as this provided the best [ e T T T T
gpometry for the highway in balance with the other
wisr masterplan objectives. The resulting alignment . « follows southern boundary where possible ! Northern Alignment — Selected. Provides the most favourable of road geometry for the roundabout with
h N dsz d ) f Iki li galg 1 3 ° SO u t h AI Ig n m e nt * retains sewer within the roadway corridor Southchurch Road. Releases land on southern side
as given added space for walking, cycling, tree planting, « larger northern development potential z . 5
and Sustainable Urban Drainage that support the wider - ~N—— o Central Alignment — Roundabout geometry inefficient.
masterplan objectives. 4 < \ * South Alignment — Roundabout geometry unworkable

=

e R T TR =T

20



Appendix 2 — Drawing 19

Design Evolution 2

32Design Evolution

Additionally, during the process the highways design
tested a number of alternatives that were identified
through the first round of consultation. The alternatives
identified included a 30mph speed limit (1), a 20mph
speed limit (2), a left turn flare from roundabout to
Southchurch Road (3), and the opening of Coleman Street
to Queensway (4). These alternatives were tested through
highways drawing and consulted on with a number of
wider strategic highways improvement during a second
round of public consultations for the masterplan.

The following conclusions were drawn from the second
round public consultation feedback and further design
and traffic modeling testing following the consultation.

At the first round of consultation the principal of raising
Queensway to grade was presented, a number of ideas
fdlidwed that were explored further and were presented
e second round of consultation. These included a
30mph speed limit and its effect on the roundabout
geometry in comparison to (1) a 20mph speed limit (2), a
left turn flare from roundabout to Southchurch Road (3),
and the opening of Coleman Street to Queensway (4).

The 30mph geometry was chosen in consideration

of the importance given to the movement of traffic

on Queensway. The road has been designed with
regular features’ and the additional kerb side activity
the development will create will promote a lower and
consistent speed unlike the current Queensway. The
opening of Coleman Street raised concerns on the
opportunity for traffic to ‘rat-run’ on a narrow residential
street. The left turn flare lane provided little additional
traffic capacity and required the pedestrians to cross five
lanes of traffic, which would require traffic to wait longer.
However, passive provision has been secured to allow
the construction of this flare lane in the future if it ever
deemed necessary.

Moderate width
pedestrian crossing

Relaxed roundabout
geometry

Moderate vehicle speeds

(-] /‘: ~{/" Left-in, left-out movements to reduce rat running
" iy otential for monitoring technologies to restrict
~ P B B
N .\ users and access times are not reliable and
L 1] ‘\\\\\ ~4 enforcement may be difficult
. NN T

. | S e Wi

| »
Additional junction for pedestrians
& cyclists to cross

Likely additional traffic Iﬂ
along Coleman Street

\ 'Local access only'

1

i
—h—-n-apused vehicle acoess.
Coleman Street access

Shortest pedestrian crossing

Tighter roundabout
alignment

Lower vehicle speeds

Longer crossing length

required

|
Pedestrian crossing shifted
north, outside of desire line

Wide road

Roundabout - slip lane

21



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3 - Final Proposals summary

This appendix sets out a summary of the final proposals in relation to the procurement objectives set by the Council in 2018 and in the context of the Initial Business Plan which was agreed in
November 2019. The following table highlights how the final proposals scheme addresses both of these factors. Any changes in the scheme since the last Business Plan was approved in

1A )

November 2019 will result in the new scheme being included in an amended Business Plan immediately upon approval of the final proposals.

No Procurement Objectives

Assessment of bid proposal

Position in the final proposals June 2020

The Council requires a mixed use integrated residential
and commercial use scheme on the site with mixed
tenure housing development of private sale, private
rent, and an increase on the 441 affordable units on the
site, as well as a scheme that is in accordance with the
Council’s planning policies.

The scheme developed for the procurement exercise met this

objective by demonstrating a strong mix of these

requirements. It delivered an increase on the 441 affordable

units on site and demonstrated a strong planning approach. It

included:

e Over 1600 homes

e Over 500 affordable homes split across tenures

e These affordable homes were demonstrated to be locally
affordable e.g. rents at or below Local Housing Allowance
levels

e Mixed use / tenure scheme

The detail of the housing to be delivered will not form part of
the hybrid planning application this July, however a Design
Code will set much of the look and feel of the housing to be
applied for. The detail of the housing itself will be the subject
to future reserved matters planning applications (RMAs)
relevant to the various phases of development. The project
continues to seek to maximise housing, in the context of the
overall scheme and the need for financial viability.

The Initial Business Plan set out a baseline of 1,658 homes,
512 of which will be affordable (of different tenures). The
final proposals revises this to seek planning for between 1,669
and 1,760 homes through a parameter plan approach. An
Illustrative Masterplan is also to be submitted to planning to
demonstrate how the lower of these parameters can be
delivered. This Indicative Masterplan includes 1669 homes
that would be delivered in the first phase of the housing. The
results of the 2019/20 Housing Needs Survey, alongside
analysis of site and delivery constraints, have been used to
inform the first phase of housing which will follow the hybrid
planning application as a reserved matters application. This is
to ensure that suitable homes can be provided for the first
residents to move in line with the phasing strategy for the
project.

Additionally the JV board and the two shareholders have
reached an agreement in principle to deliver a minimum of an
additional 100 social rented homes through the conversion of
private sale units with gap funding / acquisition costs provided
by the Council. This accords with the Council’s commitment,
reflected in the LLP business plan, to maximise affordable
homes in the scheme.

The Council aspires to the expeditious delivery of the
scheme as soon as reasonably practicable in accordance
with a robust and realistic proposal whilst managing and
minimising disruption.

The programme plan developed in the bidder’s concept for
the procurement process would see activities from both JV
partners commence as soon as Full Council approval is given
to expedite the process. This programme would see works in
the example scheme commence in 2021 (e.g. pre planning

The timetable has moved to accommodate extended
consultation and generation of options in relation to the
feedback received. Therefore the target completion date for
the construction element is now 2033. In order to maintain
pace, the first planning application, summarised in these final

1|Page




9T

No Procurement Objectives

Assessment of bid proposal

Position in the final proposals June 2020

work) and anticipated completion of the site in 2032. Priority

is demonstrably been given to the rehousing of the current BQ

residents. It included:

e Highways works proposed to commence 2021 -5 year
programme with possibility to be negotiated down

e Proposed completion of site 2032

proposals, will now be a hybrid application consisting of
outline for the whole site through parameter plans, a Design
Code and detail for the highway. This will be followed by a
reserved matters application for the first phase of the housing
for a minimum of 267homes in line with the Initial Business
Plan.

There have been significant changes to the phasing of the
scheme which has led to all but one phase being delayed in
the programme and taking longer to complete. This has been
on t he back of further analysis of the development
programme and potential market absorption of units. These
changes are offset in the whole programme by bring forward
in the programme a later phase. As a result the overall
scheme is completed in 2033 one year later than the previous
scheme.

In relation to the highways works early contractor
involvement has begun to identify the optimum phasing and
delivery timescale. The highway design is assessed as being
the only option which allows the Queensway to remain open
during the whole development period, therefore seeking to
minimise disruption.

The Council is seeking the establishment of a safe,
vibrant, sustainable community through the Better
Queensway scheme that will impact positively on the
economic and social well-being of the Community. This
should include the establishment and operation of an
on-going Community Fund.

This objective has been met through a demonstration of their

design concept and the establishment and operation of a

community fund. The overall concept included significant

elements of community safety. It included:

e CCTV

e Community concierge — Staffed facility to provide local
residents with onsite services and support

e Activated green spaces

e SuDs provisions

e Energy Centre on site

e Opportunities for start-up businesses

e Community Fund and Community Liaison Role established

While information relating to security is too detailed for this
stage in the planning process, secure entrances, CCTV and
concierge services have all featured as part of the recent
consultation and are included within the lobbies.

There has been a reconfiguration of the green space to reflect
constraints identified in plot delivery. A park is at the heart of
the development has been changed in shape and reduced in
size with the green space being distributed throughout the
site. The key public spaces are all as per the original bid
scheme with the distribution of the same amount of green
space with the introduction of a new green link connecting
Porters Park through to Southchurch Road, reflecting
anticipated pedestrian desire lines.

In regards to the energy provision, the building and energy
regulations have changed and CHP systems are no longer
compliant with current regulations. As a result, a revised a
revised energy strategy has been prepared that will be
submitted to planning which sets out different ways the

2|Page




LT

No Procurement Objectives

Assessment of bid proposal

Position in the final proposals June 2020

scheme could address the new regulations on a phase by
phase basis. This will likely include air source heat pumps
which are recognised as a low carbon technology. This change
in strategy has required additional plant and equipment to be
located on the roofs of the blocks causing an increase in
height of one storey.

The Queensway design has been developed with a co-
ordinated sustainable urban drainage strategy in mind, this is
considered with the selection of trees and planting, the
proposed paving and detailing and the inter-relationship
between this and the green spaces throughout the rest of the
scheme.

As a secondary feature the benefits of infilling the Queensway
allow for water attenuation tanks to be placed in the current
underpass, making use of that space to the benefit of the
development and the wider town, particularly the seafront
which can suffer from flooding in heavy rain events.

Community Liaison Officer is already in post.

The Council requires the delivery of a revised highways
scheme serving the Better Queensway site in line with
4 | the requirements as set out in the Descriptive
Document with all adopted roads continuing to be
maintained by the Council.

The scheme developed for the procurement meets the

requirements set out in the descriptive document and

Highways Design and Principles document. It included:

e Four lanes from town centre to seafront retained

e Raises the Queensway underpass to ground level
throughout

e Recognises traffic flow requirements whilst seeking to

improve permeability across the site

The highway will be submitted in detail as part of the hybrid
planning application. Extensive options development has
been undertaken in response to consultation feedback
regarding the highway and the optimum highways design
presented for the final proposals presents the highway at
grade (street level and filling in the underpass) and retains
four lanes from the town centre to the seafront. This design
now remains within the existing highway boundary, with the
overall amount of highways land being reduced and returned
to public realm or developable area.

Additional work is still being undertaken on this scheme with
traffic modelling ongoing, provided this supports the highways
scheme this will be one submitted to planning. If this
modelling requires any changes these will be reviewed, non-
material changes can be approved through the delegation in
place whilst if more significant changes are required the
scheme will be represented through the final proposals
process for approval

The Council requires the scheme to provide enhanced
pedestrian and cycling permeability across the site and
links to the town centre.

The scheme developed for the procurement meets these
requirements through:

e Makes appropriate provision for cycle lanes throughout

the site

Cycle lanes and pedestrian permeability are demonstrated

through the drawings in the design drawings in the appendix.
New off street cycle lanes connecting from Victoria Gateway
down the Queensway and linking in with other existing cycle

3|Page




8¢T

No Procurement Objectives

Assessment of bid proposal

Position in the final proposals June 2020

e Two large green areas contained within the site boundary
e Makes adequate provision for pedestrian permeability

routes are proposed.

Green space across the site creates a safe, at grade, natural
link to the town centre and improved connectivity, reducing
severance. Careful positioning of proposed commercial
frontages to key corners and walking routes through the
scheme will provide passive surveillance and increase footfall
in those areas.

The partnership will offer existing Council tenants on
the site the chance to return via an Assured Tenancy.
Although this will not be a direct Council tenancy, it will
offer the same terms and conditions. The Council
recognises that those seeking a secure tenancy will be
offered Council housing elsewhere within the Borough
as available. Resident leaseholders will be offered a
shared equity unit, and the remainder of the affordable
units must be genuinely affordable with rents at or
below Local Housing Allowance levels on a continual
basis. These units must remain affordable on the exit of
the partnership. The Better Queensway - Resident and
Leaseholder Commitments document must be adhered
to when delivering the scheme.

This objective has been addressed in full throughout the

submission in many sections. In addition to these

requirements there is a significate amount of added value

items that have been included as a result of partnering with a

housing association. This includes access to their housing

register and processes.

e Shared ownership offer affordable for local people with
rental element at or below local housing allowance

e 25% entry for shared ownership

The final proposals scheme does not present detail in regards
to the tenancy offer as it is not a matter of design but service
delivery. There has been no change in the offer made at bid
stage and all parties are committed to maximising the number
of affordable rented homes on the site within a financially
viable scheme.

An in principle agreement has been reached between the JV
and its two shareholders to deliver at least an additional 100
affordable rented homes at social rents through the
conversion of private sale units i.e. increasing the overall
percentage of affordable homes in the development.

The results of the Housing Needs Survey have been used to
inform and reconfigure the unit mix within the plans for the
first phase of housing so as to ensure that the needs of
residents who move first can be met.

The Council is seeking a sustainable development based
on excellent design quality of homes, open spaces and
7 | supporting infrastructure delivered in accordance with
the Better Queensway design policy and principles
document.

This objective has been addressed throughout the submission

and adherence to the Design Policy and Principles document.

e Mixed tenure scheme

e Varying density in line with planning advice

e High quality public realm

e SUDS / Energy centre approach robust centre approach
utilising Queensway underpass

e Met key requirements re. Sustainability / Aspect

The final proposals presented confirms a mixed tenure
scheme with a range of building heights from 3 to 18 storeys
of residential accommodation. Pre-application meetings have
been ongoing with stakeholders and the LPA to assess the
proposals through development for acceptability. Where
possible comments have been taken on and addressed by the
design team.

A park remains at the heart of the development, with 3 key
public spaces as per the bid being provided. Station Plaza,
Porters Park and the new setting for All Saints Church. In
addition, green space has been distributed throughout the
scheme with the introduction of enhanced green links from
Coleman Street, through the park and down into Southchurch
Road, reflecting key desire lines to establish safe and pleasant
routes into and out of the town centre.

A Design Code is being submitted through the final proposals
process that builds on the Design Policy and Principles
document from the procurement and codifies many aspects of

4|Page




6T

No Procurement Objectives Assessment of bid proposal Position in the final proposals June 2020
the development to come forward. This is still being
developed by the JV, but it has committed that this document
will comply with the Design Policy and Principles document
from the procurement. In advance of its submission this will
be reviewed by the Council to ensure that this is accurate. On
this basis it can be approved through the final proposals
process subject to this review. If upon review there are non-
material changes to it this can be approved through the
delegation. If there are material changes this will trigger a
second final proposals process.
This objective has been met through the responses in In regards to the energy provision, the building and energy
questions including: regulations are changing so the energy strategy has been
e Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems / Robust Energy revisited in the final proposals process. A new approach has
centre approach utilising Queensway underpass been included within the planning submission that will
* Greeninfrastructure address energy provision on a phase by phase basis.
e Robust construction management plan
_ _ Environmental sustainability in design, construction and day to
The.CounaI requires the deveI0|_:)ment to be ) day life across the site continues to be a key consideration.
environmentally sustainably delivered both during . . . .
8 ) N L This was strongly supported during the consultations and will
construction and its lifetime, taking into account the . .
. . continue to be explored across all aspects of the Project.
impacts of climate change.
Greening of the area is a feature of the plans with a park at
the heart, additional green space distributed across the site
and a net increase in the total number of trees on site with 2
for 1 trees proposed.
This objective has been met through the responses in the At this stage the detail of smart city infrastructure is not
Design and Master plan and Smart Communities sections in presented in relation to final proposals however matters such
. . their submission. as CCTV and secure entry systems have been highlighted
The Council requires the scheme to further and . . L . )
. . e Future proofing of scheme with hard wired infrastructure during consultation.
9 | contribute to the Better Queensway Smart Cities . .
aspirations e Portal established for local residents
' e Number of smart technologies included within the home
and site e.g. CCTV / Waste / Smart metres / monitoring
stations
The bidder has managed these aspirations in developing its The car parking ratio for the scheme is proposed to be 0.7:1
solution and has endeavoured to most closely meet those (increase from 0.25:1 on the current site) This is in line with
The Council’s design aspirations are reflected in the possible within the challenges of both the financial and site the scheme in the current Business Plan. Some phases of
10 Design Policy and Principles document. The most constraints. development will deliver more parking than others and where

important aspirations are, in descending order of
priority:

5|Page

In the example scheme developed for the procurement:
e Affordable Housing has been increased from 441 to 512
units

it is less parking is available measures to mitigate and off-set
that with interim parking elsewhere will be available, but the
final scheme is expected to deliver 0.7:1 parking ratio.




0€T

No

Procurement Objectives

Assessment of bid proposal

Position in the final proposals June 2020

e Increased affordable housing provision;
e 1:1 car parking provision; and
e Building heights not exceeding 12 storeys

These affordable homes were demonstrated to be locally
affordable e.g. rents at or below Local Housing Allowance
levels (amount claimable in housing benefit) / Shared
Ownership entry at 25%).

Parking is delivered at 0.7:1 (increase from 0.25:1
currently)

Three buildings above 12 storeys. However, all buildings
are lower than current tower heights.

The previous basement parking has largely been omitted from
this scheme, apart from a potential parameter to include
some if required. The proposed solution is to allocate the
majority of car parking in podium and multi-storey car park
structures with the remainder distributed on street and to be
managed by permit arrangements.

Building heights have increased in some places across the site.
This has been to:

e Accommodate this parking;

e Address energy needs by locating extra
environmentally friendly heating plant and equipment
on the roofs;

e To change ground floor uses to commercial and
community concierge rather than residential in order
to improve the quality of the environment and
increase security; and

e To recover a reduction in viability as a result of these
changes by increasing private sale units by between 11
and 103 and charging a premium for the units at height
with sea views.

These changes result in a viable scheme with no buildings that
appear taller than the corresponding tallest building at that
end of Victoria Avenue (Alexandra House).

In terms of massing, a reduction in height along Sutton Road is
also evident in the drawings.

Overall the scheme presented has therefore not addressed
this objective as well due to the increase in height and lack of
change in the other 2 factors of affordable housing and
parking. It was felt that increasing height whilst retaining
these 2 factors was appropriate as they were of greater
priority

Outside, but in parallel with the final proposals, the JV and its
two shareholders have reached an in principle agreement to
deliver at least an additional 100 affordable rented homes at
social rents conversion of private sale units supported by gap
funding from the Council i.e. a greater percentage of homes
on the site will be affordable . This further increases the
affordable housing provision.

11

The partnership will obtain planning permission for the
scheme and other consents as necessary

Pre-application advice sought on procurement concept.
Appropriate approach put forward.

Submission of the information considered here is a
requirement in advance of making a planning application.

6|Page




TET

No Procurement Objectives

Assessment of bid proposal

Position in the final proposals June 2020

e PPA approach proposed in concept.

The first planning application (hybrid seeking outline consent
for the whole site through parameter plans, Design Code and
detailed for the highway) is expected in July 2020 subject to
this final proposals being agreed. The first phase of housing
for a minimum of 267 units will then follow as a reserved
matters application. This is a change to the approach
proposed in the bid submission but will enable the pace of
delivery to be maintained and the HIF deadline to be reached.
It has been discussed with the Local Planning Authority
through pre-planning and separately agreed at the JV Board.

There is no Planning Performance Agreement (PPA) in place
currently

The Council aspires to maximise all aspects of social
value through the Better Queensway scheme in line
with the Council’s draft social value policy (policy to be
finalised during the procurement)

12

e Community Fund established and Community Liaison Role
established

e Local employment proposals detailed including training

e Early engagement with local community, including
residents / schools etc. addressing improving life
opportunities / health & wellbeing / affordability

At this stage of the project the detail relating to social value
outcomes is not presented however other activity continues
to indicate the JV's commitment to it such as the early
appointment of the Community Activation Officer who has
connected with a wide range of local stakeholders already,
Swan’s support of the SECTA (South Essex Construction
Training Academy) project etc.

7|Page




CET

No Objectives
Approach Objectives
The Council requires a long-term partner to work with it The partnership agregment, Leases, management The Iefg,alidocuments appointing Swan as partner and N
. . o agreements and funding approach broadly reflect the establishing Porters Place Southend-on-Sea LLP as the joint
to fund and develop the mixed use scheme identified Council’s requirements . Hicle to take f dth ot oned i
13 above on the Better Queensway site including There are some de ' : h i - q ven.ure vehicle to take o.rwar € ijec. were sighed in )
associated highways infrastructure and to fund, manage partures rom the Council’s anticipate April 2019. These underpin the way in which the partners will
and maintain all public realm and retained operational legal approach to the partnership but these are well work together over a 30 year period to fund, deliver and
units on the site. understood and mitigated through the arrangements. manage the site.
The Council requires an on-going role in the governance e The lease agreement and partnership agreement The final proposals does not relate to these as partnership
of Better Queensway including equal say on, at least, details all of these requirements, and therefore has working and service delivery matters. However, it is worth
the following areas: been addressed. noting that experience of working in the new partnership
e Community / Resident engagement; arrangements demonstrate active participation by the Council
e Changes to tenancy agreements; and its partner in a partnership approach.
e Rent levels;
e Tenure changes;
e Retaining the minimum number of affordable
units;
e QOperation of the Community Fund; and
e Management and maintenance of all affordable
14 units
The Council requires a significant influence over, at
least, the following areas:
e Design of the scheme;
e Branding of the scheme;
e Sales, operation and rental strategies of
residential and commercial facilities;
e Management and maintenance of all retained
operational units and public realm; and
e Procurement of contractors.
The approach includes suitable options for the CPO Outstanding land title matters are being addressed and where
approach. premises are being secured to enable freehold ownership of
Where the Council does not already own the freehold of All costs allowed fqr within the parthership thelsite t‘hese costs will be.met .by th.e JV. The application for
elements of the site at the point of entering the Arrangements put in place to expedite the scheme de5|gna.t|on' a5 regeneratlf)n site V.W” l‘:)e made on
o . determination of the planning application. The proposed
15 | partnership it will seek to obtain such freehold . . .

. . timeline for the application and granting of the Compulsory
ownership through the partnership. Any costs oy
associated with CPO will be funded by the partnership. Purchase Order (CPO) has been extended buF within the

tolerances of the overall programme. There is a CPO strategy
in place.
The Council will retain freehold ownership of the entire This continues to be the case.
16 site throughout the development and operational

periods.

8|Page




€eT

17

The Council’s only guaranteed investment into any
partnership arrangement will consist of the value of the
long lease of the land.

The bid demonstrates a residual value appraisal of the land
is negative based on the Council’s voluntary requirements
for the site (objectives / minimum requirements)
Arrangement put in place to meet s123 obligations

The financial arrangements are subject to ongoing testing and
review by the JV and its two shareholders to ensure value for
money.

18

The Council has some appetite for risk. This could
extend to investment beyond the land value and
operation of the site. Any such investment must be
balanced by commensurate reward. Any investment by
the Council must be balanced by private investment. In
addition, the Council may provide senior debt funding
for the initial development of the scheme

Council invest equity of £1.5m

Council Junior loan of £13.5m

Reward paid through interest and profit share
Interest expressed in Council being senior lender —no
commitment made.

A change in the make-up of the financial arrangements was
reported through the Shareholder Board report of 16t
October 2019 (minute 16 refers). This shows Council investing
equity of £1.00 and junior loan of £14,999,999.00. Discussions
are ongoing between the Council and the JV regarding the
Council being the senior lender.

19

The Council expects to receive meaningful financial
returns which are to be delivered throughout the
development and the life of the operation of the
scheme.

Conceptual approach and indicative scheme reflects a
good financial return, which was judged as commensurate
with the risk being taken.

A small contradiction ion viability calculation approaches was
identified through the final proposals process. This has been
addressed through an agreement in principle to address this
inconsistency. On the basis of this agreement the scheme
remains viable and the Council will receive 50% of the profits
of the scheme as well as an appropriate return on its lending. .

20

The Council requires the partnership to keep all relevant
stakeholders engaged and informed in an open honest
timely and appropriate way.

Included in number of ways (statutory & non-statutory)
Early engagement with all stakeholders

Planning engagement with stakeholders

Ongoing engagement through tenancy management

The JV, working with the Communications teams of both its
shareholders, and its appointed consultation specialists GL
Hearn, have undertaken two rounds of public consultation
over autumn 2019 and winter 2019/20. This has included
dedicated sessions for residents, businesses, Councillors and
the Youth Council as well as general public engagement events
and an on-line presence.

The JV has also appointed its Community Activation Officer
who is regularly on-site and engaging with a range of
stakeholders.

A Housing Needs Survey has been undertaken in partnership
with South Essex Homes to better understand the needs and
aspirations of existing residents.

9|Page




This page is intentionally left blank



Southend-on-Sea Borough Council

Executive Director Neighbourhoods & Environment

: 9
Cabinet

on
30 June 2020

Report prepared by Sharon Harrington
Head of Traffic and Highways

Covid-19; Parking Recovery Proposals

Relevant Scrutiny Committee(s): Place Scrutiny
Executive Councillor: Councillor Ron Woodley
Part 1 (Public Agenda Item)

1.

1.1

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.2

Purpose of Report

The COVID-19 pandemic has had and continues to have a major adverse
impact on individuals, families, social networks, businesses and the wider
economy on a global basis. The initial impact of the pandemic is now subsiding
but it is clear that its impacts will be long term and far reaching and may re-
emerge.

This report sets out how Parking Services could support the Council’s intentions
to lead and support its communities and businesses through the crisis and help
them towards a sustainable recovery.

The Council itself has been significantly affected by the pandemic and this
report also outlines the approach by which parking will adapt its way of working
to engage with customers and deliver services in what has been described as
the “new normal”, for an agreed period of time.

Recommendations
That Cabinet:

Approve the proposed temporary parking concession approach by which the
Council will lead and support its communities and businesses by selecting
options as set out in section 5 of this report and noting the relevant financial
impact and proposed funding of the option chosen.

Approve the continuation of the additional 5 Civil Enforcement Officers at an
additional monthly cost of £16K up to a maximum of six months (£96K) to
support the increased parking pressures being identified as more vehicles are
moving around the borough, which would be self-funded. The increase of
officers will support enforcement in Controlled Parking Zones where complaints
are being received due to parking of vehicles without permits.

The Temporary Key Worker permit Page 1 of 5 Report Number:

135



2.3

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

4.1

4.2

5.1

5.2

Delegate authority to the Executive Director of Neighbourhoods and
Environment in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Transport, Capital &
Inward Investment to remove the schemes as and when the support for
extended parking and reduced hours of enforcement are no longer required.

Background

At council on the 18 July 2019 there was an agreement to recruit on a
temporary basis an additional 5 Civil Enforcement Officers as there was an
appetite for increased parking enforcement, particularly in the vicinity of schools
for example.

The recruitment of Civil Enforcement Officers was undertaken; however due to
the lack of interest officers were not on boarded until February 2020.

Based on the statistics of enforcement Civil Enforcement Officers usually cover
their costs; however due to Covid-19 there has been a significant decrease in
enforcement over the last few months.

As we embark on relaxation there is more of a need to keep enforcement as
robust as is possible to keep our network congestion free.

During lockdown the Civil enforcement officers were used to undertake other
duties to support deliveries etc. however in normal working times their focus
must be on enforcement to ensure we keep our network moving. We are
currently not enforcing all contraventions in the borough due to the increased
pressures we are experiencing in and around the seafront location. Therefore a
reducing in officers could mean less enforcement which would create bad
parking / driver behaviours.

We currently employ 37 Civil Enforcement Officers; based on a 7 day a week
service on a shift pattern we have approx. 8 officers patrolling on any one shift.

Policy Justification

The situation arising from the C-19 pandemic is unprecedented and as maybe
expected given this, the Council has no specific policies and no history of
previous decisions directly relevant to this report.

However, fundamentally the Council exists to serve the town and its residents
and support its community and the businesses in times of need. It is
acknowledged at a national level that local authorities have played a key role in
managing the response to the pandemic and will continue to do so through the
recovery period and beyond.

Options

Option 1. Do nothing; continue with the current enforcement times and charging
structure.

Option 2. Extend parking sessions; allowing the customer to buy 1 hour and get
one free (in all off-street car park locations ONLY) and reduce enforcement
times and not charge after 4pm - 7 days a week (in all off-street car park

| The Temporary Key Worker permit Page 2 of 5 Report Number:

136



5.3

6.1

7.1

7.1

7.2

7.3

locations ONLY) and extend the temporary recruitment of 5 mobile Civil
Enforcement Officers for a further six month period.

Over the three month period (July, August & September); there is a potential
risk to income in the region of £155k for the change of parking sessions and
enforcement times. This loss in income will be met from the funding for COVID-
19 response and recovery.

There is also a £16k per month pressure for the next six months for the
extension of 5 Civil Enforcement Officer totalling £96k. However; it would be
expected that this would be self-funding throughout the life of the recruitment.

Option 3. Extend parking sessions; allowing the customer to buy 2 hours and
get one free (in all off-street car park locations ONLY) and reduce enforcement
times and not charge after 4pm - 7 days a week (in all off-street car park
locations ONLY) and extend the temporary recruitment of 5 mobile Civil
Enforcement Officers for a further six month period.

Over the three month period (July, August & September); there is a potential
risk to income in the region of £115k for the change of parking sessions and
enforcement times. This loss in income will be met from the funding for COVID-
19 response and recovery.

There is also a £16k per month pressure for the next six months for the
extension of 5 Civil Enforcement Officer totalling £96k. However; it would be
expected that this would be self-funding throughout the life of the recruitment.

Reasons for Recommendations

The service would recommend Option 2 or 3 as the preferred option to support
the rejuvenation of the town centre whilst queuing to enter establishments is still
at its height; this together with the extension of the enforcement to protect
congestion and abuse of parking and support residents returning to their
properties being able to find parking. However; all options come carry a
financial risk which is outlined in 8 below.

Corporate Implications

Contribution to Council’s Vision & Corporate Periorities

Pride and Joy. “Our Streets and Public Spaces are clean and inviting.”

Our parks and green spaces are well used the town’s residents and visitors.
Maintaining green spaces within the communities across the borough helps

support the provision of clean and inviting town.

Safe and Well. — This ensures that essential workers are able to continue their
work whilst the government recommends that they do not use public transport

The Temporary Key Worker permit Page 3 of 5 Report Number:

137



8.2

8.3

Financial Implications

Option 1: It is anticipated that doing nothing to support and encourage visitors
and shoppers into the borough may discourage them completely from visiting
our town centres and could impact on future parking income levels.

Option 2: Parking benchmarking shows that availability of parking space is
considered much more important than cost. The risk to income is not able to be
quantified at this stage; however it would be expected to encourage more
people to visit our town’s at a time when the economy of the Towns needs to
revive. July to September accounts for 28% of transactions therefore the total
impact across that timeframe for the off-street element of that is predicted to be
in the region of £110,000.

To support the town centre's; it is recommended to look at reducing the
charging times to help encourage visitors in the late afternoon but offering free
parking after 4pm (7 days a week). This is a potential loss of approx. £15k per
month (£45,000 for the three months of July, August & September). This option
is likely to benefit evening establishments only and not the town centre
shopping locations which predominately close around 5pm, however it does
given them the option to stagger their opening hours.

Civil Enforcement Officers have always been seen to be cost neutral; however
due to unprecedented times this has not been the case. In C-19 the
enforcement service was supporting with enforcement, as and when required,
and, where any downtime was identified, was supporting with essential
deliveries to the vulnerable and those shielding. The cost of these additional
officers equates to a monthly cost of £16,000 (totalling £96k.) which should be
self-funded through enforcement

Option 3: Parking benchmarking shows that availability of parking space is
considered much more important than cost. The risk to income is not able to be
quantified at this stage; however it would be expected to encourage more
people to visit our town’s at a time when the economy of the Towns needs to
revive. July to September accounts form 39% of transactions therefore the total
impact across that timeframe for the off-street element of that is predicted to be
in the region of £70,000.

To support the town centre's; it is recommended to look at reducing the
charging times to help encourage visitors in the late afternoon but offering free
parking after 4pm (7 days a week). This is a potential loss of approx. £15k per
month (£45,000 for the three months of July, August & September). This option
is likely to benefit evening establishments only and not the town centre
shopping locations which predominately close around 5pm, however it does
given them the option to stagger their opening hours.

Civil Enforcement Officers have always been seen to be cost neutral; however
due to unprecedented times this has not been the case. In C-19 the
enforcement service was supporting with enforcement, as and when required,
and, where any downtime was identified, was supporting with essential
deliveries to the vulnerable and those shielding. The cost of these additional
officers equates to a monthly cost of £16,000 (totalling £96k.) which should be
self-funded through enforcement.

The Temporary Key Worker permit Page 4 of 5 Report Number:

138



Legal Implications

9.1 N/A

10.  People Implications

10.1 If agreement is not sought to continue with the additional officers they will be
made redundant with immediate effect.

11 Property Implications

11.1  There are no property implications

12 Consultation

12.1  No public consultation has been undertaken, other than with cabinet members.

13 Equalities and Diversity Implications

13.1 There are no Equality and Diversity Issues

13.2 Risk Assessment

13.3 Value for Money

13.4 No issues identified at this time

13.5 Community Safety Implications

13.6 No community safety implications have been identified at this time.

13.7 Environmental Impact

13.8 TBC

14. Background Papers

14.1 There are no background papers.

15. Appendices

15.1 There are no Appendices

The Temporary Key Worker permit Page 5 of 5 Report Number:

139



This page is intentionally left blank



Southend-on-Sea Borough Council If«gen'jla
em INO.

Report of Executive Director
(Legal & Democratic Services)

Place, People and Policy & Resources Scrutiny

Committees
On 6, 7th and 9t July 2020

Report prepared by: S. Tautz (Principal Democratic Services

Officer)

In-Depth Scrutiny Projects and Summary of Work 2019/20
A Part 1 Agenda Item

1.1

1.2

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

3.2

Purpose of Report

For the Scrutiny Committee to consider progress with regard to the in-depth
scrutiny projects due to have been completed during the 2019/20 municipal year.

The report also provides information about the work carried out by each of the
scrutiny committees during the previous year.

Recommendations

That the Scrutiny Committee note progress with regard to its in-depth scrutiny
project due to have been undertaken during the 2019/20 municipal year.

That the completion of the in-depth scrutiny project be carried forward into the
2020/21 municipal year.

That no further topic(s) be selected by the Scrutiny Committee for additional in-
depth review during 2020/21.

That the Committee note the summary of the work undertaken by each of the
scrutiny committees during 2019/20, attached as Appendix 3.

In-Depth Scrutiny Projects — Background

As councillors will be aware, each scrutiny committee undertakes an in-depth
scrutiny project each year. The in-depth projects are selected by the committees
at the beginning of each municipal year and generally focus on corporate
priorities or matters of local concern. Recent in-depth projects have also been
aligned with the ambition and outcomes arising from the Southend 2050
programme.

The projects lead to the development of reports and recommendations which
advise the Executive and the Council on its policies, budget provision and service
delivery. The work of each project is driven through a Programme Working Party
(Project Team) appointed by the Council, supported by relevant officers. The
appointments for the projects to be undertaken during 2019/20 were agreed by
the Council at its meeting on 3 June 2019 (Appendix 1).

| July 2020 Report No: In-Depth Scrutiny Projects &

Summary of Work 2019/20

141



3.3

3.4

4.2

4.3

Involvement with in-depth studies enables councillors to ‘get their teeth into’ a
particular topic and to influence and shape proposals before they are
implemented. Councillors aim to select topics for in-depth review that can identify
real service improvements and result in benefits/outcomes. A list of previous in-
depth scrutiny projects undertaken since 2012 is attached at Appendix 2.

Occasionally, one in-depth study is conducted jointly by two of the scrutiny
committees. This approach occurred in 2016/17 when a joint study was
undertaken by the Policy and Resources and Place Scrutiny Committees, to
investigate whether there was a need for additional enforcement resources for
Southend. A joint project was also undertaken during 2018/19, also by the Policy
and Resources and Place Scrutiny Committees, looking at re-imagining the town
centre in the context of the vision for Southend 2050.

In-Depth Scrutiny Projects 2019/20 — Progress

The undertaking of the following in-depth reviews for the 2019/20 municipal year
were agreed by the scrutiny committees during July 2019:

People Scrutiny Committee

(@) ‘The appropriate use of reablement for older people (65 and over) when
discharged from hospital, to maximise the number of people at home after
period of ninety-one days.’

Place Scrutiny Committee

(b) ‘Toreview the level of domestic waste recycling in the Borough, in order to
examine what influences residents in terms of their recycling habits and
what the barriers are to achieving a higher rate of recycling and to consider
ways of working with residents to improve domestic waste recycling.’

Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee

(c) ‘How the Council and councillors communicate with local people and
stakeholders and facilitate engagement and participation’.

Progress with regard to each of the in-depth reviews was achieved by the
relevant Programme Working Parties in the first-half of the municipal year,
including the development of action plans, the receipt of relevant presentations,
the identification of withesses and evidence sources and, in some cases, the
holding of appropriate site visits. However, the completion of the projects was
subsequently delayed from late-2019 as a result of a number of issues including
reduced officer capacity, the unforeseen requirement for the Returning Officer to
deliver a parliamentary election at short notice in December 2019 and the need to
make significant preparations for the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner and
local elections due to be held in May 2020 (although these elections were
subsequently cancelled).

Since March 2020, the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic has also further
delayed activity with regard to the completion of the reviews, reflecting the
Council’'s approach to the handling of the pandemic, including the necessary
focus on priority activities and the delivery of new or amended services, the

July 2020 Report No: In-Depth Scrutiny Projects &

Summary of Work 2019/20

142



dedication or redeployment of officer capacity that would have supported the
reviews towards key service provision and the adoption of ongoing remote
working and meeting arrangements for councillors and a significant number of the
Council’'s employees As a result, it was not possible for the in-depth reviews to be
completed by the end of the municipal year.

4.4 In the circumstances, it is therefore recommended that the completion of each
current review be carried forward into the 2020/21 municipal year. The
completion of the in-depth reviews will be progressed as soon as possible during
the year and it is hoped that meetings of the respective Programme Working
Parties leading each review can be held through the Microsoft Teams platform in
the near future, so that progress can by reviewed by the scrutiny committees at
future meetings.

4.5 Inlight of the proposed carry-forward of the current in-depth reviews and the
Council’'s ongoing response to the COVID-19 pandemic, it is recommended that
no additional topic(s) be selected by the scrutiny committees for in-depth study
during 2020/21. In accordance with usual arrangements, reports will be made to
the scrutiny committees in July 2021 to seek the identification of topics for in-
depth review during the 2021/22 municipal year.

5. Work Undertaken by the Scrutiny Committees 2018/19

5.1 A summary of the work undertaken by each of the scrutiny committees during the
2018/19 municipal year is attached at Appendix 3.

6. Corporate Implications
(a) Contribution to the Southend 2050 Road Map - Becoming an excellent and

high performing organisation.

(b) Financial Implications — there are costs associated with organising in-depth
projects relating to officer time, but this will all be contained within existing
resources.

(c) Legal Implications — none.

(d) People Implications — none.

(e) Property Implications — none.

(f) Consultation — as described in report.

(g) Equalities and Diversity Implications — none.

(h) Risk Assessment — none.

7. Background Papers
None

8. Appendices
Appendix 1 - Membership of Programme Working Parties (Project Team

July 2020 Report No: In-Depth Scrutiny Projects &

Summary of Work 2019/20

143



Appendix 2 - List of previous in-depth topics since 2012
Appendix 3 - Summary of work of the scrutiny committees for 2019/ 20

July 2020 Report No: In-Depth Scrutiny Projects &

Summary of Work 2019/20
144



APPENDIX 1

PEOPLE SCRUTINY PROGRAMME WORKING PARTY
(PROJECT TEAM)
(NB: Committee members only)

Party Members Total 8 Substitutes

Clir A Dear

CON Clir D Garne 3 All
Clir F Evans
Clir M Borton

LAB Clir C Nevin 2 Al
Clir A Chalk

ND Clir | Shead 2 Al

LD Clir A Thompson 1 All

PLACE SCRUTINY PROGRAMME WORKING PARTY

(PROJECT TEAM)
(NB: Committee members only)
Party Members Total Substitutes
8

Clir A Bright

CON Clir K Buck 3 All
Clir D Jarvis
Clir L Burton

LAB Clir S George 2 Al
Clir A Chalk

IND Clir S Wakefield 2 Al

LD Clir P Wexham 1 All

POLICY & RESOURCES SCRUTINY PROGRAMME WORKING PARTY
(PROJECT TEAM)
(NB: Committee members only)

Party Members Total Substitutes
8
Clir M Davidson
CON Clir S Habermel 3 All
Clir C Walker
Clir M Dent
LAB Clir H McDonald 2 Al
Clir B Ayling
IND Clir | Shead 2 Al
LD ClIr P Collins 1 All

145



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2

In-Depth Scrutiny Projects Since 2012

Since 2000, the Council has undertaken a number of in depth scrutiny projects and
since 2012 has looked at the following areas:

To review the level of domestic waste recycling in the Borough, in order to
examine what influences residents in terms of their recycling habits and the
barriers to achieving a higher rate of recycling and to consider ways of working
with residents to improve domestic waste recycling - 2019/20 (Place Scrutiny
Committee)

The appropriate use of reablement for older people (65 and over) when
discharged from hospital, to maximize the number of people at home after
period of 91 days (‘Home First’ approach) - 2019/20 (People Scrutiny
Committee)

How the Council and Councillors communicate with local people and
stakeholders - 2019/20 (Policy & Resources Scrutiny Committee

Re-imagining the Town Centre in the context of the vision for Southend 2050 —
2018/19 (Joint project Place / Policy & Resources Scrutiny)

in context of vision for Southend 2050, what is the vision for young people
which improves their lives and what are the pathways to achieve this ambition —
2018/19 (People Scrutiny)

Maximizing the use of technology — 2017/18 (Place Scrutiny Committee)
Connecting Communities to avoid isolation — 201718 (People Scrutiny
Committee)

Additional enforcement resources for Southend — 2017/18 (Policy & Resources
Scrutiny Committee)

Alternative provision — off site education provision for children & young people —
2016/17 (People Scrutiny Committee)

To investigate the case for additional enforcement resources for Southend —
2016/17 (Joint Place / Policy & Resources Scrutiny)

20mph speed limits in residential streets — 2015/16 (Place Scrutiny Committee)
Transition arrangements from children’s to adult life — 2015/16 (People Scrutiny
Committee)

Control of personal debt and the advantages of employment — 2015/16 (Policy
& Resources Scrutiny Committee)

How the Council assists and excites individuals and community groups to
achieve healthier lifestyles — 2014/15 (People Scrutiny Committee)

The Council’s Community Leadership role in promoting safer communities —
2014/15 (Policy & Resources Scrutiny Committee)

Understanding erosion taking place on the Foreshore — 2014/15 (Place
Scrutiny Committee)

Southend primary schools’ falling grammar school entry figures - 2013/14
(People Scrutiny Committee)

Impact of welfare changes - 2013/14 (Policy & Resources Scrutiny Committee)
Promoting a positive image for the town - 2013/14 (Place Scrutiny Committee)

147



This page is intentionally left blank



PLACE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Work Programme 2019/20 - Evaluation

During the 2019/20 municipal year, the Place Scrutiny Committee held 4 meetings and met on the
following dates - 8t July 2019, 7t October 2019, 25" November 2019 and 28" January 2020. The
meetings scheduled to be held on 16" March 2020 and 24" March 2020 (special meeting) were cancelled
as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic.

During the year, councillors undertook the following scrutiny work:-

Call-ins/references from Cabinet and Cabinet Committee — the Scrutiny Committee considered 11 call-in
items from Cabinet and 4 call-in item from Cabinet Committee. No items were called in from the
Forward Plan. Revised Southend 2050 - Five Year Road Map was referred direct to the Scrutiny
Committee on 8™ July 2019. All items from the Cabinet meetings held on 25 June 2019 and 16t
January 2020 were referred direct to the Scrutiny Committee on 8" July 2020 and 28" January 2020
respectively. 2 items were called-in and 1 item referred direct from Cabinet on 25" February 2020 to the
meeting of the Scrutiny Committee on 16" March 2020 which was cancelled as a result of the COVID-19
pandemic. One of these called-in items was considered by the Scrutiny Committee at its meeting on 15"
June 2020.

8 items were referred up by the Scrutiny Committee to Council for decision.
No items were referred back by the Scrutiny Committee to Cabinet for reconsideration.

Pre-Cabinet items — there were no items considered by way of pre-Cabinet Scrutiny in 2019/20:

Scheduled items - each meeting as appropriate:
e Monthly Performance report — exceptions reports also considered when appropriate.
e Minutes of the meeting of the Chair’s Scrutiny Forum held on Tuesday 18" June 2019 (Minute 155
refers)
e 12 Questions from members of the public, responded to by the relevant Executive Councillors.

In-Depth Scrutiny Project:  ‘To review the level of domestic waste recycling in the Borough, in order to
examine what influences residents in terms of their recycling habits and what the barriers are to achieving
a higher rate of recycling and to consider ways of working with residents to improve domestic waste
recycling.”— Topic agreed at meeting on 8t July 2019 (Minute 153 refers). Project Plan agreed by Project
Team on 17t September 2019 and then full Committee on 7t October 2019 (Minute 388 refers).

Presentations & other matters considered:
None

149




This page is intentionally left blank



PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Work Programme 2019/20 - Evaluation

During the 2019/20 municipal year, the People Scrutiny Committee held 5 meetings and met on the
following dates - 9™ July 2019, 8" October 2019, 26" November 2019, 20" January 2020 (special meeting)
and 29" January 2020. The meeting scheduled to be held on 17t March 2020 was cancelled as a result of
the COVID-19 pandemic.

During the year, councillors undertook the following scrutiny work:-

Call-in/references from Cabinet — the Scrutiny Committee considered 6 called-in items from Cabinet. No
items were called in from the Forward Plan.

A revised timeline for the Southend 2050 Five Year Road Map was referred directly to each of the three
scrutiny committees by the Cabinet during July 2019. During the year, matters were also directly referred to
each of the scrutiny committees by the Cabinet, including the year-end performance report for 2018/19 and
performance framework for 2019/20; the corporate risk register for 2019/20; the capital outturn for 2018/19;
annual comments, compliments and complaints statistics; the Southend 2050 outcome success measures
for 2019/20; and the town centre and seafront Public Spaces Protection Order.

All items from the Cabinet meetings held on 25 June 2019 and 16t January 2020 were referred
direct to the Scrutiny Committee on 9t July 2020 and 29 January 2020 respectively. Two items were
called-in and one item was referred direct from Cabinet on 25" February 2020 to the meeting of the
Scrutiny Committee on 17" March 2020, which was cancelled as a result of COVID-19. One of these called-
in items was considered by the Scrutiny Committee at its meeting on 7t July 2020.

No items were referred up by the Scrutiny Committee to Council for decision.

No items were referred back by the Scrutiny Committee to Cabinet for reconsideration.

Pre-Cabinet items — the Scrutiny Committee considered no pre-Cabinet items during the year.

Scheduled items - each meeting as appropriate:
e Performance reporting via the Southend 2050 Outcomes Success Measures report
e Schools Progress Report
e Minutes of the meeting of the Chair's Scrutiny Forum held on Tuesday 18® June, 2019 (Minute 173
refers)
e 8 Questions from members of the public, responded to by the relevant Executive Councillors.

In-Depth Scrutiny Project — “The appropriate use of reablement for older people (65 and over) when
discharged from hospital to maximise the number of people at home after period of 91 days (‘Home First’
approach).’

Topic agreed at meeting on 9" July 2019 (Minute 172 refers). Project plan agreed at meeting on 8™ October
2019 (Minute 398 refers). The completion of the in-depth scrutiny project has been carried forward into the
2020/21 municipal year as a result of reduced officer capacity and the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. No
further topics have been selected by the Scrutiny Committee for additional in-depth review during 2020/21.

Presentations & other matters considered:

e 9™ July 2019 — (a) Report on Statutory Scrutiny Guidance (Minute 171 refers); (b) work programme
evaluation 2018/19 (Minute 172 refers)

e 8" October 2019 — (a) The proposed implementation of dementia community support model (Minute
393 refers)

e 29™ January 2020 (special meeting) - East of England Ambulance Trust (Shoeburyness Ambulance
Station) (Minute 718 refers)

e 29% January 2020 (special meeting) - Sexual Health Services (Minute 719 refers)

e 29% January 2020 (special meeting) - Changes to Clinical Commissioning Groups in Mid and South
Essex (Minute 720 refers)

151




Chairman’s Update Report:

o Ot July 2019 — (a) remit of the Committee; (b) draft Quality Accounts submissions to EPUT and
Southend Hospital; (c) Scrutiny arrangements for the proposed move of site for Moorfields Eye
Hospital; (d) update on STP and referral to Secretary of State and Statement issued by the Chair; (e)
briefing regarding Shoebury practices merger; (f) update on work of Children’s Services
Improvement Plan Scrutiny Panel.

e 8" October 2019 — (a) Mid and South Essex STP & feedback on outcome of referral and next steps;
(b) update on the consultation on the proposed move for Moorfields Eye Hospital; (c) update on
scrutiny project work; (d) info on HIV diagnosis data; (e) update on work of Children’s Services
Improvement Plan Scrutiny Panel.

152




POLICY & RESOURCES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Work Programme 2019/20 - Evaluation

During the 2019/20 municipal year, the Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee held 4 meetings and
met on the following dates — 11t July 2019, 10t October 2019, 28" November 2019 and 30t January 2020
The meetings scheduled to be held on 18t March 2020 and 25" March 2020 (special meeting) were
cancelled as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic.

During the year, councillors undertook the following scrutiny work:-

Call-in/references from Cabinet — the Scrutiny Committee considered 6 called-in items from Cabinet. No
items were called in from the Forward Plan.

A revised timeline for the Southend 2050 Five Year Road Map was referred directly to each of the three
scrutiny committees by the Cabinet during July 2019. During the year, matters were also directly referred to
each of the scrutiny committees by the Cabinet, including the year-end performance report for 2018/19 and
performance framework for 2019/20; the corporate risk register for 2019/20; the capital outturn for 2018/19;
annual comments, compliments and complaints statistics; the Southend 2050 outcome success measures
for 2019/20; and the town centre and seafront Public Spaces Protection Order.

All items from the Cabinet meetings held on 25t June 2019 and 16t January 2020 were referred
direct to the Scrutiny Committee on 11t July 2020 and 30™" January 2020 respectively. Two items were
called-in and one item was referred direct from Cabinet on 25" February 2020 to the meeting of the
Scrutiny Committee on 18" March 2020, which was cancelled as a result of COVID-19. These called-in
items were considered by the Scrutiny Committee at its meeting on 9t July 2020.

The following Cabinet items were referred to Council by the Scrutiny Committee to consider:
e Traveller incursions in the Borough — 11t July 2019 (Minute 190 refers)

No items were referred back by the Scrutiny Committee to Cabinet for reconsideration.

Pre-Cabinet items — the Scrutiny Committee considered no pre-Cabinet items during the year.

Scheduled items - each meeting as appropriate:-
¢ Performance reporting via the Southend 2050 Outcomes Success Measures report
e Minutes of the meeting of the Chair’s Scrutiny Forum held on Tuesday 18™ June, 2019 (Minute 203
refers)
e 7 Questions from members of the public, responded to by the relevant Executive Councillors

In-Depth Scrutiny Project: - ‘How the Council and Councillors communicate with local people and
stakeholders’ — Topic agreed at meeting on 11 July 2019 (Minute 201 refers). Project plan agreed at
meeting on 10t October 2019 (Minute 411 refers). The completion of the in-depth scrutiny project has been
carried forward into the 2020/21 municipal year as a result of reduced officer capacity and the impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic. No further topics have been selected by the Scrutiny Committee for additional in-
depth review during 2020/21.

Presentations & other matters considered:
¢ Work programme evaluation 2018/19 — 11t July 2019 (Minute 201 refers)
e Statutory Scrutiny Guidance — 11" July 2019 (Minute 202 refers)

153




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Meeting held on Monday, 28th January 2020
	Minutes

	5 Parking Review
	6 Protection of Public Open Space
	7 The Beecroft Trust
	8 Better Queensway Regeneration Project - Progress Update and Consideration of the Final Proposals (the report will be considered in conjunction with the minutes of the Shareholder Board, 25th June)
	Appendix 1 - 20 06 25 - Shareholder Board Minutes, 30/06/2020 Cabinet
	Appendix 2 - Porters Place Southend-on-Sea LLP Final Proposals report to Shareholder Board FINAL (1), 30/06/2020 Cabinet
	Appendix 1 - LLP Project Director Report FINAL, 30/06/2020 Cabinet
	Appendix 2 - Final proposals drawings and images FINAL, 30/06/2020 Cabinet
	Appendix 3 - Objectives summary table FINAL, 30/06/2020 Cabinet

	9 COVID-19 - Parking Recovery Proposals
	10 In-Depth Scrutiny Projects and Summary of Work 2019/20
	Appendix 1 - Project Team Membership 2019-20
	Appendix 2 - In-Depth Scrutiny Projects Since 2012
	Appendix 3(a) - Place Scrutiny Committee 2019-20
	Appendix 3(b) - People Scrutiny Committee 2019-20
	Appendix 3(c) - P&R Scrutiny Committee 2019-20


